Minden Branch:
1625 Library Lane

Minden, NV 89423 Zephyr Cove, NV 89448
P:775.782.9841 P:775.588.6411

F:775.782.5754 Douglas County BPublic Library F:775.588.6464
P.0. Box 337 » Minden, NV 89423 ' - - library.douglascountynv.gov

Lake Tahoe Branch:
233 Warrior Way

Douglas County Public Library Board of Trustees
Meeting Notice and Agenda

September 21, 2022

The Douglas County Public Library Board of Trustees will meet at 11:00 a.m. on Tuesday,
September 27, 2022 in the Meeting Room of the Zephyr Cove Library, 233 Warrior Way,
Zephyr Cove, NV. The meeting will be in-person and will not be simultaneously streamed via
YouTube or Zoom®. Below is an agenda of all items scheduled for consideration.

Agenda
The Library Board encourages the respectful consideration of all views by members of the
public. In order to ensure that every individual desiring to speak before the Library Board
has the opportunity to express his or her opinion, it is requested that the audience refrain
from disruptive behavior that may interrupt, interfere or prevent the speaker from
commenting on items that are for possible action by the Library Board.

1. Public comments. [No Action]
At this time, public comment will be taken on those items that are within the jurisdiction
and control of the Library Board of Trustees. Public comment will not be taken on agenda
discussion items because a public hearing is not legally required.

Public Comment is limited to five (5) minutes per speaker. No action may be taken on a
matter raised under this item of the agenda until the matter itself has been specifically
included on an agenda as an item upon which action will be taken.

If members of the public wish to comment on a specific agenda item scheduled for
action, please make comments when the Library Board of Trustees considers that item
and the item is opened for public comment.

2. For possible action. Discussion on approval of the agenda. The Library Board of
Trustees reserves the right to take items in a different order to accomplish business in
the most efficient manner, to combine two or more agenda items for consideration, and
to remove items from the agenda or delay discussion relating to items on the agenda.

3. Eor possible action. Discussion on approval of the minutes of the August 2, 2022
regular meeting and the August 23, 2022 Strategic Plan Organizational Workshop.



4. Consent Calendar.
Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are items that can be adopted with one
motion unless pulled by a Trustee wishing to have an item or items further discussed.
When items are pulled for discussion, they will be automatically placed as the next item
for discussion or may be continued until another meeting.
a. For possible action. Approval of Gift fund claims
i. July 2022
ii. August 2022
iii. September 2022

5. Eor possible action. Discussion and review of Budget Performance Report summary
and Gift Fund summary.

a. 7/31/2022
b. 8/31/2022

6. [or possible action. Discussion on adoption of an Organizational Strategic Plan for the
Douglas County Public Library and authorize the Library Director to make
typographical/grammar changes and other non-substantive error corrections as
appropriate.

7. For possible action. Discussion on accepting the insurance claim funds received from
Douglas County's insurance carrier in the amount of $117,323 to replace and/or buy
additional titles and approve a request for the BOCC to augment the Services and
Supplies budget.

8. For possible action. Discussion and update on the flooring replacement for the Minden
Library, including but not limited to estimates and selection of flooring.

9. For possible action. Discussion on the November 4t and November 9th, 2022 Tiny Art
Show and reception, including but not limited to programs, displays, informational
handouts and hospitality.

10.For possible action. Update on the Library Director's progress and achievements during
his first 20-days and setting of specific expectations and objectives for the upcoming
calendar year.

11.For possible action. Discussion on setting communication expectations between the
Library Director and Library Board of Trustees, including informational bi-weekly email
reports, in-person updates or other avenues consistent with Nevada's Open Meeting
Law.

12.For discussion only. Library Director's monthly report on library operations and
statistical report from staff.

13.Closing public comments.
At this time, public comment will be taken on those items that are within the jurisdiction
and control of the Library Board of Trustees or those agenda items where public
comment has not already been taken.



14.For possible action. Adjournment.

According to the provisions of NRS 241, this notice and agenda has been posted at or
before 9:00 a.m. on the third working day before the meeting at the following locations:

Douglas County Library, 1625 Library Lane, Minden NV, hitps://library.douglascountynv.gov/
Douglas County website,_https: [(gguglasggungy v.granicus.com/ViewPublisher.php?view id=1

State of Nevada website, https://notice.nv.gov

Supporting materials are available at the Minden Library, 1625 Library Lane, Minden, NV or

at the Douglas County website address listed above. A request for copies of the supporting
materials may be directed to:

Veronica Hallam, Administrative Services Manager
Douglas County Public Library

1625 Library Lane, Minden, NV 89423
775-782-9841

vhallam®@douglas.lib.nv.us

Reasonable efforts will be made to assist and accommodate members of the public who are
disabled and wish to attend the meeting. Please contact Veronica Hallam at 782-9841
before September 27, 2022 for arrangements.



DOUGLAS COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES

A quorum or greater number of Library Board Trustees may be gathering at any or all of the
following organizations’ meetings during the month of October. At these meetings the Library
Board of Trustees is in attendance to observe the proceedings of the organization and to
participate in discussions to the extent allowed by the organization.

These organizations may not have posted a formal agenda for their meetings. The Library Board
of Trustees present at the meeting will take no action relevant to the Douglas County Public
Library.

Friends of the Library 10/10/22 4:00 PM Minden Library

*Meeting dates, times and locations are subject to change.



UNAPPROVED
LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES
August 2, 2022

ATTENDEES
Library Board Members: Chairperson Heather Martin Maier; Vice Chairperson Kate
Garrahan; Trustees Starla Doughty, Bonnie Rogers

Library Staff: Library Director Timothy DeGhelder; Library Supervisor Vanna Bells;
Administrative Services Manager Veronica Hallam, Clerk to the Board

County Staff: Deputy District Attorney Cynthea Gregory

Absent: Trustee Elizabeth Tattersall; Library Supervisor Laura Treinen

THE MEETING CONVENED AT 10:00 A.M.
I. PUBLIC COMMENTS.
Chairperson Heather Martin Maier asked for public comment,

There being no public comment; public comment was closed.

2. DISCUSSION ON APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA.

MOTION/VOTE:
Vice Chairperson Kate Garrahan made a motion to approve the agenda. Trustee Bonnie Rogers

made a second. There being no public comment, the motion carried unanimously with a 4-0
vote.

3. DISCUSSION ON APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE JUNE 28, 2022
REGULAR MEETING AND THE JULY 26,2022 REGULAR MEETING.

MOTION/VOTE:

Trustee Rogers made a motion to approve the minutes of the June 28, 2022 regular meeting and
the July 26, 2022 regular meeting. Vice Chairperson Garrahan made a second and the motion
carried unanimously with a 4-0 vote.

Chairperson Martin Maier asked for public comment related to the minutes. There was no public
comment.



4. CONSENT CALENDAR.

a. Approval of Gift fund claims

i. June 2022
ii. July 2022

*Swank Movie Licensing

*Do Co Procurement Program

*Baker & Taylor

Petty Cash

*Swank Movie Licensing

Do Co Procurement Program

Do Co Procurement Program

*Amazon

*Amazon

Copyright Compliance Site License
For DLT 5/1/22-4/30/23

Refreshments for SRP Kick-Off event;
Items for Teen Art and The Council mtg;
Hotel expense for the MLA Tri-Conference
Missouia, MT for L. Davis 8/3-8/6/22

Second Wednesday Book Group

Membership Eniry Fee for the Chamber
Of Commerce luncheon 6/15/22 - TD

Copyright Compliance Site License
For DCL 7/1/22-6/30/23

Adult Prizes for Summer Reading
Program

Adult Prizes for Summer Reading
Program

Items for Teen Art Program

Items for Teen Art Program

*Funding/partial funding by Friends of the Library

Vice Chairperson Garrahan noted a duplicate entry.

MOTION/VOTE:

04070

04129

PO0068

04146

04151

04157

04158
04163

04164

$445.00

$950.46

$97.87

$30.00

$1.438.00

$70.96

§104.63
$22.54

$59.98

Vice Chairperson Garrahan made a motion to approve the consent calendar with the correction of
the duplicate entry. Trustee Rogers made a second. There being no public comment, the motion

carried unanimously with a 4-0 vote.

5. DISCUSSION AND REVIEW OF BUDGET PERFORMANCE REPORT

SUMMARY AND GIFT FUND SUMMARY.

a. 6/30/2022



MOTION/VOTE:

Trustee Starla Doughty made a motion to approve the budget performance report. Trustee
Garrahan made a second. There being no public comment, the motion carried unanimously with
a 4-0 vote.

6. DISCUSSION ON AMENDMENTS TO THE REGISTRATION OF BORROWERS
POLICY, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO REVISIONS REGARDING
LIBRARY CARD APPLICATIONS AND FEES. [Action]

In regards to the proposed amended policy the board received in their packet, Library Director
Timothy DeGhelder explained that in the current policy it states that if a patron loses his/her
library card the fee for a replacement card is $1.00. Tim is proposing to remove that fee. He
noted that the current policy aiso states that if a patron has to use his/her picture ID to obtain
his/her library card number, a fee of $1.00 is charged to the patron. Tim is proposing to remove
that fee from the policy as well. Vice Chairperson Garrahan stated:that when this policy was
reviewed by the board in 2021 the board approved the removal of the $1.00.if & patron had to
show ID and it is possible Tim didn’t have the most current policy. Director DeGhelder is
proposing to remove any fees related to the replacement of the library card and any other fees
within the current policy.

MOTION/VOTE:

Trustee Rogers made a motion to approve the revised Registration of Borrowers policy. Vice
Chairperson Garrahan made a second.. There being no public comment, the motion carried
unanimously with a 4-0 vote.

7. DISCUSSION ON THE DRAFT LONG RANGE PLAN AS PREPARED BY THE
UNR DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND FINAL
WORKSHOP.

Director DeGhelder stated that he and Veronica had a Zoom meeting with Dr. Fred Steinmann
and in this meeting Fred went over each goal and how they were formulated. Tim noted that
theytalked about ways to keep track of the goals and the progress being made on those goals.
This is'something that can be discussed as a group at the next workshop that Fred would like to
hold to make sure the strategic plan meets everyone’s expectations. Tim stated that at this next
final workshop each goal can be looked at and the group can provide any edits they have to those
goals and Fred can take that information to compile a final draft. Dates were discussed and Tim
stated that he would reach out to Fred to talk about dates he would be availabie.

8. UPDATE BY THE LIBRARY DIRECTOR, TIM DEGHELDER, REGARDING
PROGRESS ON HIS 90-DAY PRIORITY LIST.

Director DeGhelder gave a brief summary of his progress within his first 90 days. He noted he is
becoming familiar with the library handbook and trustee manual. He added some verbiage from
the computer policy to the Userful computers agreement statement when patrons first log in. He

3



noted that he had a meeting with Finance to go over New World Systems which is a huge budget
database system so this will take him some time to learn. He stated that he has learned how
timesheets are submitted and approved. He’s learned the NeoGov software and how to post
positions, look at job descriptions and candidate applications. There are over 1500 training
videos for staff to view and gain professional knowledge in this software. He stated that he and
the supervisors try to meet weekly to talk about the week and staff’s needs and customer service.
These meetings help with setting the agenda for the monthly staff meetings. Tim noted that he
has been looking at the library’s website and becoming more familiar with the catalog, the
calendar and some of the products the library offers digitally and how user friendly the website is
for the patrons. It is important that they are using these products and can navigate the download
process easily. He noted that he has visited the lake twice and is becoming familiar with the
surroundings and how the dynamics work up there. Because there are only.three staff members
at the lake branch he is happy with the teamwork that staff provides when the library is short
staffed at the lake. He noted that he applied to be an ambassador for.the Ghamber of Commerce
and is now a Rotarian with the Rotary. This wiil allow him to be more forefront with the
community and to share what is happening at the library with other businesses as well. He stated
that because he has been so active with the chamber and rotary he hasn’t had a chance to connect
with Kiwanis. He’s been busy with the friends as well. He’s getting more familiar with this
building and the book mobile. He noted that he went on the book mobile and did story time at
the park and is attending a night out event with the book mobile.. In regards to social media the
library has created a TikTok page with short videos. He noted that he had created a short TikTok
video introducing the Tiny Art Show and the art he painted. He has created a grant portal with
the state and has already applied for a grant for the art show. He attends the weekly management
meetings and is meeting other departments and what role they play in the county and community.
He stated that he is still waiting for the check for the flood damage and that Veronica is working
with three vendors to get estimates on the replacement of the carpet. He continues to learn more
about the county’s strategic plan:and what the county is trying to accomplish. Trustee Doughty
commented on how impressive his list is and Tim stated that it helps keep him focused.

9. DISCUSSION ON SETTING DATE(S) AND A FORMAT FOR AN
INTRODUCTION/WELCOME EVENT FOR NEW LIBRARY DIRECTOR, TIM
DEGHELDER.

Director DeGhelder stated that he is working on the art show; packaging the canvases and paint
kits with instructions and getting them ready to handout to patrons, schools and other
establishments, like daycares, senior homes, community centers and the art guild. He noted that
the library will market the art show with flyers and brochures in August, start handing out and
delivering the art supplies in September, paintings are returned in October so artists have the
whole month of September to paint, and finally in November display the art and hold the
reception. The art will be displayed with a name tag that includes name, age and the title of the
art throughout the library and a picture of the art will be shown on the library’s website. A
stideshow of the lake’s art will be displayed on the projector screen in the meeting room at
Minden on the day of the reception. He stated that the reception for Minden will be Friday,
November 4" from 4:00 — 8:00 P.M. The library closes at six so attendees will have a couple
hours to walk around and enjoy the art. He noted that there will be refreshments, possibly live
music and a person who does caricature drawings. Tim mentioned that he would like to serve



wine during the reception and would need the board’s approval to do so. He noted that he will
work with the county manager and take the proper steps to get county approval as well. Tim
informed the board that he has written a grant to receive $1,200 to pay for the costs of the
supplies and refreshments. Vanna Bells added that the lake’s reception will be Wednesday,
November 9™ from 4:00 — 8:00 P.M. with the library closing at 7:00 P.M. Tim noted that he
expects possibly 2 to 300 people attending the reception and that he may consider making this an
annual event,

MOTION/VOTE:
Vice Chairperson Garrahan made a motion to have the reception on Friday; November 4 in
Minden and Wednesday, November 9" up at Tahoe and to include the serving of'alcohol,

It was suggested by public comment that in the motion the word alcohol should not be used as it
gives the misconception that the library will be serving hard liquor.

Vice Chairperson Garrahan amended the motion to say wine and not alcohol.

Trustee Doughty made a second as amended. There beingno public comment, the motion
carried unanimously with a 4-0 vote.

10. DISCUSSION ON RESCHEDULING THE AUGUST 23, 2022 LIBRARY BOARD OF
TRUSTEE’S MEETING.

Chairperson Martin Maier stated'that because the board had to reschedule the July meeting to
August there were some thoughts by some of the trustees whether the board should still have the
regularly scheduled meeting on the 23™ or wait and have the next meeting in September. Trustee
Rogers noted that the board should still have the regular meeting on the 23 because the public is
already aware of this meeting. Director DeGhelder suggested that rather than hold a regular
meeting on the 23" Dr. Steinmann could conduct the fourth workshop on the strategic plan that
day rather than having a special meeting for the workshop. After a lengthy discussion the board
decided to hold the fourth strategic planning workshop on the day of the regular board meeting in
August if Dr. Steinmannis available.

MOTION/VOTE:

Vice Chairperson Garrahan made a motion to try and schedule a workshop with Dr. Steinmann
on the regularly scheduled meeting on August 23™ from 9:00 to 11:00 A.M and if he is not
available for that, the board will cancel that meeting and schedule the workshop for September
when he’s available. Trustee Doughty made a second. There being no public comment, the
motion carried unanimously with a 4-0 vote.

11. LIBRARY DIRECTOR’S MONTHLY REPORT ON LIBRARY OPERATIONS AND
STATISTICAL REPORT FROM STAFF.
Director DeGhelder noted that he is thankful to staff for being so flexible and adjusting their
schedule to help cover shifts and programs for staff that have been out. He noted that Larry has
been working with a new company on the library’s fiber optic lines to help reduce costs for



internet services. Tim stated that he completed a survey given to him by the state that will give
the library free hotspots. The company that provides the hotspots will give the library the
equipment for free but the library is responsible for the monthly service fee for each hotspot but
at a lesser amount than what the library is paying for its current hotspots. Tim is working with
Larry to get the company to reduce those costs and add more hotspots to the library’s collection.
Tim stated that he toured the animal shelter and is working on partnering with them to bring the
animals to the library once a month outside for possible adoptions. He noted that the Food
Closet is interested in accompanying the book mobile on its stops to promote their services and
provide food to the community. They may also give the library canned goods to give to those
who visit the book mobile when it makes its regular stops. He noted that he did the Geneo ghost
tour which helped bring the idea of a new program at the library called Ghost Scouts where
attendees can try to connect with the spirits of the county. He visited with the state library and
the Nevada Library Cooperative to discuss the pros and cons of partnering with other libraries.
More detail on that at a future meeting. He noted that a page is being promoted to a library
technician and this person will help drive the book mobile. He stated that staff is working on a
welcoming brochure to give to patrons when they get a library card which will tell them what the
library offers and other fun facts. This will provide consistency in the information patrons are
given when they first visit the library. He noted that the library has ordered security cameras for
the Minden branch and door counters for the lake branch. The replacement security cameras
from the Minden branch will be installed at the lake. Tim stated that he is working on a master
volunteer list with contact information and has asked staff to take an active shooter course on
NeoGov.

Vanna Bells provided the board with the statistical report fiscal year to date that Laura Treinen
created. She noted that she and Veronica are attending supervisor management training led by
the county. Laura attended last year and has one course to complete. She stated that the youth
supervisor position closed yesterday and she, Laura and Tim will be the hiring committee for that
position.

12. CLOSING PUBLIC COMMENTS.

Trustee Rogers commented that in regards to the Record Courier’s archives and accessibility, she
did locate the information she gave to the board and the interim director and she will provide that
information to Tim and share with him the history. She hopes to rectify the issues that are taking
place and get the archives current.

Allen Rasell commented that the strategic plan is very impressive and that he has never seen a
strategic plan that had sixteen goals and that it is far more than any plan that he has ever seen
which makes it quite daunting. The good news is that they are all quantifiable and easily
tracked. He commented that the board just needs a spreadsheet and a monthly calendar, a
baseline and stakeholders.

MEETING ADJOURNED AT 11:35 AM.



UNAPPROVED
LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES
August 23,2022

ATTENDEES
Library Board Members: Chairperson Heather Martin Maier; Vice Chairperson Kate
Garrahan; Trustees Starla Doughty, Bonnie Rogers, Elizabeth Tattersall

Library Staff: Library Director Timothy DeGhelder; Library Supervisors Laura Treinen, Vanna
Bells; Administrative Services Manager Veronica Hallam, Clerk to the Board

County Staff: Deputy District Attorney Cynthea Gregory

THE MEETING CONVENED AT 9:00 A.M.
1. PUBLIC COMMENTS.
Chairperson Heather Martin Maier asked for public comment:

Veronica Hallam distributed a printed email from Barb Wilson to the board. It will be submitted
as supplemental for public viewing.

There being no further public comment, public comment was closed.

2. DISCUSSION AND REVIEW OF THE DRAFT DOUGLAS COUNTY PUBLIC
LIBRARY STRATEGIC PLAN BY DR. FRED STEINMAN WITH THE
UNIVERSITY OF NEVADA, RENO, COLLEGE OF BUSINESS; INCLUDING BUT
NOT LIMITED TO REVIEW OF THE STRATEGIC PLANNING PROCESS, FINAL
CORE VALUES; MISSION STATEMENT, VISION STATEMENT,
ORGANIZATIONAL STRATEGIC GOALS AND OBJECTIVES, AND FUTURE
ADOPTION OF THE DOUGLAS COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY STRATEGIC PLAN.
(APPROXIMATELY 2 HOURS.) [No Action]

Dr. Fred Steinmann led the workshop on the library’s strategic plan and received questions and
comments from all participants attending. He will gather all the information and update the
current draft.

3. CLOSING PUBLIC COMMENTS.
Chairperson Martin Maier asked for public comment.

There being no public comment, public comment was closed.

MEETING ADJOURNED AT 10:48 A.M.



July 2022 / August 2022 / September 2022

Petty Cash

*Conservation Ambassador

*Amazon

Amazon
*DoCo Procurement Program
*Do Co Procurement Program

Amazon

Amazon
Amazon

Town of Minden

Amazon

DoCo Procurement Program

*Maverick

Petty Cash

Amazon

Mango

Amazon

*Baker & Taylor

Lib. Board of Trustees Mtg a/27/22

Consent Calendar
Agenda tem 44

Gift Fund Claims

Refreshments for SRP Board Game
Night, membership entrance fee for
Chamber BofD installation Dinner

SRP Wild Things Performance Finale,
7/28/22

items for storytime crafting; items for
Tiny Art Show

Items for Tiny Art Shaow
items for Adult Crafters’ Club
items for Science Club

Tiny Art Show items; items for movie
showings

Items for Tiny Art Show
Items for Tiny Art Show

CVIC Hall rental for Paranormal
investigation Ghost Scouts Program

items for Knit & Crochet Club

Chamber’'s membership luncheon;
ltems for Tiny Art Show

Refreshments for The Council Mtg
8/17/22

Empioyee Recognition; Rotary Club
Membership fee for 2 annual Bill
Henderson memorial golf tournament
Buttons for programs & events

Mango Conversations Enterprise
Annual subscription

Items for Tiny Art Show

Books for 2™ Wednesday Book Grp

*Funding/partial funding by Friends of the Library

04177

04181

04183
04196
04203

04204

04207
04210

04216

04222

04226

04228

04230

04233

04235

04238
04240

PO0093

$61.46

$ 850.00

$251.97
$ 988.55
$107.76

$45.38

$139.50
$311.76

$51.96

$ 50.00

$33.88

$75.38

$18.22

$33.38

$84.88

$ 3,000.00
$311.97
$298.05



GIFT FUND EXPENDITURES REPORT FY 22-23

91922022
Litrary

|Vandor Vouchsr_{Date rams |Matsrials  |AN Cthers  INotes
Swank Movie Licensing 4070 4/8/2022 370.83 Movie Ii Mavie 8 Tahos (FOL} 5122-4/30/23 FY22-23
Swank Movie Licensing 415 8/28/2022 11,438.00 |Mwla licansing movie showing Minden (FOL) 7/1/22-8/30/23 FY22-23
Amazon 4183 71812022 22.54 Hams for Tween Art program
Do Co Py 1 P m___ 4128 71112022 780.38 |MLA Tri-Canfarence thres right hotal axpensa - LD, Missoula MT 8/3-8/8/22
Do Co Procurement Program __|4158 7/5/2022  [104.83 | AduRt Prizes for summer rasding
Amazon 4174 71872022 1192.51 54.87 |s192.51 DLT Toa Party program: $54.67 Tiny Art Show

$21.48 refreshments for SRP Board Gama Night; $40 membership entry fes for the
Petty Cash 4177 718/2022 |21.48 40.00 Chamber's Bosrd of Qirectors installaticn Dinner - TD
Amaren 4182 7/25/2022 122423 27.74 $224 23 itema for programming; $27.74 canvases for Tay At Show
Consarvation Ambassadors. Inc [4181 71252022 _ 1850.00 — SRP Wid Things Performance Finale, 7/26/2022 (FOL)
Amazon_ 4156 B/3/2D22 988.55 Director avent Tiny Art Show
Do Co Procurement Program 4203 B/4/2022 107.78 Adult Crafters’ Club (FOL)
Amazon 4207 B8/16/2022_ 135.58 103.82 3103 .62 Diractor event Tiny Art Show: $35.58 ems for movie showings
Armazon 4210 8/18/2022 311.76 Dirsttor avent Tiny An Show
| Amazon 4218 8232022 51.88 Director event Tiny Art Show
Do Co Procurament Program 14204 8/4/2022  145.38 Jtems for Science Club (FOL) - purchased 8/28/2022
Town of Minden 4222 |&'29I202 2 |50.00 |Civic Hall rental for Parancrmal Invesiigation (Ghost Scouts program)
|Amazon 4228 8302022 _|33.88 Kt and Crochst Club {(yam winder)

$20.80 Employes recogritien; $30 Rotary Clum 18th Hole R ion (2nd
Petty Cash 4233 8/1/2022 58.80 annual Bil Henderson Memorial Golf Tournament)
Amazon 4235 9/8/2022 184.88 Butions for programs and events
Maverlk 4230 8/31/2022 [18.22 _ Refreshrents for The Council masting B/17722 (FOL)
Do Co Procurament Program 4228 8/30/2022 7538 $30 Chambsr's membership luncheon: $45.38 iterns for Tiny Art Show
Mango 4238 8/9/2022 3,000.00 Library material (Mango Cor ions Entarprisa Subscrip
Amazon 240 812022 311.97 Tiny Ast Show supples
Baker & Taylor POO0RI |6M5/2022 |208.05 2nd Wednasday Book Group (FOL)

Grand Total:
TOTALS 3.807.05 {3.00000 |280541 |§9,703.36

Programs_ |Materials |AII others |$9,703.38

LAShared staff fNles\Financia\FYZZZNGIR Fund 222G Fund Expandiures Report 2223 rsx




Lib. Board of Trustees Mtg 9/27/22

Agenda Item #5a
Douglas County Public Library

Budget Summary % of Fiscal Year

Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Month End  7/31/2022 8.3%

EXPENDITURE ACCOUNTS

Salaries & Wages

Budgeted Augments Current month Year-to-date % Used

$1,017,345 $54,597 $54,597 5%

Benefits

Budgeted Augments Current month Year-to-date % Used
$488,142 $23,660 $23,660 5%

Services & Supplies

Amend- YTD
Budgeted ments Current month Encumber Year-to-date % Used
$533.514 $43,200 $43,200 5%

Some individual lines are paid only once per year, in July and will therefore show a higher than
expected percentage of disbursements in the early months of a fiscal year.

Capital Outlay **

Amend Amended
Budgeted ments Current Encumber Year-to-date Less YTD % Used
$0 $0 30 $0 50 $0 0%

Capital Projects **  224-804-562-000 & 224-804-564-500
Amended YTD Budget less

Budgeted Budget Current Encumber Year-to-date YTD % Used
30

** These are pass-through accounts. During the year money will be transferred from Services & Supplies
lines or money will be augmented by grant payments. Any single item costing $50,000 or
more will pass through this account. Augmentations are done as needed per fiscal year,

and so these accounts can show a negative balance.




o 4 S22 STBLT 00 ST'BIT 00'000'1 00 00°000'T PR 025
66'PLT 51 10W05°1 BE'L9T 00 66°292 00zLLt 00" D0ZLL'T Wy xof od/abersad 090'025
95'168 +++ (16'v5¥'1) 16'PSH'T 00 1651 00 00" 00 asubg suoydapt S50°0Z5
ey} 5 65'206'59 TPT62'E 00 w6t 00°002°69 o 00°002°69 paigar) Aungd - urishs sandwo) SHI025
SLLET ++ (52'28) SLTE 00 SLZE 00° o 00" Buniusapun weaboug 620°025
00 +++ o o0’ [ory w0 00" [} 00’ SIATINS B SIIAYIS 000°0Z5
SING BSOS
8S'SHE'0Z$ %S OF 28 POVS DL659'€28 00°0% 0L'659'E28 00'2+1°88+$ 00'0$ DO°Z¥1‘B8bS syt syFeg sadopdug
00655 ] 00'6kE'Y 00655 00° 00'655 008029 o 008029 16PN 4 -5a3d 102115
00 o 00°059 oo 00" 00 00059 05 00°059 Ansroas epog S61'T1S
00'S8 0 00'020'% o0° 00" ) 00°020'1 00 00'020'% PUaINS auoyd (123 881°11IS
ealt: ] [ 96'950°F1 W06LL 00" WELL 00°9€R"vE 00 00°9E8'pT JeNpy |ITS
Aty L 166LLF 60°SHE oo BOSKE 00'SZ1'S 00° 00'5ZL'S rRwAndwRU YRI'TIS
£LT6LE £ $E'505'8ET 91°SBL'Y o 91'56¢L"p 00°TOE'EkT o0 00°'T0EEwT aoURINSY] sy EBI'T1S
19°606'T L EPEVI'IZ 15065°T oo £5'G¥5’T 00'¥8T'ET 00" 0081 €2 iy SET0M 81
96°00¢£'ET 5 YULL9'LT 98°0r3'5T 00" 99°0¥9'51 00'BIC'E6Z 00 O0'BTE'ESL Wawany wr-tis
Syausg aoxiuF
Ob'BEETGS %S OE'8bL'296% D£'965'¥S$ 00°0% 0496554 00'SPE'ZT0'TS 00°0$ 00°SHE'£T0'1$ S0 SIBERY B Soperes
oo -+ oo 00 00 3 00 00" 00 Pi0-Spees 666'T1S
00’ A [} o o o0 oo 00 00 Bodeq aaear) xS 81118
589" Rl (6T°0HT°E) 62'0b'E 00 6TORT'E oe o0 o s PTG
0z'166"y +++ {zeBib'a} LEBIP'Y 00 LEBIF'Y 00* 00 00° uogees £LINS
S6'S5L +++ {9652} ¥0'65/ o Y9652 00 00 oo Pled duy LTS
ZEDID'E 4+ (ze8ze'n) TEWU'T o wezLe o0’ 00 o shepion s
00 Aaad o0 3 00 00 00 00 00" awaag oL1TIS
00 +++ 0w 00° 00’ 00 00" [ o madey duwxn &ot'118
£0°568°ST +++ 00 00* 00 00 00’ 00" 00 noieg vonees QT8
00 4+ 00’ 00 00" o 00 o o Bwnsag AepoH 591°115
¥+'000°9E ¥ I6'V68°5L6 80°05 1F 00 BO°0SK' Y OO'SKE'LIOT [y 00'5¥E°£10' sabem § souees DO001S
SPOEM B Saueres
ISHING
leign - 108 Jusuniedag
Areian - pZT puny
QLA €94, J0Kg Py suoppesues) SUOReSUBLL SSOURIqUINOUS suopesuel) yabpng SURLPLBWY Rbpng vopdisag unacry unoxy
P3SN % QLA - Bpng [«173 QA huoy B’y pepuauy whpng padopy

Junosay dnjjoy apnaxy
ZZ/TE/L0 :eQ 0] 434 jeds

Hodoay souewo04iad 196png asuadxg Aieaqi

ALNNOD SY13N04




O1°018'668 S5 H5P'PSE'T$ 96'65b'TZ1$ {15°E16°918) 96°55' 1214 00°100°650'Z$ ‘08 00'100'650°Z8 S{eYe) puRl9

01'018°668 SSBSH'PSETS 96'S5H' 121§ {1S°C16'918) 96°SSH'IZ1S D0 TD0'6SD'TS 00°0% 00'100'650'7% si@oL Adeugr - 2z puny
(01'018°66%) %S {SS'BSL'PSE TS} (96°SSH1ZIS) IS'EN6'9T4 {96'550'121$) (00°T00'650'78)  00'0% (00'100°650'28) _ sieo) Aty - 0B ppunpedag
or'a1g'ess %5 S5°85HV56'T$ 96'55K 1218 (15°E16°01$) 96'55H'121$ 00°100°650°2% 00'03% 00°T00'650°2$ STYLOL 2SH34X3
00°0% +++ 0008 00°0$ 00°0% 0008 00°'0$ 00°0% 00°0% S{e] SPAH/Aeang 1erdes
0o - 00 o0 oo o0 00 0o 00 spdiory jeide) 000295
SBISNLL/ARHNG et

4% 4¥a8] %5 S6'277'4258 95'661'E$ (15°€16'91$) 95°661°ErS 00'P1S'E556 00°0% 00°F15'E5S$ SIBX0L SGANG P SAAARS
00" L 00 o' 0a° o o 00 oy buissaoug pred) upar)-saay ey 001°055
[y +++ o 00 0 00° o 00 o RIS Uarpdiio]) SpMaes Z10°0vS
o 4+t o0 o0 oy 00° o0’ or 00 NG 1§ SNARG-SIED 010°0v5
55215 44 {9v°19) %19 00" 9’19 o0 00 3 spefold RS L1B°EES
£b'BPY 2 261y 8708 o 87'08¢ 00°001°s 00" 00°00% 'S weibosg spnpay W0 EIR'EES
00 o 00°005 0y L o 00°005 oo 00005 waudnby jews Z08'FES
Ikt 61 1289 {7ag }74 00 i {74 00'002°1 o 000021 so|MdngG ao0 DOB'EES
00 +++ 00 00’ o0 oy o 00 oo sodng jeuopmpsut SO0TES
001e [\ 0000011 26697 (z6'690) 6'692 00°000'TT o0 00°000°'TT siepen Buissanoud 15025
19°688'01 9 £HEDR'BIT 9B BR0'PT (6a951'91) 99'8H0'¥T 00952578 or 00'95¢'921 siepae Aexry bS0ZES
29072 9 BLHE'E egiTd 00 (L4174 00°002 'y 00 0000 r 1O ® 529 £00°ZES
00 9 L0'E0'T €696 o £6'96 00°005°T e 00°D0S'T sayddng vone|mun 100°0ES
00 0 DO'PLTSHT 13 o 00 00°PLI°5HT o0 00'bLT'SHE LONESONY 1507 SIS (2GUaD) 005125
W0TH 9¢ BLPER'TL 1128s'e (06°98¥) 11289 00°000°07 [ 00°000°0Z Bubojere) PET'TZS
00'56E 0 00°000'01 00' 00 o 00'000°0F o 0000001 SIS [RUOISSR)0NY 001125
¥6'bLE 4 £0°0L0' L6681 00° L5628 00'00Z'y 00 00°00Z'% sauf] Eleg oFZ'0ZS
00°055 0 00°000°1 00 o 00 00'000'T o 00°000'1 vonenD3 § Gujues) 002025
WUz -t o 00 00 00 00 o0 o U0 IBNIRD v61°025
2 +++ 00" 00 00 00 o 00" 00" sdpsRqUSH 0L1'0%5
00 0 000 o 00 00 00'0£ o0' 00'0L WaUISSISSY THW3 691025
o ] 00°681°0S 1) 00 00 00'681°0§ [ 0068105 aouensuy *0-uuby xspy 951025
80467 ¥ 95'¥SL'D 642 [V LT DOPED'L o 00°bED'L Wauwdinty SaseT] B SHAY 9£1°025
00 0 00°£25 o0 o o0 00°£25 o 00'Les dous a3 UK "UBA 9IT0Z§
00°8EY g 00ZPI"S 0089 00 0089 00°019's o0 0070195 astady 100d KoK FIT02S
00 o DO'SSE'Y 00" o 00 00'558'¢ 00 00558 by wew £01°02S
00'BES'Z 0 02620 o0 00" oo 00°262°0€ 00 00'£62'0F SINARS [RIKTILEL 860025
LBBKE ¢ 96°'$L6'Z wrszi 00 #0'SZE 00'000°E o 00°000'¢ %9 wiew 160°025
TSELE'T of ST'ESH'ST S£7689'T oo 54659 [V 3] 7 4 oo DO'EIT'LT S3AMIN 880025
00' ¥ 0616802 01118 ov or're 00°E0L'IT o 00°€02°'1Z SUOAERURLLALKY) S80°0Z5
00" 5t 95'PER YGL 00" P6L 00'b15 00" 00'¥1S Gupurg B Bunug 8£0'025
00 +H+ (00°bZE) 00'¥2E 00" 00°b2E 00 o 00 Buysruaapy L0028
QLA 83y s0ug poey  suopesuel) SuoesuRsy SSOURMUWIREY suofpesues) 1wbpng SWRBPUAY wbong

109N % QLA - Rbpng QA QA UG RRUN) papuRuyY wbpng paydopy

JUNO22Y dnjjoy apnjax3
T2/T€/£0 21eQ 0} 1e3 |51

Hoday sduew.o19d 396png asuadx3z Aleaqiq




1 j0 1 abeg WY 80:61-0T ZZ0Z/61/60 U0 WjjeH eojuaiap Ag uny
2496088 {81°3E0°5$) 81°8£0°8 00°0% 91°8£0's$ 0008, 00°0s 000% SIR0L pUeIDy
££°5968'8% (81'8€0'5$) BI'BE0'SE 00'08 BI'BEQ'SS 00°'0% 000 0008 Siel0) pung 319 Aeqrl - Se7 puny
(£2°9en'8$) i 81'8£0°c$ (81°8£0'5$) 000 (81°860'63) 0008 0008 0008 SiE10L PUN YD Alelqit - 608 waunedag
LL9ER'ES +4+ {21°8e0's$) BI'8E0°S$ 00°0$ B1'E0'SH 00°0% 00'0% 00'0$ SIVLEOL ISNIdXA
L9608 +++ {81°80'5%) BU'BEQ'SS 00°0% BI'BEQ'SS 00°0% 0004 008 sjei0L suddng § SanAsas
££'9€8'8 44 (gr°8c0's) 81'8E0°S 00' 81'8E0's o0 o 00" punj Yo Aeign T90°ZES
suddng § saBG
ISN3LT
pund Y19 Ateagny - 008 Juaunsedag
pung 19 Aeuqr - SEZ  pung
QLA 123 Jouy PR3y suonoesuRly suofpesuery saueIgunIug suoiesued) 13bpng SUAWPUIURY 1wipng uenduassq Wwnody unoxy
/PaSN % QLA - 196png aLs LA LuO}y JuaLnY) papuawy 19bpng padopy

IUNoJ2y dnyjoy apnpx3
22/1€/L0 1@ 0) Jed, [eIsH

Hoday ssuewiop1dd 39bpng asuadx3z pungd Yo

SY19n040

ALNNQD




1407 afeq WY TT:62:07 Z202/61/60 U0 Wejjey eajuosap Aq uny

(10-v82°0£%) (10'+82'0£$) 00°0% 00'0¢ {10'v82°02$) Sej0) oueeg puny
{10vaz'e) {10°v82'02) 00° oo (1ov8£'02) soueleg puny DO0'EST
aoueed puny
(£5°Z86'9%) (25 28£'1%) 91'050°'E$ T6'990'cS (8T v 13) Sel0L Sapqert Juaun
{£5Z86'9) {eszee'T) o1'0s0'c T6°990'E (8Z°v0b'1) ajgeded Sunocoy 00020
SOUUGET AL
E0TLI LS 0£'910°08% 656 bb'SH ZS'L¥6'91% £2°515'89% SE10) S35Y Juaum)
oo 00" T0'BEG'Y £8'0LE 614957 Fsuadxy predasyg 000551
L9°50E 00°0¢E 98l 68'%6 15°152 2jqenac3y 15 00T'121
SLZOT'T (96'skb'1) 00’ 00 (96°5+b'1} NPy ARI-IUAUGSIAUL 060'101
19 €92 99HELLE 48::: ¥ 06PN L62r1'89 yse) 000°101
S]aS3Y Juaun
pund Y19 Aeiqp) - SET puny
aueeg QLA Fuejeq Buipu3 P ALA G20 ALA puemI0g BDUBER BOAALDSI WA unoy
1e3), Joud

UN0J2Y dnjjoy 2pnjIxXy
bunsn 1e39@
2T/1€/£0 ybnoyy

buiisi] aduejeg jel L pung Ji9




1 Jo 1 abeg WV EVPETT ZZ0Z/6T/60 U0 WEJRH E3U0IIA AG Uny

Lesves'es) 4+ 69'615'T1$ 69°616'T1$ 69'615'1T$ 00'0% (5507} Lren 13N (2101 puesd
12°9t8'8 i {g1°8e0's) BI'BED'S 81°8€0's o SW1O0L 35N3dA
wTwe's ey (¢52ss'91) £8°455°01 28°L55'97 o0 STVIOL INNIAZY
sjei0) puein
44795888 +++ {81'860°c$) 8I'8E0'S$ BI'BE0°SS 0008 STLOL 35NID3
L19E8'8$ 4+ (81'8£0°58) 81'8L0’ss BU'8E0'S 00°0$ S04 pung Y19 Areigr - 008 uauedag
LR s (91°8E0'58) 81°8E0°5$ S1gE0"ss 00°0% SfEI0L SHOTNG | SIS
L4988 +t (81°8€0'S) 8r'8e0's 8I'BEN'S (.13 pung 9 Aserqr) T90°ZES
$34dnG 1§ SPAHNISS
puni Y19 Aseigil - 008 Juauruedsg
IBNINE
W'k 4t {£9'255'91%) £8°155'91% L9'465'91% 00°0% SWLOL 3NNIAY
TETHL'SS +4+ (28°£85'018) £8°455'G1% £9°'£55'91% 00°0% S{E10] @NUAA3Y - 000  Juaumiedag
ZTTPE'SS +++ {ze°255'91%) £8'¢55'91% 28°455'91% 000 SjeI0L FNIBARY SHOSUSIISIY
00'991°s +++ (Br'ogp'al) 81°99b'91 BI'98b'0T 00 SuDnEung ZOT'L9€
SNUIAZY SHOIUBHIISHY
2NU3AIY - OO0  1uslunedsn
ANNIATY
puns 19 Augp) - SET  pung
FNUIADY DadS-|uaiwaacg  adA] pung
spund (udwusdaog  Azobale] puny
0L QLA wbpng JENDY QLA unoury (enyay WAOUNY [enpy unowry ybpng uondHSIA Junoay unmay
FLCYWLTE JLETS 5537 J96png QlA alW aia

ALNNODY SY19n0d

JUNo20Y dnjjoy apnjIx3
bunsi le3aq
Tz/1e/20 ybnoay)

JUSWIAJL]S SWO0dUT pund Pio




Lib. Board of Trustees Mtg 9/27/22.

) Agenda Item #5b
Dougias County Public Library

Budget Summary % of Fiscal Year
Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Month End  8/31/2022 16.6%
EXPENDITURE ACCOUNTS

Saiaries & Wages

Budgeted Augments Current month Year-to-date % Used

$1,017,345 $68,780 $123,377 12%

Benefits

Budgeted Augments Current month Year-to-date % Used
$488,142 $34,029 $57,689 12%

Services & Suppiies

Amend- YTD
Budgeted ments Current month Encumber Year-to-date % Used
$533,514 $20,496 $63,696 31%

Some individual lines are paid only once per year, in July and will therefore show a higher than
expected percentage of disbursements in the early months of a fiscal year.

Capital Outlay **

Amend Amended
Budgeted ments Current Encumber Year-to-date Less YTD % Used
$0 30 $0 $0 $0 $0 0%

Capital Projects ** 224-804-562-000 & 224-804-564-500

Amended YTD Budget less
Budgeted Budget  Current Encumber Year-to-date YTD % Used
$0

** These are pass-through accounts. During the year money will be transferred from Services & Supplies
lines or money will be augmented by grant payments. Any single item costing $50,000 or
more will pass through this account. Augmentations are done as needed per fiscal year,
and so these accounts can show a negative balance.




00 6 LBPTL 19514 o0 899 00-000°T o0 00°000°T PaeiL ¥90'028
25°TKS st 104051 667092 00’ 0f 00°ZLL'T oo 06TLL'T uery xog ad/abersoy 090°025
TUERLT + (Bro1T'T) g9’z 00 £8'199 00 00’ o F5uadxy duoydapy 550075
€5°01L'81 L (g rage:] S8'BL0°S 00' g T 00°002'69 o 00'002°69 PRER) AUNOD - URISAS SBpndwo) 5¥0'02S
SLESH o+ (sezg) Stz 00 00 o0 00 00’ Bupmsapun wesbay 620028
o 4 00 o 00 00 00" 00 00" $ANAdNS ¥ SDIMES 000°025
SHNEING B SONRBS
6b'LT6'5FS %21 DO'ESHOERS 00°689°£54% 00°0% O 620°pES 00°Zr1'88K4 00'0% 007k 19804 siepat sypueg aaloptulg
(V)10 8 i 00°065'S 00'81T'Y 00 00'655 008029 o DO'BOLD TENPH JY-593d 102115
00 0 00059 oy 00 oo 00059 00 00059 Rpnoss e S6TTIS
00'55¢2 8 00°SE6 00's8 00 00's8 00°020°T o0 000701 puadns auoyy |13 68T°T1S
PI165'1 [ ¢ £0°S60°ET £6'00L'T 00 16°196 00°9£8°b1 0 00°9E8'HT 3EAPHY SaETIS
0145 b1 SO'TEY'F $6'769 00 98°2bE 00°5ZT'S 00 (V17487 Ao WRTTIS
ET'059'21 n OT'SE6£Z1 06'59¢€"ST 00’ pL0LS'0T 00°10E°eHT 00 00 TOE'ERT soummsuy dnasg €BT'TIS
or'atL’z €1 LE9T0E €9°£90'€ 00" o Les't 00'481°cC oo’ 00'+HOTE2 QLI SEPIOM TOT'TIS
0b'010'6Z a 669252 65°819'SE 00" ££'L46°61 00'8TE'E6T 00 00°BIE'E6Z WBUBARY 18r11s
SUG SAoNHLT
ST'FIS'EITS %ZI1 O1'996'£683 PR9LE'ETTS 00k b1082'89% 00°SPE'LTOTS 00°0% 00'SKE'LID'TS 501 sa0em § sHEES
o0 4 00" oo 06 o0 o0 oy 00 WSHO-soLeRs 666318
o 4+ 00 oy o0 o0 o 00’ 00 Yoeg anea 4o 8L1°T1S
BTEHI'T 4+ (65'905°9) 65°B05'9 00" 0£'892°E o 00 o0 ms PLT'TTS
£EBPO°ZT 4 {e2'108°e1) Lrtoger 00 OV ERE'L 00 0o 00 uoneEs €&Ins
96°0L2"1 b (1s's51°D) 15745T'T 00 18'26€ oo 00 00 preg thuo) TS
TEDIO'E +++ (zeaze'?) TERLT 0o 00’ 00° 00 00’ sAepioH 141118
o0 4 (e1g) s 00’ s o o 0q E T ] LTS
o0 e+ o oo 00 o0 o0 00 00 wodey duo)y 6917116
£0°S68°5T 4 oo 00 o0 o o oo 0 noAey vores £9T°TIS
oo b 00 [ o oy or 00’ 00 SWNIBAD ALDIOH SOT'TTS
€E'050°6L ot T5°691'B16 BY'SLE'66 0o 0v'STLLS 00°SbE'£10'T 00 00°SHE'LTOT sobepm » saees 000°015
salep ¥ sees
35N3DA
Asexgr] - 08 uRwedag
Asesqn - T pund
QALK s, J0ry P suopdesuel] SUOGIRSUR)L SEOURIGLUIMUY suofesusly 1e0png SjuBtUpUAULY 1e0png Uondh s JURCITY wnoxy
/SN % AL - Jabpng alA ats RO JuRLn) papuauLy 126png padopy

ALNNOD SY191100

Junodoy dnjjoy apnjox3
2Z/1£/80 @3eQ 03 JE3, |e3sly

Hodoy souew.019d 196png asuadxg Ateiqri




IETLLbERS 09729041 WI9L phTs B5'910°80T$ 9S0L'EI$ 00 100'650°2% 00°0% 00°T00'650'28 weo) Areqn - pZT pUng

(96 1LLvETS) LT (09TZT'90L'18) (287194 viEs) (85'510'g01$) {95'SOE'EL1$) (00°'100'650'28)  00°0S {00°100'650°28)  siE@op Aseaqri - poB  weuedaq
9F TLL'vEZS %L1 09'7TT'90L'T$ ZOI9L WS BS"OI0'B0T$ 9BSOC'EZTS 00°'100'650°Z$ 00 00°100°650'2$ 5TVL01 ISN3E
00'0% +++ 00°0% 0008 00 00°0% 00°0% 000 00°0d eI SN/ Aenng jende
oo +++ o0 00" () 00" 00 00 00 spajald (epded 000795
soefaid/fenng repde]
2OPEE LS HIE b 108 TBES 86°669'£9% B5"910°8018 TH'964'02S 00°p15°£55% 00°0% 00 +15'E55% 501 SHNANG B SANADS
ZLVE 4+ {e5 9} £5'9¢€ oo £5°9F o0 00" 00 Burssanosd pre) ypan-ssay yueg 0017055
oo 4 00" 00 o0 o0 3 00 o URID LI PSS 7005
00 +++ o 00 o0 00 or o 00" SHIdNS 7 SAAIDS-SIURI) 010°065
S57C1S e+t {9z'0eT) 9z'0et 00" 08'89 00 o o0 spafoud fews LIBEES
89°069 6 1+'859'p 65° it 00’ I£'19 00°001T'S 0o 0070015 weiboug S1Npasd 0o ET8'EES
00 0 00005 o o oo 00°005 00" 00°'005 Wwewdnby jews Z0R'EES
Lr'Lpt 133 TLeom :raf 0o §5°591 00002'1 00" 00002t sayddng 200 O08°EES
00 ++ 00 00" oy o oo o 00' sayjddng reuoamAsy S90°ZES
7978 89 00°005°€ 9TE0S b2'966'0 PEEET 00°'000'TT oo 00°000°1T sfeuAe Burssaooy £507E5
Sk'089'08 001 fra: ve'289'62 68°664'96 86°8€9°S 00°95£'928 o 00'96£'92T sjeuen Aexgn ¥50°2€S
£LUs 6 SETHE'E SO°/SE oy E+'20T 00002 00’ 00°00Z' 10 % 529 00265
o 9 LO'EDK'T £6'06 0 oo 00°00S'T oo 00°005'T saking vonerur 100°0ES
oy 0 00'PLT'SHT o0 00 00' OO bLT'SHT 00 00°bLT'SHT LOR)ECON [ 3507} SIAG [ENU) 005°128
7£'999'1 19 6LBLL'L 9T0LL SHEIS ST'6k 00700007 00 00°000°02 Buboyme) PET'TIZS
00°56E 0 0000001 00 00 00’ 00°000°01 00 00°000°01 SI0IAIBG [BUOISS3)0L] 001°125
06’9 9 WOLE'E $6'65C o0 L6'6ZT 00002y o 00'00Z'p sun eeg o0z
007055 0 00"000°T 00 (g 00 00°000'T 00" 00000t voewnpy g Bujes) 002025
ey +++ o 00 oy 00 o0 0 00" SO SNIRD) Y61'0Z8
00 i+ 00" 00 00 00 00" o 00" SOUS FquRY 0£1'028
00 0 00°0L 00 00 06" 00°0L o 0oL WBUISSISSY Gl 691°026
00 0 00°681°08 00 o o 00°681°05 00’ 00'681°08 a0URINSUT *0- Wbl X1 951025
£5°885 b 95'¥52°0 v 6T 00 oo 00°bE0°L 00 00'PED'L Wby s9se) B Sy 9£1°025
o 0 00'zs 00 00° [y 007225 00 00'£25 dous 0 1Rl “RA o11°025
85'81S 8 00°21's 00°B9F o 0o 00°019'5 00" 00°019's asuarhay (00d K000 PLT0ZS
002651 0 00'558'F o0 o0 o0 00'S58 o0 o0°sse'y dinb3 Jujeny 201028
00'020'S (i 00°¢620¢ 00' 00" 00 00 L6208 o0 00°¢62'0F SENARIS [eY R UeL 860°02S
SKHOE v 86'bA'T 12741 o oo 00°000°E 00 00°000'E %8 ey 160°025
95°0LE'Y Fid [hriyed 19°585° 0o 90'9Z6°'T DOETV'LT o 00'E1T'LZ sHNRN 880028
95'v6b I SLSTH'TT STLHT'0Y 00" ST'9I4'6 00°E0L'12 00 00'€0£'TT SUORENUNLILOD $B60ZS
o sk 09182 O¥'ZET 00 967751 00415 o0 00'b1S Buiping g Bupwd 8L0°0ZS
00'6k9 ++ {00°¢Zt) 00'bZE 00" o 00 00 00 DursRapy L0025
QLA JE34 JO1y Py suonoesues) suofIestelL STHRIGUINIUT suofpesuel | 1bpng AUBDEHLY +bpng uondioseQ WnaDy noy
/Pesn o, Al - 1@0png aLk a 1L JUALI) PRpUBUY wbpng paydogry

ALNNOD

JUnOJ2Y dnjjoy apndx3
Z2Z/T£/80 21eq 0] JeaA |easy

Hoday sduew.i0L19d 196png asuadxy Ateaqi




T 4o 1 obed WY 9EHZ:0T ZZ0Z/6T/60 U0 WejjeH ejuosap Aq uny

ZLovTILs (r6°65+'9%) 16'65+9$ 00°0% EL1ZV'T$ 0008 00°0% oo0% SIn0L puesn
ZIHWTTI$ (16'656'9%) 1665094 000 ELTTH'T 00°0% 00°0% 0008 SIFI0L pund Yin Aveaqpy - SEZ  puny
(Zi9vz'1Ys) 44 16'651'9$ (16°65+'9%) 0008 (E27121'18) 00°0% 00'0% 0008 SO pung Yio Adeqit - 008 wawuedag
48 T ¢ +++ {16°65¢"9%) 16°65¢'9% 00°0% ££'120°1$ 00'0% 00'0% 00°0% SIVLOL ISNILD
[4%: 44t s (16'650"9%) 16°650'9% 00'0% ELTEH'TS 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% SIEJ0L SHadnG | SaNARS
WY +++ (16°65+9) 16°651'9 00 ELTZHY 00 oo 00" pung yo Aeiqry 190725
Sonddng B SENAS
ELEE el
puns 4o Aseaql - 0og  wswedag
pund UI9 Aeiqn - g2 pung
QLA eay Joud poey suofpesuety suogoesuer) STIRIGWINDU] suoresuRly 16png SJURALPRY ¥w6png vordiosaq wnary wnooy
/P3SN % QLA - 18bpng aLs s ol Waun) papuaury 136png padopy

ALNNOD SY1H104

Junoddy dnjjoy apnax3
Z2/1£/80 @12Q 01 JeaA |eds

Hodoay aouewIoLidd 196png asuadx3y pungd Yio




140 7 afied WY LPITE0T ZZOZ/6T/60 UO WejjeH edluosap Aq uny

(10'v82'0¢$) (10°+82'0£8) 00'0% 0008 (10'v82'028) SEI0Y oUEIPG Ui
(10'v82'02) (10'v82'02) 00 o0 (rove'o) souRieg puny 000°€ST
aouereg pund
{SE'6SE'ZS) {va'58%) 68'TL'YS ££'062'5% (B7'v04'1$) STIOL SANGEST IUILHT)
(SE'6SE'D) (@58} 68 1Lb'Y EED6L'S (82'v0b'1) dqedeq SUNaINY 000202
SBUNGE] JUALND
v9'BL6'20% £8°558'2L% ££'£92'8% ER'E0OLLS LL515'89% SIEJ0Y SIASSY JUALNT)
00 o0 T0'BE6'T 3:41733 61'295'; asuadxy predauy 000°55T
06'#0E SE'ERT SE'601 £2°101 L5152 JYeARORS 1524a] poT"1Z1
SLT0LT (96'Skb'T) 00’ 00’ (96'5p%'1) 1NIPY AWJ-luBunsaaug 060°10T
660£5'99 88'250°6 9E'HZTY LTIEVLT L6TPT'B9 ysed 000'101
SASSY Juann)
PUN 14D AHMGET - SET  Puny
auejeg LA auejeg Buipuy SUpaId dlA R ALA Piesmicg ouejeg uofdinsaq uNooY wRooDY
g3 Joud

ALNNOD SY19n04a

Junoday dnjjoy apnjax3
bunsi |1eeq
Z2/1£/80 ybnoayy

bunisi] aduejegq jel] pund Yio




140 1 3beq WY 8Z:6¥:TT 2Z02/6T/60 U0 We(|eH eHUoIBA AQ umy

aﬂﬁ.t.: 's$) +++ ¥6'05'01$ b6 F95'01$ \Fn.&ma 00'0% (s507) ueD 9N 1101 pues)
TUHT'I 4+ (15'£55°9) 15°£55°9 £E'STS'T o SWAOL 35N3dX
ob°180'9 T {(sgrren SPBIELT 85095 o0 STIOL 3NNIAZY
510 pues
AN Tt t] it {15'£55'9%) TS'E55'9% EESISTS 00°0% STV.1OL 35N3dxa
RIS 444+ (15°€55'98) 15°€55'9% £ESTST$ 00'08 Sieo) pund Y1 Alesqri - 008 wawskedag
[4% 74 it {15°€55'9$) 15°E55°0% £E51S'T$ 00'0$ S04 SHAdNS § SBNAISS
TRl P (15°£55°9) 15°€55'9 EE'STST 00 pung w9 Aeign) T90°ZE5
SRS | SIS
puni o Aieaqry - OB Waipsedag
NI
0v'180'9% it (sbB1E'£1$) SKRIT'ZIS gc09s% 00°0% SWL0L 3NNIAY
0b'180'0% +4+ {st'g11°218) SPBIT'LIS 85°095% 0oos S|B0) INUIADY - 000 WRwiedag
00 180°0% ++t (5p'BIT'£18) SEEIT'LTS 850958 00°0$ SRIDL FWANIY STONIEYIIT
PLPEG'S +4+ {9z°9z0'21) 9£°920°L1 85095 o' suoneuog TOUL9E
SNUBABY SHOITHIISTW
INUBAIY - 000  wawedag
INNAATY
pund Yo Auesgry - Sg7  puny
INUIADY IAS-|EIUAUWIRAGY  3dA| puny
SpUMY |EJLBRILLIBADS  Aabae]) pundy
1901 QLA 16png ey aLA wnowy [enpy wnoury ey RO 136png uondunsaq Wnoaay wnaoy
1895, J0ud Jo g ss 190png (417} LW 17N

ALNNOD 5v19n0Q

JUnod2Yy dnyjoy apn|Ix3

bunsi J1e1aq

TT/1€/80 ybnoy

Jusuiajels sawoduy pung yio




|
TECHNICAL REPORT

UCED xxxx/xx-xx

A STRATEGIC PLAN FOR THE DOUGLAS COUNTY PUBLIC
LIBRARY FOR 2022 THROUGH 2027: THE CORE VALUES,
MISSION AND VISION STATEMENTS, AND STRATEGIC
GOALS

X
|
UNIVERSITY OF NEVADA, RENO
|


http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/File:Map_of_Nevada_highlighting_Lyon_County.svg

A STRATEGIC PLAN FOR THE DOUGLAS COUNTY PUBLIC
LIBRARY FOR 2022 THROUGH 2027: THE CORE VALUES,
MISSION AND VISION STATEMENTS, AND STRATEGIC
GOALS

Frederick A. Steinmann

Frederick Steinmann is an Assistant Research Professor with the University Center for
Economic Development, College of Business at the University of Nevada, Reno.

June 2022

il



This publication, 4 Strategic Plan for the Douglas County Public
Library for 2022 through 2027: The Core Values, Mission and
Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals, was published by the
University Center for Economic Development in the College of
Business at the University of Nevada, Reno. This publication's
statements, findings, conclusions, recommendations, and/or data
represent solely the findings and views of the authors and do not
necessarily represent the views of Douglas County, the Douglas
County Public Library, the University of Nevada, Reno, or any
reference sources used or quoted by this study. Reference to
research projects, programs, books, magazines, or newspaper
articles does not imply an endorsement or recommendation by the
authors unless otherwise stated. Correspondence regarding this
document should be sent to:

Frederick A. Steinmann, DPPD
University Center for Economic Development
University of Nevada, Reno
The College of Business
Mail Stop 204
Reno, Nevada 89557
Phone: 775.784.1655

UCED
University of Nevada, Reno
University Center for Economic Development
The College of Business

il



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Table of Contents

List of Figures

Acknowledgements

Douglas County Public Library Strategic Plan for 2022 through 2027

1.0 Introduction
Overview

2.0 Review of the Organizational and Environmental Assessment and the SWOT
Analysis

2.1 Evaluating Existing Organizational Culture
2.2 Evaluating Organizational Characteristics
2.3 Evaluating Organizational Accomplishments and Challenges
2.4 An Updated Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities, and Threats Analysis
2.4.a Strengths of the Douglas County Public Library
2.4.b Weaknesses of the Douglas County Public Library
2.4.c Opportunities for the Douglas County Public Library
2.4.d Threats Facing the Douglas County Public Library

3.0 Evaluating Elements of the Existing Strategic Plan

3.1 Evaluating the Existing Core Values
3.2 Evaluating the Existing Mission Statement
3.2.a Identifying Informational, Recreational, and Cultural Needs
3.2.b Who the Library Services, Core Functions, and Performance of
Core Functions
3.3 Evaluating the Existing Goals and Objectives
3.3.a Evaluating the Progress Made Related to Existing Organizational
Strategic Goal No. 1
3.3.b Evaluating the Progress Made Related to Existing Organizational
Strategic Goal No. 2

4.0 Development of Core Values, Strategic Mission and Vision, and Strategic
Objectives

iv

vi

14
19
20
21
22
24
25

28
28
31
31
35

38
39

41

46

v



4.1 Development of a List of Core Organizational Values

4.2 Development of an Organizational Strategic Mission Statement

4.3 Development of an Organizational Strategic Vision Statement

4.4 Development of a Set of Strategic Goals, Objectives, and Activities

5.0 A Strategic Plan for the Douglas County Public Library, 2022 through 2027

5.1 Core Values of the Douglas County Public Library
5.2 Strategic Mission of the Douglas County Public Library
5.3 Strategic Vision of the Douglas County Public Library
5.4 Strategic Goals of the Douglas County Public Library
5.4.a Operations, Programs, Resources, and Services Strategic
Organizational Goals
5.4.b Facility Improvements Strategic Organizational Goals
5.4.c Community Outreach and Engagement Strategic Organizational
Goals
5.5 An Accompanying Implementation Plan for Each Strategic Organizational
Goal
5.5.a Implementation Elements and Actionable Items for the Operations,
Programs, Resources, and Services (OPRS) Goals
5.5.b Implementation Elements and Actionable Items for the Facility
Improvements (FI) Goals
5.5.c Implementation Elements and Actionable Items for the Community
Outreach and Engagement (COE) Goals
5.6 Benchmarks for the Douglas County Public Library’s Strategic Plan for 2022
through 2027
5.7 Liking Elements of the Douglas County Public Library’s Strategic Plan to the
Strategic Plan of Douglas County and Other Planning Documents
5.7.a Consideration of the Douglas County Public Library Organizational
Assessment (September 2021)
5.7.b Consideration of the Douglas County Fiscal Year 2018 through
Fiscal Year 2022 Strategic Plan (June 2017)

46
49
51
57

60

60
62
62
63
63

64
65

65



LIST OF FIGURES

2.1

2.2

23

24

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

2.11

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

4.1

If this organization were a person, what would it be like and why? Douglas
County Public Library

If this organization were a car, what would it be like and why? Douglas County

Public Library

If we put a musical score to the daily activity of this organization, what would

it sound like and why? Douglas County Public Library
What do you like about Douglas County and your community?

What do you dislike about Douglas County and your community?

What do you like about the Douglas County Public Library (as an organization)?

What do you dislike about the Douglas County Public Library (as an
organization)?

Organizational Strengths of the Douglas County Public Library
Organizational Weaknesses of the Douglas County Public Library
Potential Opportunities for the Douglas County Public Library
Potential Threats Facing the Douglas County Public Library

What are the informational needs of the citizens of Douglas County?
What are the recreational needs of the citizens of Douglas County?
What are the cultural needs of the citizens of Douglas County?

Who does the Douglas County Public Library serve?

What are the Douglas County Public Library’s core functions?

How does the Douglas County Public Library perform its core functions and
deliver programs, resources, and services?

What are your personal hopes and aspirations for Douglas County as a
community for the next five years?

14

16

18

21

23

24

26

32

33

34

35

36

37

52

vi



4.2

4.3

4.4

What are your personal hopes and aspirations for the Douglas County Public
Library over the next five years?

What are your personal hopes and aspirations for Douglas County as a

community for the next 20 to 30 years?

What are your personal hopes and aspirations for the Douglas County Public
Library over the next 20 to 30 years?

53

54

55

vii



ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Adopted by the Douglas County Public Library Board of Trustees on xx, xx, Xxxx

Heather Martin Maier
Kathryn Garrahan
Starla Doughty
Elizabeth Tattersall

Bonnie Rogers

Douglas County Public Library Strategic Planning Workshops
Douglas County Public Library Strategic Planning Workshop No. 1
November 19, 2021 and November 20, 2021

Douglas County Public Library Strategic Planning Workshop No. 2
January 28, 2022 and January 29, 2022

Douglas County Public Library Strategic Planning Workshop No. 3
April 2, 2022

Douglas County Public Library Strategic Planning Workshop No. 4
August 23, 2022

A special thank you to everyone that attended and participated in these strategic planning
workshops.

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 1 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



Douglas County Public Library Strategic
Plan for 2022 through 2027

Core Values

Freedom of Access and Information, Stewardship and Accountability, Equitable Service and
Treatment, Quality Service, Community Engagement, and Professional Development

Mission

The Douglas County Public Library meets the informational, educational, recreational and
cultural needs of the people of Douglas County by providing a comprehensive and high quality
collection of materials, programs, services and technology.

We actively engage in community outreach by providing a relevant and diverse collection aimed
at serving the existing, evolving and changing needs and wants of everyone who uses the Library
and depends on the Library for educational, social, personal and professional development.

Vision

Over the next five years, the Douglas County Public Library is committed to the broader goal of
building a truly literate and informed community where existing, evolving and changing
individual educational, informational, recreational and cultural needs and wants are met.

The Douglas County Public Library will become a trusted and definitive place for all people and
a primary gateway of educational, informational, recreational, and cultural activities by offering
a welcoming and inviting place for people to use, striving to routinely improve and enhance the
collection of materials, programs, services and technology, and by working collaboratively with
community stakeholders.

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 2 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



Douglas County Public Library Strategic
Plan for 2022 through 2027

Organizational Goals — Operations, Programs, Resources, and Services

OPRS Goal No. 1: Within six months to a year of adoption of this five-year strategic plan, the
Douglas County Public Library will successfully and measurably expand overall participation in
the existing Summer Reading Program.

OPRS Goal No. 2: By 2025, the Douglas County Public Library will increase overall
attendance at and participation in the Library’s various youth programs by 80 percent.

OPRS Goal No. 3: The Douglas County Public Library will successfully develop and
implement at least five new programs designed to serve identified underserved populations
including, but not limited to, specific racial and ethnic populations by December 2027.

OPRS Goal No. 4: The Douglas County Public Library will successfully develop and deliver
different programs, resources, and services, with explicit methodologies for implementation,
designed to address the existing and evolving technology needs of adults by December 2027.

OPRS Goal No. 5: Over the next five years, the Douglas County Public Library will increase
overall library usage by 5 percent each year.

OPRS Goal No. 6: Over the next five years, the Douglas County Public Library will seek out
and attempt to secure grant funding opportunities in order to support Library programs,
resources, and services.

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 3 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



Douglas County Public Library Strategic
Plan for 2022 through 2027

Organizational Goals — Facility Improvements

FI Goal No. 1: Within six months to a year of adoption of this five-year strategic plan, the
Douglas County Public Library will develop expanded teen and young adult services and a
dedicated space.

FI Goal No. 2: By 2024, the Douglas County Public Library will hire a firm to renovate and
reconfigure the existing space at the Minden Library and at the Lake Tahoe Branch in order to
improve overall program, resource, and service delivery.

FI Goal No. 3: By 2025, the Douglas County Public Library will develop a dedicated space for
programming and education in order to support the development of a supporting technology
curriculum.

FI Goal No. 4: By December 2027, the Douglas County Public Library will complete the
planning and begin the development of facility improvements needed to support additional
program, resource, and service development.

FI Goal No. 5: By the end of this five-year strategic planning horizon, the Douglas County
Public Library will complete the plans for and begun implementation of a new branch library, the
renovation of the current Minden Branch, or some combination dependent upon resource
availability.

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 4 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



Douglas County Public Library Strategic
Plan for 2022 through 2027

Organizational Goals — Community OQutreach and Engagement

COE Goal No. 1: Within six months of adoption of this strategic plan, the Douglas County
Public Library will develop a comprehensive public relations campaign which will include staff
training on the development and execution of various marketing strategies.

COE Goal No. 2: By the end of 2023, the Douglas County Public Library will expand its
existing partnership and engagement with the Washoe Tribe to include participation in Tribal
events.

COE Goal No. 3: Using existing metrics, the Douglas County Public Library will significantly
and measurably increase overall public perception and engagement by 2024.

COE Goal No. 4: By December 2027, the Douglas County Public Library will increase the total
number of active community partnerships with Douglas County stakeholders to a minimum
target of ten new partnerships.

COE Goal No. 5: Over the next five years, the Douglas County Public Library will increase
overall participation in community events and activity outreach and engage with various
stakeholders and community organizations in order to more effectively promote Library

programs, resources, and services.

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 5 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



1.0 Introduction

Overview

What is strategy? According to John E. Gamble, Margaret A. Peteraf, and Arthur A. Thompson,
in their 2015 book, Essentials of Strategic Management: The Quest for Competitive Advantage,
“A strategy is a way of describing how you are going to get things done. It is less specific than
an action plan (which tells the who-what-when); instead, it tries to broadly answer the question,
‘How do we get there from here?” Do we want to take the train? Fly? Walk?” In short, a
strategic plan provides an organization with a fundamental affirmation of the organization’s core
values, strategic mission, and strategic vision while outlining the goals, objectives, and
implementation measures the organization will attempt to achieve and implement over the
strategic planning horizon.

Typically, a strategic plan includes three basic elements. First, the strategic plan is a recognition
of the existing barriers an organization faces and the resources the organization has at its disposal
to achieve strategic objectives. Second, the strategic plan is generally tied to an overall vision,
mission, and a set of clearly defined objectives. And, third, the strategic plan provides direction
to the organization for the organization’s future planned initiatives focusing on providing
information, enhancing support, removing barriers, and providing resources to different parts of
the organization and key stakeholders who have an interest in the achievement of the strategic
plan.

When evaluating and developing a strategic plan, five basic questions must be answered,
including:

e Does the strategic plan give overall direction to the organization? The strategic plan
should point out the overall path without dictating a particular narrow approach.

e Does the strategic plan realistically fit available resources with identified opportunities?
The strategic plan should take advantage of current resources and assets while embracing
new opportunities for growth and success.

e Does the strategic plan minimize existing and future resistance and barriers the
organization currently confronts and may have to address in the future? The strategic
plan should keep in mind that opposition and resistance to implementation of the strategic
plan is inevitable. Good strategic plans should attract allies and deter opponents.

e Does the strategic plan reach those that may be affected, positively and negatively, by
implementing the strategic plan? The strategic plan should connect the intervention with

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 6 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



those who it should benefit while minimizing potential negative impacts to those
impacted by the plan.

e Does the strategic plan advance the strategic mission of the organization? The strategy
should make a difference on the mission of the organization while enabling the
organization to achieve stated goals and objectives.

Unlike strategic plans for private sector firms, the strategic plans of local governments and
public agencies, such as the Douglas County Public Library, cannot be separated from the
community and environment in which the organization operates. As part of its strategic plan, the
Douglas County Public Library strives to improve organizational efficiency and effectiveness
while improving public accountability and responsibility. However, as part of the community in
which it operates, the Douglas County Public Library is aware of the existing culture and
community identity of the area and strives to expand and improve the organization’s provision
and delivery of public services as the community continues to grow and change.

In 2021, the Douglas County Public Library contracted with the University Center for Economic
Development, part of the College of Business at the University of Nevada, Reno, to assist in the
development of a new five-year organizational strategic plan for 2022 through 2027. As part of
this initiative, University Center for Economic Development faculty facilitated four separate
strategic planning workshops. These workshops were held in Minden, Nevada on November 19,
2021 and November 20, 2022 (Strategic Planning Workshop No. 1), January 28, 2022 and
January 29, 2022 (Strategic Planning Workshop No. 2), on April 2, 2022 (Strategic Planning
Workshop No. 3), and on August 23, 2022 (Workshop No. 4). Workshop participants at each of
these strategic planning workshops included current employees of the Douglas County Public
Library, members of the Friends of the Douglas County Public Library, members of the Douglas
County Public Library Board of Trustees, and other invited stakeholders.

The first strategic planning workshop for the Douglas County Public Library, held on Friday,
November 19, 2021 and Saturday, November 20, 2021, provided participants the opportunity to
complete a comprehensive evaluation of the existing Douglas County Public Library’s Long
Range/Strategic Plan for 2011 through 2022, including an evaluation of the existing core values,
beliefs, and organizational commitments, an evaluation of the current strategic mission
statement, and an evaluation of the revised goals and objectives from 2019. Workshop
participants were also asked to complete a general evaluation of existing internal and external
conditions, including evaluating area and regional socio-demographic, economic, housing, and
industry and occupation sector data for Douglas County and for the northwestern Nevada region.
In addition to evaluating existing organizational culture and existing community and
organizational conditions, workshop participants were given the opportunity to complete a
revised Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities, and Threats (SWOT) analysis for the Douglas
County Public Library.

For the second strategic planning workshop, held on Friday, January 28, 2022 and Saturday,
January 29, 2022, workshop participants were given the opportunity to further refine a new set of
organizational core values that had been initially developed during the first strategic planning
workshop held in November 2021. Workshop participants were also given the opportunity to

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 7 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



draft a new five-year strategic mission statement and a new five-year strategic vision statement
for the Douglas County Public Library and to draft a set of new organizational strategic goals
tied to the draft strategic mission and vision statements developed during the second strategic
planning workshop. As part of the new five-year organizational strategic goals, workshop
participants were asked to develop a set of actionable items and implementation measures for
each new organizational strategic goal. For the third strategic planning workshop, held on
Saturday, April 2, 2022, workshop participants were given the opportunity to further refine the
final set of new core values, new mission statement, new vision statement, and new set of
organizational strategic goals. During the fourth strategic planning workshop, held on Tuesday,
August 23, 2022, workshop participants were given the opportunity to make final revisions to the
core values, new mission statement, new vision statement, and the new stet of organizational
strategic goals developed during the previous workshops.

This University Center for Economic Development technical report summaries the work
completed by workshop participants who participated in the first, second, and third strategic
planning workshops held in November 2021, January 2022, and April 2022 and also includes the
various revisions made to the final set of core values, to the new mission and vision statements,
and to the final set of new strategic goals made during the fourth strategic planning workshop
held in August 2022. A separate University Center for Economic Development technical report,
“A Strategic Plan for the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Results of the
Community Assessment”, summarizes some of the work completed during the first strategic
planning workshop held in November 2021. This separate University Center for Economic
Development technical report also contains a comprehensive summary and analysis of the socio-
demographic, economic, housing, and industry and occupation sector data collected and analyzed
as part of this strategic planning process, a summary and analysis of a comprehensive
community needs summary completed between September 2, 2021 and October 22, 2021, and a
summary of nearly 100 hours of facilitated one-on-one stakeholder interviews completed by
University Center for Economic Development faculty.

Section 2.0 presents a summary of the organizational and environmental assessment of the
Douglas County Public Library completed by workshop participants during parts of the first and
second strategic planning workshops. Section 3.0 of this University Center for Economic
Development technical report presents a comprehensive summary of the Douglas County Public
Library’s existing organizational strategic plan including the Library’s existing core values,
existing mission statement, and existing goals and objectives. Section 4.0 presents a summary of
the initial development of a set of new organizational core values and a summary of the initial
development of a new strategic mission statement, new strategic vision statement, and a new set
of organizational strategic goals. Section 5.0 presents the various elements of the Douglas
County Public Library’s new five-year organizational strategic plan including the final core
values and noble cause, the new strategic mission statement and strategic vision statement, the
final new organizational strategic goals and an accompanying action plan and implementation
plan. Each element of Section 5.0 will be evaluated annually based upon the elements outlined
in the accompanying action plan and implementation plan.

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 8 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



2.0 Review of the Organizational and
Environmental Assessment and the SWOT
Analysis

Workshop participant who attended and participated in the first and second strategic planning
workshops held in November 2021 and January 2022, completed a comprehensive set of
organizational and environmental assessment including a revised Strengths, Weaknesses,
Opportunities, and Threats (SWOT) analysis. This section of this University Center for
Economic Development technical report presents a comprehensive summary of this completed
organizational and environmental assessment for the Douglas County Public Library.

2.1 Evaluating Existing Organizational Culture

Understanding organizational culture is essential in developing a set of core values, a strategic
mission statement and a strategic vision statement, and a set of new organizational goals as
organizational culture provides the general framework in which organizational representatives
will attempt to achieve elements of the new strategic plan. Without a firm understanding of an
organization’s existing culture, it is likely that attempts to achieve new organizational strategic
goals will meet with strong internal, and possibly external, opposition as the new organizational
strategic goals may conflict with the cultural expectations of the organization. Workshop
participants were asked to complete a series of facilitated small group exercises designed to
evaluate the existing organizational culture of the Douglas County Public Library as part of
developing a set of core values, a new strategic mission statement and a new strategic vision
statement, and a set of organizational strategic goals that align with organizational cultural
expectations.

The first of these organizational culture and characteristic evaluation and assessment exercises,
completed during the first strategic planning workshop held on November 19, 2021 and
November 20, 2021, consisted of three separate questions that workshop participants were asked
to answer in small groups, including: (1) If this organization were a person, what would it be
like and why?, (2) If this organization were a car, what would it be and why?, and (3) If we put a
musical score to the daily activity of this organization, what would it sound like and why?

Figure 2.1 presents a word cloud summarizing the responses provided by workshop participants
for the question, If this organization were a person, what would it be like and why?

Workshop participants who participated in the first strategic planning workshop for the Douglas
County Public Library held on November 19, 2021 and November 20, 2021 largely agreed that
the Library, if it were a person, would likely be female and, despite being an introvert, would
still be friendly, welcoming, and offer help to anyone that asks for help and assistance. Several
workshop participants noted that the Douglas County Public Library has, in many ways, become

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 9 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



a space where individuals can pursue their own educational, entertainment, and even recreational
pursuits. In this way, the Douglas County Public Library’s own organizational culture is very
much tied to the culture of Douglas County that, from a political perspective, is far more
conservative than progressive. However, several workshop participants pointed out that the
Douglas County Public Library, as an organization and as part of its existing organizational
culture, is committed to the principles of freedom of speech and access to information without
censorship, without judgement, and with a firm commitment to ensuring the privacy of the
Library’s patrons.

Figure 2.1 — If this organization were a person, what would it be like and why?
Douglas County Public Library

Sinterests= 5

educated

I new close HILSI':dl‘-.v ci wel' it
alrgen o |if o
= E::ul.lli'irlﬁ'-ssE E”
@ S nftarad - = MOVies
£ alfend = !
ClassIc o
fE"’EI“ rr*"'r.r outta releases lectic £
direction  dagp tire kitchan a2
[}

m ||Jd|—-

requ [ {=T:

rlWEA 4]
irllerestir'g s_..—,,
introverted £
- I " i- rtdr"
o mrshover  non
= I [ 1
clazsics cardigan” . iroyer lad

groups, Doubitfire srlrldc:--.-.-cg, constrained

ntrovert conservative

slighthy

If the Douglas County Public Library could be represented by a single individual, workshop
participants generally agreed that this person would likely be somewhat out of shape,
highlighting the growing need to identify, plan, and complete significant facility improvements
that are needed at both the Minden Library, located in Minden, Nevada, and at the Lake Tahoe
Branch, located in Zephyr Cover, Nevada. These physical improvements range from necessary
physical infrastructure, including improvements to each building’s networking and information
technology infrastructure, to potential expansion and renovation of each branch in order to
accommodate anticipated growth in patron usage, to specific improvements including improved
employee workspaces, improved patron study, quiet reading, and general activity spaces, and
increased storage. Several workshop participants noted that the two existing branch libraries are
simply no longer sufficient to adequately serve the educational, informational, and recreational
needs of the Library’s existing patrons and will become even less sufficient as Douglas County’s
population continues to grow.

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 10 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022




Several architypes were used to describe the general appearance and demeanor of the Douglas
County Public Library. These specific architypes included the fictional character of Mrs.
Doubtfire to the actress Meryl Streep. In both cases, workshop participants highlighted the
Douglas County Public Library’s approachability and the approachability of Douglas County
Public Library staff and representatives. Workshop participants further highlighted the high-
degree of education that Library staff and representatives have, both formal and informal, and
workshop participants generally agreed that this constructed culturally representative ‘person’
would attend a party but only if required or encouraged to do so as this ‘person’ would likely
exhibit more introverted personality characteristics. Being well read, having a diverse and even
‘eclectic’ set of interests, enjoying a wide range of movies, and generally wearing casual non-
business attire were other specific characteristics of this constructed ‘person’ representing the
culture of the Douglas County Public Library.

Figure 2.2 presents a word cloud summarizing the responses provided by workshop participants
for the question, If this organization were a car, what would it be and why?

Figure 2.2 — If this organization were a were a car, what would it be and why?
Douglas County Public Library

clean w
Tvr._l,-:}—
IL'IrpE[ I"r-.,]“; '1] ]I]

good : h dependable Corolia
o s_ a ﬂ d P
cable oAy
.rf‘ building G S
n _,.|l_||’
':uu

- =k
=3 c
o . L]
=R 2
(=] careg
= S E%S Wagon  paiiing frills
helt e junker J 'i”:'r"f“
-,‘:.m" L;,p;,—'__. @3 “u:ﬁ"mnlr* Worm
i Mt 8 g8 spar
X -ts-cape 5 =1 ¥ =% foundation ra n
ed  repairsg major © Soccasi anIIyC

rim:u I;

rUnSwmdows

Reflecting the generally ‘out of shape’ characteristics identified by workshop participants in their
combined answers to the first question, workshop participants generally agreed, if the Douglas
County Public Library was represented by a single automobile, that this automobile would have
well over 100,000 miles and, in some cases, might even have well over 250,000 miles on it and
would be showing its age with accumulated rust spots and having relatively few additional

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 11 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



features. The windows on this representative automobile would likely be hand-crank windows
as opposed to electric windows, would have a basic radio and would generally be ‘no frills’ but
very reliable. Several workshop participants noted that the Douglas County Public Library,
represented by a single automobile, is well cared for, greatly appreciated by those that depend on
it, and that regular maintenance is performed to keep the Library operating as efficiently and
effectively as possible. However, workshop participants again noted that the physical
characteristics of the organization, including the physical conditions of the Library’s two branch
libraries, are in need of significant improvement and revitalization. Several workshop
participants extended this metaphor even further, noting that it is time for the Douglas County
Public Library to ‘shop’ for a new branch library, possibly in the Gardnerville Ranchos area, in
order to support the county’s growing population and the growing diversity in the educational,
informational, and recreational needs of the Library’s patrons. Again, workshop participants
further noted the need for significant physical and infrastructure improvements at each of the
existing branch libraries, including the Minden Library and the Lake Tahoe Branch.

Specific automobile models and makes identified by workshop participants, representing the
Douglas County Public Library, included an older classical car from the 1950’s, a 1992 Ford
Bronco, an older model Oldsmobile, a station wagon, a Ford Escape, and even a Toyota Corolla.
One workshop participant even described the Douglas County Public Library, portrayed as an
automobile, as a bit of ‘junker’ but still well cared for and well maintained with good tires and a
strong foundation. Each of these models and makes reflects the ‘no frills’ characteristics that
workshop participants highlighted in describing the Douglas County Public Library as an
automobile. Yet, despite this, workshop participants agreed that the Library continues to meet,
and in several cases exceeds, the educational, informational, and recreational needs of its
patrons. The ability of the Douglas County Public Library to continue to meet and exceed these
needs was largely attributed to the commitment that Library staff and stakeholders, including
members of the Friends of the Library group and the members of the Board of Trustees, have to
the community and people of Douglas County and the commitment that Library representatives
have for the Library itself. While the Douglas County Public Library is, in many ways according
to workshop participants, in need of a significant physical and even cultural overhaul, workshop
participants agreed that the need for this overhaul stems from the desire of Douglas County
Public Library representatives to continue to serve the county and the people that depend upon
the Library for their educational, informational, and recreational needs and wants.

Figure 2.3 presents a word cloud summarizing the responses provided by workshop participants
for the question, If we put a musical score to the daily activity of this organization, what would it
sound like and why?

Workshop participants identified a wide range of different musical genres and artists to describe
the musical score that would be reflective of daily activity of the Douglas County Public Library.
This wide range of different musical genres and artists, according to several workshop
participants, is representative of the Douglas County Public Library’s diverse collection of
resources that continue to serve a diverse array of individual patron educational, informational,
and recreational needs and wants. Because the Douglas County Public Library and Library
representatives are committed to serving a diverse, growing, and changing population in Douglas
County, the Douglas County Public Library has sought to diversify its collections and offered

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 12 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



services and resources. This has resulted in an organizational culture that, in some regards, can
appear contradictory from the outside but is unified internally around the needs and wants of a
diverse patron and population base.

Figure 2.3 — If we put a musical score to the daily activity of this organization, what would
it sound like and why?
Douglas County Public Library

diobooks

Patterson
yakety EDGpular

Western

[
=
o (ts
£ . ah:ung e n n y ™
o 2% sing_ (5l ==, "
_40's 5 mgg sialeaﬂtlﬂﬂ veers Ilstentlng mnpreas}rg
BE § 2 Diamond®’ o S—P o S60's & GJ
< =

sax S
country =
newsbritney
pays M uzqali%: |
naﬁndy

Grishammysteries1970°s

In using various musical scores, genres, and artists to describe the organizational culture of the
Douglas County Public Library, several workshop participants noted that the lack of a unified
organizational culture is somewhat due to a growing disparity between the availability of internal
resources needed to develop and deliver programs, resources, services, and activities and the
growing demand that is placed upon the Library due to the continued growth of the county’s
population. This lack of a cohesive and unifying organizational culture has become, in the view
of several workshop participants, an unchanging characteristic of the Douglas County Public
Library and there is a growing internal need to ‘get ahead’ of the growing demand for expanded
existing and new programs, resources, services, and activities by developing additional
organizational resources.

One additional characteristic of the Douglas County Public Library’s organizational culture that
is also unchanging, as identified by workshop participants, is the commitment that Library
representatives have to serving the needs and wants of the Library’s patrons and of the people of
Douglas County. Building upon this shared commitment and dedication is a specific area in
which workshop participants believe that the Douglas County Public Library could potentially
build upon as part of this new five-year organizational strategic plan. Workshop participants

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 13 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



noted that this will require organizational representatives to work toward the achievement of
shared organizational goals that contribute to the achievement of a shared organizational
strategic vision that should be focused on serving the educational, entertainment, and recreational
needs and wants of Library patrons and visitors and members of the community that the Douglas
County Public Library serves.

2.2 Evaluating Organizational Characteristics

As part of the initial organizational and environmental assessment completed by workshop
participants during the first strategic planning workshop, workshop participants were also asked
to answer four additional questions, including: (1) What do you /ike about Douglas County and
your community?, (2) What do you dislike about Douglas County and your community?, (3)
What do you like about the Douglas County Public Library (as an organization)?, and (4) What
do you dislike about the Douglas County Public Library (as an organization)?

Figure 2.4 presents a word cloud summarizing the responses provided by workshop participants
to the question, What do you like about Douglas County and your community?

Figure 2.4 — What do you like about Douglas County and your community?

Q'Y

IHb-

~ accedss
universit Y

= B
o @ aiviys GJQOOdrce'n{" '{,;,:. =% (1)
e 38 TS £t R "I T moun ams:::a
“Sw"i‘“" a(:twe Sfourg=

59 D Tah0 sart ree S e
-“fecreationParks:i 8" t“’e“ﬂéﬁ“ﬂ |

“communi

y helpful:
Sgason
together"" mvolvementserwces e

ghway  ranching
SeNI0infrastruc rumEXGE E‘ﬂt ,-:-lmll responders  walk Wlnter

of airline
night

Ml Eh‘l.
bra",'

-.I.

wn tiitﬂl'mf'll'i“

The most common response to this question, What do you like about Douglas County and your
community, provided by workshop participants focused on the strong sense of community that
exists throughout Douglas County. In general, workshop participants noted that people who live
in Douglas County are generally friendly, approachable, helpful, and, at the community level,

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 14 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



strive to know their neighbor and work together to address issues of community concern.

Several workshop participants further noted Douglas County’s historically rural community
culture and identity as a specific characteristic of Douglas County that they strongly liked.
Workshop participants even noted that the Douglas County Public Library has dedicated a
significant portion of its collections toward highlighting this history and sharing this history with
patrons and with newcomers to the community. Workshop participants also highlighted Douglas
County’s broad geographic diversity ranging from the valley to the Sierra Nevada mountain
range to Lake Tahoe itself. Again, workshop participants noted that the Douglas County Public
Library has dedicated a significant portion of its collections to celebrating this geographic
diversity and further suggested that new programs, resources, services, and activities could
potentially be built around this geographic diversity.

In examining specific characteristics and conditions of Douglas County that they personally
liked, workshop participants also highlighted the county’s collection of various outdoor
recreation assets that appeal to various demographic population groups, age ranges, and specific
interests. Excellent public services, including police, fire, and transportation services, growing
commercial retail services, and new parks, aquatic facilities, and community centers each
contribute to the overall and relatively high quality of life that most Douglas County residents
and visitors enjoy. Workshop participants also noted that the Douglas County Public Library
plays a pivotal role in ensuring that high quality of life and does so by providing an incredibly
deep and broad range of programs, resources, services, and activities that serve a diverse set of
demographic groups across a variety of age ranges and interest areas. While workshop
participants noted that the Douglas County Public Library struggles to continue to expand these
existing programs, resources, services, and activities and struggles to develop and deliver new
programs, resources, services, and activities, the Douglas County Public Library remains a
critical part of ensuring that Douglas County residents and visitors are able to access the Library
generally free of charge and in ways that meet their unique needs and wants.

Figure 2.5 presents a word cloud summarizing the responses provided by workshop participants
to the question, What do you dislike about Douglas County and your community?

Many of the specific dislikes about Douglas County as a community stem from a general ‘lack
of” something as the county continues to struggle to maintain a high quality of life in the face of
significant and sustained population growth. Several workshop participants noted that as the
county has continued to grow in-terms of significant and sustained population growth over the
past several years, the county’s existing public infrastructure has failed to keep pace. The lack of
affordable and attainable housing, the lack of additional shopping, restaurants, and various other
entertainment options were other areas in which workshop participants noted the need for
targeted improvement. A number of workshop participants also highlighted the impact that
continued significant and sustained population growth has had on the general ‘sense of
community’ that has existed throughout Douglas County. With increased population growth,
community members are less likely to know each other and, because of this, are less likely to
engage and participate in community events. Workshop participants suggested that the Douglas
County Public Library could become a central community hub where residents get to know each
other and where there are opportunities to participate in community events. Workshop
participants also suggested that the Douglas County Public Library could become a central place

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 15 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



where new residents to Douglas County could go to learn more about the county and the
individual community that they are now a part of by providing community information and
expanding the Library’s existing collections focused on the county’s and region’s history.

Figure 2.5 — What do you dislike about Douglas County and your community?

o
g —
5 2 ==
ng o 3 o
] | il ] ul W
programs 2 S-— . o @ =
n- .I.'-:!I ..:::!r li::' L I II--I E T.\-_l :1 4::"' —_ -I'\-\.II
Dypdhi;-gi;' S local s (O o mmgrﬁ';%?lar)m‘E & 5 anlaﬂned
il -—C 5 Saffordable 2, & i, tme
needs O"l schani r:!nfrastrur;ture ‘Bgood
onea. outside —Espe»c.alyu}?'ﬂh d | populations
- wate race offices eve Opmeﬂt
2 peo always needed nature
EE dwdcd setolder  state ED| cally ol

straffi

_|

culture
will INGjm

™

involvernant

CﬂrsunTFIbECO u nt

=1aC

telecummdmcatluns

k

mahilit[.r deas

min

network

ethnicity enforcement

_n.“.lr_pr:l

1access
ded

entering l“.».

dwersﬂy
restaurants

agm'f icant

Figure 2.6 presents a word cloud summarizing the responses provided by workshop participants
to the question, What do you like about the Douglas County Public Library (as an organization)?

In evaluating the specific characteristics of the Douglas County Public Library that they liked,
workshop participants highlighted a number of specific characteristics including the Library’s
existing collections, various programs, and the Library’s staff. For a library of its size, workshop
participants noted that the Douglas County Public Library has an exceptional and diverse
collection of various materials that the Library provides including a wide range of traditional and
non-traditional collections that appeal to a wide variety of patrons and visitors. The Douglas
County Public Library’s diverse collection ensures that patrons and visitors to the Library are
generally able to find materials that appeal to their own unique interests and educational,
entertainment, and even recreational needs and wants. Workshop participants also noted that the
Library has invested in making a significant portion of its collections available digitally and
online which has expanded the reach of the Douglas County Public Library. Continued
investment in the Library’s collections in and the ways in which the Library provides access to
the collection is needed in order to ensure that patrons and visitors can continue to use the
Library to satisfy their growing and often changing educational, entertainment, and recreational
needs and wants as the county and each individual community continues to grow.

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027:
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals

Page 16 of 91
June 2022



Figure 2.6 — What do you like about the Douglas County Public Library (as an
organization)?

ﬁéﬂngs

|argepaws financially

e et TG bookmoblleﬁ
“computer DEE JML]Bby
t ffdlglt ‘?mcollelcstlon

. story
rar 2 dipays 5
Q0K -programs
acce SSRea d ‘law matle:rl|aasdUUJ?E‘%UW

knawledgs
summer
frlendshbrary

Carming dri

Several workshop participants highlighted a number of the Douglas County Public Library’s
various activities and programs as characteristics of the Library that they particularly liked. The
Library’s summer reading program, programs and activities aimed at young children and
families, and even programs and resources aimed at teenagers and young adults has ensured that
the Douglas County Public Library plays a pivotal role in the educational development of
Douglas County’s population at various stages of an individual’s own development. This level
of engagement and interaction with patrons and visitors of various ages extends to adults as the
Douglas County Public Library continues to expand programming and activities aimed at
different adult age groups. A number of workshop participants noted that they would like to see
the Douglas County Public Library continue to grow and expand adult-oriented programming
and activities such as increased vocational and job training programming and activities aimed at
serving the needs and wants of the county’s growing senior and elderly population.

Related to the Library’s existing and continually expanding collections and various activities and
programs has been the investment that the Douglas County Public Library has made in
improving overall patron and visitor access. The successful completion and implementation of
the Douglas County Public Library’s Bookmobile has extended the reach of the Library and has
improved the visibility of the Douglas County Public Library throughout the county. Continued
investment in the Library’s digital and virtual infrastructure has also allowed the Library to
maintain operations during the COVID-19 global pandemic when in-person use of the Library
was not possible. As part of this new five-year strategic plan for the Douglas County Public
Library, workshop participants agreed that the Library must continue to invest in the ways in

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 17 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



which the Library provides access to the Library’s various programs, resources, and services,
including the Library’s existing digital and virtual infrastructure. Workshop participants also
highlighted the Library’s existing staff as a major positive characteristic of the Douglas County
Public Library. Staff is extremely knowledgeable and extremely dedicated to the Library’s
mission and routinely spend significant time in providing direct one-on-one support and
assistance to Library patrons and visitors.

Figure 2.7 presents a word cloud summarizing the responses provided by workshop participants
to the question, What do you dislike about the Douglas County Public Library (as an
organization)?

Figure 2.7 — What do you dislike about the Douglas County Public Library (as an
organization)?

budget

ot collaborations County
ut ljfg&“ BDGEme”é meetmgi gL dddellclr'al—m: " ,
e pa m-:rs |u5-:. _:I'T;:‘rr.-.c.rmoms e %
media s Meetmg Leadershm rinershipssalaries ' compel .
enougNsmallid :puilding 2sdhuee:
ooy 2> [ FOOM 2255 jocation new ** ff . EEEPUb|'C
m 3 U =3 breaks
c3; g S{]h[}m .. station
r]”f:ﬁ.' BranChSta rdCreali I|I:'['E.‘1r3Ir
o need ng“’“"gIdcommyﬂcaﬂogaﬁi?“
g ma r;ketlng valley gy -
Oragesoun ~ - shelving
% a Cesfﬁﬁ j-ﬂCCESSg inadequately
E sp.;ces ------ Carpeisa ound

In general, many of the specific characteristics of the Douglas County Public Library that
workshop participants disliked or felt that the Library needs to improve upon as part of this new
five-year organizational strategic plan were focused around a general ‘lack of” something.
Workshop participants almost universally agreed that the ‘lack of” space that is available at both
the Minden Library and the Lake Tahoe Branch has significantly curtailed the Library’s ability to
grow and expand its existing collections, activities, and programs. Both the Minden Library and
the Lake Tahoe Branch have simply ‘outgrown’ the needs of the Douglas County Public Library.
Neither location has adequate storage to house Library collections or materials and supplies
needed to support activity and program development and delivery. Staff space typically doubles
as storage or even programming space and existing dedicated activity and program space is often
crowded due to increased patron and visitor demand for specific educational, entertainment, and

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 18 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



recreational activities and programs. Continued modification of the existing Minden Library and
Lake Tahoe Branch is simply not possible given the physical limitations of both buildings and
continued population growth throughout Douglas County is occurring further and further away
from the existing locations resulting in it becoming increasingly difficult for patrons and visitors
to physically visit and use either the Minden Library or the Lake Tahoe Branch. Addressing the
Douglas County Public Library’s ongoing challenges regarding the physical limitations of both
the Minden Library and the Lake Tahoe Branch was identified by workshop participants as a
major priority for the Library’s new five-year organizational strategic plan.

In addition to not having enough physical space, workshop participants also noted that the
Library continues to struggle to provide support and service to patrons and visitors given the lack
of staff currently available. While workshop participants highlighted the Library’s existing staff
as a major organizational strength, workshop participants also noted that staff is starting to reach
‘burn out’ levels as individual staff members are increasingly asked to take on more
responsibilities and ‘do more with less’ as demand for library resources, programs, and activities
continues to increase while Library resources have not increased at a similar level. Addressing
this growing ‘lack of” staff concern by providing additional training and professional
development opportunities, by hiring additional staff in critical administrative and operational
areas, and by addressing the growing need for additional volunteers was a major priority that
workshop participants would like to see the Douglas County Public Library address over the next
five years.

Workshop participants further noted that the Douglas County Public Library should strategically
and aggressively develop and implement a comprehensive community outreach, engagement,
and marketing campaign. A number of workshop participants noted that the Douglas County
Public Library has become too focused on internal issues and, because of this, has become
increasingly detached from the community that the Library serves. Several workshop
participants suggested that Library administrative staff should seek to work collaboratively with
other Douglas County departments and agencies, the Douglas County School District, local and
regional Native American indigenous peoples communities, and various community groups and
associations such as local Chambers of Commerce in order to increase overall community
support of the Library and overall awareness about the Library’s vast collections, activities, and
programs. This effort should also include an improved marketing campaign designed to inform
targeted population groups living throughout Douglas County as to how the Library can serve
specific educational, entertainment, and recreational needs and wants.

2.3 Evaluating Organizational Accomplishments and Challenges

As part of the second organizational strategic planning workshop held on January 28, 2022 and
January 29, 2022, workshop participants were asked to identify the major accomplishments that
the Douglas County Public Library has completed over the past year and to identify what the
Douglas County Public Library’s major challenges for the coming year will be. As part of this
assessment and in identifying the major accomplishments of the Douglas County Public Library
over the past year, workshop participants highlighted the Library’s ability to overcome the
impact that the COVID-19 global pandemic has had on the Library’s operations. Despite these

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 19 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



ongoing challenges, the Douglas County Public Library was able to continue to serve the public
even when the Library’s physical locations were closed, employing new innovative approaches
to program, resource, and service delivery including curbside service, offering increased usage of
digital resources, and augmenting budgetary restrictions with new grants, donations, and even
additional book sale revenues. Over the past year, the Douglas County Public Library has also
completed major investments in critical infrastructure, expanded hours, provided mobile hotspots
for patrons to check out and use, improved the organization’s book acquisition budget, and has
even been able to hire additional staff. The Douglas County Public Library has also been able to
successfully expand Bookmobile service, with regular service now being provided to the Topaz
Ranch Estates area, to Dresslerville, and to Indian Hills. As a result of all of this, the Douglas
County Public Library has had a significant and positive impact on the communities that the
Library serves as evident in the increased number of library cards that have been issued, the
increased ability to reach a broader community base, reaching patrons that the Library had been
unable to reach in the past, and to expand existing programs, resources, and services.

Over the next year, continued recovery from the COVID-19 global pandemic and the pandemic’s
related impacts on the Library’s operations will remain a primary challenge. Part of this ongoing
challenge is addressing the ongoing funding concerns that the Douglas County Public Library
has, the continued stress that Library employees are already experiencing, and continuing to
build a positive image of the Library throughout the county and within the communities that the
Library serves, with other Douglas County representatives, and with new potential partners.
Addressing inadequate staffing and volunteer levels was identified by workshop participants as a
major challenge that the Douglas County Public Library must purposefully address. This
includes the hiring of a new Library Director, the filling of existing vacant positions and the
creation and filling of needed new positions, and increasing the number of volunteers that the
Library has increasingly come to depend upon in order to successfully accomplish the new
strategic goals and objectives outlined in this new five-year organizational strategic plan. While
addressing the Library’s ongoing physical space challenges and the need for either a major
renovation of the existing locations and/or the development and successful completion of a new
branch location were each identified as a major challenge, workshop participants were also
realistic in agreeing that resolution of these physical space challenges are likely not possible over
the next year. However, workshop participants did agree that the Douglas County Public Library
could make strategic moves and investments over the next year that would enable the Library to
address these physical space challenges over the course of the next five years and beyond.

2.4 An Updated Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities, and Threats Analysis

As part of the first organizational strategic planning workshop held on November 19, 2021 and
November 20, 2021, workshop participants were asked to identify specific and existing
organizational strengths and weaknesses and specific opportunities and threats that the Douglas
County Public Library could potentially take advantage of or may have to mitigate and address
as part of this new five-year organizational strategic plan. Strengths are defined as existing
characteristics of the Douglas County Public Library that gives it a competitive advantage and
allows the Library to produce value while weaknesses are defined as existing characteristics of
the Douglas County Public Library that places the organization at a disadvantage or prohibits the

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 20 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



organization from producing value. While organizational strengths and weaknesses are existing
and internal characteristics of the Douglas County Public Library, opportunities and threats are
external conditions that may or may not occur but could be either advantageous or disastrous.
Opportunities are defined as external environmental conditions that the Douglas County Public
Library could potentially take advantage of while threats are defined as external environmental
conditions that could derail the efforts of the Douglas County Public Library to serve patron and
visitor educational, entertainment, and recreational needs and wants over the next five years.

2.4.a Strengths of the Douglas County Public Library

Figure 2.8 presents a word cloud summarizing the existing organizational strengths of the
Douglas County Public Library as identified by workshop participants.

Figure 2.8 — Organizational Strengths of the Douglas County Public Library

g00dsgle A

homebound -
L Q s;:i':.ii budget . S
technologyo@ e friENAS: <2 g 5O

L I b ra ry IO (i:(atl Oart]r;gs
programs
BoardbOOkmOblle

don atiur'-s
fec-en-:lrh,

u*—.l et
) dL -'.q.-ll

Workshop participants again highlighted the Library’s existing staff, existing collection of
resources, programs, and activities, and the significant investment that the Douglas County
Public Library has made in its technological and outreach infrastructure as major organizational
strengths that enable to the Library to continually serve the needs and wants of library patrons
and visitors. Despite being short staffed and existing staff dealing with significant morale and
stress issues, workshop participants agreed that the Douglas County Public Library’s existing
staff and volunteers continue to provide exceptional service, continue to demonstrate a
significant understanding of both Library operations and knowledge of the Library’s collections,
and continue to serve patron and visitors needs and wants in a friendly and welcoming manner.
Workshop participants generally agreed that the Library’s staff and volunteers are likely the

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 21 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



Library’s greatest strength and that additional investment in staff resources, in increasing the
number of library volunteers and providing additional professional development opportunities, is
needed over the next five years. As part of this major organizational strength, workshop
participants also highlighted the contribution that the Douglas County Public Library’s Board of
Trustees and Friends of the Library group make to program, resource, and service development
and delivery. Both the Board of Trustees and the Friends of the Library have become critical
advocates for the Library to local policymakers and to the public at large and have supported
staff in the continued expansion of existing and development of new programs, resources, and
services designed to serve patron and visitor needs and wants.

Again, workshop participants highlighted the Douglas County Public Library’s existing
collections and existing set of activities and programs as a major organizational strength that has
contributed to the Library’s growing importance as a primary provider of educational,
entertainment, and recreational services throughout the county and throughout the region.
Additional investment in the Library’s technological infrastructure, including increased online
and virtual access, has made the Library’s collections and various programs, resources, and
services even more accessible to additional population groups throughout Douglas County. The
successful development of the Library’s Bookmobile and the expanded coverage of the
Bookmobile to other parts of Douglas County has added to this increased accessibility and has
helped improve the Library’s overall visibility among patrons, visitors, and with all residents of
Douglas County. While the physical condition and limitations of both the Minden Library and
the Tahoe Branch Library were identified as major organizational weaknesses by workshop
participants, workshop participants did note that the strategic location of both the Minden
Library and the Tahoe Branch Library has, at least historically, provided direct physical access to
the Library’s collections of existing resources, programs, and services to a large percentage of
Douglas County’s existing residential population. A large number of patrons and visitors are
able to access the resources, programs, and services of the Douglas County Public Library
because both physical library locations are co-located with other major public services and near
major transportation corridors.

2.4.b Weaknesses of the Douglas County Public Library

Figure 2.9 presents a word cloud summarizing the existing organizational weaknesses of the
Douglas County Public Library as identified by workshop participants.

As has previously been illustrated as part of this environmental and organizational assessment of
the Douglas County Public Library, workshop participants generally agreed that the major
organizational weaknesses that exist and inhibit the ability of the Library to produce value and
serve patron and visitor needs stem from a general ‘lack of” needed resources including
additional space, additional staff, and additional financial resources. Workshop participants
generally concluded that the Douglas County Public Library has simply outgrown both the
Minden Library and the Tahoe Branch Library. Both locations suffer from a chronic lack of
available storage and a lack of dedicated activity and program space that is needed to serve an
increasingly diverse population with unique needs and wants. The physical limitations of both
the Minden Library and the Tahoe Branch Library simply prohibit continued growth of the

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 22 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



Douglas County Public Library’s collections and prohibits the development of space dedicated to
new activity and program development.

Figure 2.9 — Organizational Weaknesses of the Douglas County Public Library

MakerSpaoeo e D

5
QTS

n_-, hEI".I'I...".']::-_,
sta:ulzc

rna%l carpet muuailfied
tean “ f
bu dgete OU pRINY percepbonmeetingd

flndlng facility ‘? adequately faci Iéxpaqz;arﬂﬂﬂ (-) S—
update r”*““‘"‘*money[:)artﬂersh|pscomrﬂumca’uorl

cnturnover”““”“ﬁ””“hw*'r ¢ s (OFS
—E qura g u I
2 t? E p u I Ccnllam}ratwe n*e:.s _'_ recior
= t"..'j-— &
et LI
U} lp‘|'|[|"|"
marketing
volunteers CFOWded

While the Douglas County Public Library’s existing staff was identified as a major
organizational strength, in-terms of staff and volunteer dedication, work ethic, knowledge, and
service, existing staff and volunteer levels are simply insufficient to support the continued
expansion of existing resources, programs, and services and is absolutely insufficient to support
the development of new resources, programs, and services needed to serve a population that is
both growing and becoming increasingly diverse. Existing staff and volunteer limitations,
according to workshop participants, is the result of not having the necessary financial resources
and because of restrictive volunteer vetting policies. Workshop participants agreed that, in
addition to the physical characteristics of both the Minden Library and the Tahoe Branch
Library, growing staff and volunteer level disparities has become a major organizational
weakness. This weakness has been compounded by the additional stress that staff members and
volunteers, and even members of the Board of Trustees and the Friends of the Library group,
face because of the pressures that the Library has faced related to the COVID-19 pandemic and
because of other community-based issues.

Another major organizational weakness, as identified by workshop participants, is the Library’s
current community outreach, engagement, and marketing efforts. Partially due to the COVID-19
pandemic and partially due to a historical in-ward facing attitude that Douglas County Public
Library has had in the past, workshop participants generally agreed that the Library and Library
representatives need to better engage with the public in general and work collaboratively with

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 23 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



potential strategic community partners in the future. Direct and more positive engagement with
local policymakers, with other Douglas County agencies and departments, with the Douglas
County School District, and with community-based organizations including, but not limited to,
various local Chambers of Commerce and service organizations could potentially enhance
existing Library financial and non-financial resources and better elevate the Library’s presence
throughout Douglas County as a primary source of educational, entertainment, and recreational
programs, resources, and services. Workshop participants agreed that improved community
outreach, engagement, and marketing efforts will require bold and strong leadership and
participation from the Board of Trustees, the Friends of the Library group, and from key Library
staff. Workshop participants further agreed that specific goals and objectives for these future
community outreach, engagement, and marketing efforts should be developed before specific
actions are taken, that these efforts should fulfill the existing needs of the Douglas County Public
Library, and should be pursued using a multitude of different approaches including both
traditional and non-traditional approaches designed to reach as many people as possible across a
variety of population groups.

2.4.c Opportunities for the Douglas County Public Library

Figure 2.10 presents a word cloud summarizing the possible opportunities that the Douglas
County Public Library could potentially take advantage of as identified by workshop
participants.

Figure 2.10 — Potential Opportunities for the Douglas County Public Library

partnersh|ps

marketing:~"=. " ; Cb'mmumt
Zbetter " ity

A inding st

amerilies ‘_ :. |: Jation 5
=) M

“Eservice

programsemp\oyees

cluls

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 24 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



Many of the specific opportunities that the Douglas County Public Library might be able to take
advantage of as part of this new five-year organizational strategic plan, as identified by
workshop participants, focused on increasing the Library’s access to various financial and non-
financial resources. New funding sources that have been developed as part of the U.S. federal
government’s and state of Nevada’s response to the COVID-19 global pandemic could
potentially mitigate the cost of improving the existing physical conditions of the Minden Library
and the Tahoe Branch Library, including the need for additional technological infrastructure, and
might also mitigate the cost of building a new branch library in parts of Douglas County where
the population continues to significantly grow. Improved community engagement and new
partnerships with various community-based organizations may eventually lead to additional
financial resources either through donations and direct financial assistance or through increased
community support for expanded budgetary support of the Douglas County Public Library.

As Douglas County continues to grow and as the county’s population continues to become
increasingly diversified, there is also a growing opportunity to expand existing programs,
resources, and services and to develop and deliver new programs, resources, and services in
order to reach and serve a larger patron and visitor base. While additional financial and non-
financial resources, including additional staff and volunteers, will be needed in order to take
advantage of this opportunity, the Douglas County Public Library could significantly increase its
status throughout Douglas County as the premier place where patrons and visitors can access the
programs, resources, and services that will satisfy and meet their growing educational,
entertainment, and recreational needs. This opportunity has become even more possible as
Douglas County, in general, lacks other alternatives in providers of the types of resources,
services, and programs that the Douglas County Public Library already provides. Douglas
County residents often travel to neighboring urban population centers, such as the Carson City
metropolitan statistical area and the Reno-Sparks metropolitan statistical area in order to access a
broader set of entertainment and recreational services. Expanding existing programs, resources,
and services and developing and delivering new programs, resources, and services could enable
county residents to use the Douglas County Public Library even more and to increase the overall
role that the Library plays throughout the county and within each individual community.

2.4.d Threats Facing the Douglas County Public Library

Figure 2.11 presents a word cloud summarizing the possible threats that the Douglas County
Public Library may have to address of as identified by workshop participants.

The single largest, and perhaps most important, threat facing the Douglas County Public Library
is the threat posed by potential future cuts to the Douglas County Public Library’s budget and,
perhaps, the failure to grow the Library’s budget year-over-year in a manner that matches the
continued increased demand that the Douglas County Public Library is facing as Douglas
County’s population continues to grow and becomes increasingly diverse. Even prior to the
impact that the COVID-19 global pandemic has had on the Douglas County Public Library’s
budget, the Library’s budget has been insufficient to support increased staff and volunteer levels
needed to provide increased programs, resources, and services, has been insufficient to continue
to increase and modernize the Library’s existing collections, and has been insufficient to address
ongoing physical space and infrastructure issues. Over the past ten years, the Douglas County

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 25 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



Public Library has had to become increasingly efficient in the use of organizational financial and
non-financial resources in order to meet steadily increasing levels of demand for Library
programs, resources, and services. Despite this organizational commitment to increased and
improved efficiency, workshop participants agreed that the Library has reached a near maximum
level of efficiency and that Library resources, programs, and services may have to be ultimately
cut and discontinued if budgetary levels are not significantly increased.

Figure 2.11 — Potential Threats Facing the Douglas County Public Library

ﬂerr*::-_qraphics
acted

cuts

technologypher "'|'|1|r\-r

cﬁigl_e”“dersh|phbrary H

unexp

D irector
“rl SOrsn r
attack
change

Ful lica less oeboomic  Maturalf

ng suppurt d "Ifri':fr‘ fundingnext county s fires . , ¢
I'I."I. I:]'TI{“'I1 " adap TB .
E.‘C Eu.- -u [ H :-I
-::Dmrms slmers SCN00E
2 COVID e =  awayskills
Zecor ¥ NSIVENEss
a3 uahi 1y v 1
At damagedal
Enmpe1 l||:|'1
l I aﬁdnrn ¢ _ closing positions
strictions youth I ’ ":., 4 posiion

pandemics

: ﬂuppl

turnwar
alue

|Iurc

A more existential set of threats to the Douglas County Public Library, as identified by workshop
participants, include the Library’s continued image among certain parts of the public, the failure
to address leadership issues internally within the Library but also among external Library
stakeholders, and the continued and possibly increased stress that Library staff, volunteers, and
representatives currently face. Internal and external divisiveness, skepticism and a lack of clarity
about the Douglas County Public Library’s role as a community institution, and the relationship
that the Library has with external partners and stakeholders could negatively affect the ability of
the Library to continue to serve the educational, entertainment, and recreational needs of the
public. Workshop participants agreed that developing and adhering to an agreed upon mission
and vision of the Douglas County Public Library is a critical first step in addressing these more
existential threats to the Library and to the Library’s continued ability to produce value and
continued ability to serve patron and visitor needs and wants. Effective and unified leadership,
while acknowledging and making allowances for differences of opinion, among Library staff,
among the members of the Douglas County Public Library’s Board of Trustees, and the Friends
of the Library group is part of this first step in addressing these more existential threats and

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 26 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



ensuring that the Douglas County Public Library remains a critical provider of various
educational, entertainment, and recreational resources, programs, and services.

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 27 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



3.0 Evaluating Elements of the Existing
Strategic Plan

The current Douglas County Public Library strategic plan, Long Range Plan 2011-2020, was
initially adopted by the Douglas County Public Library on December 13, 2011 and has served as
the Library’s primary guiding document over the past ten years. The original goals and
objectives of the existing strategic plan have been revised and updated every year since between
2013 and 2019, with a final comprehensive assessment of the existing strategic plan completed
in 2020. The Long Range Plan 2011-2020 consists of ten separate core values, “Our Beliefs and
Commitments”, a mission statement, and two primary strategic goals. Each individual primary
strategic goal each consisted of a series of individual objectives and actionable items. As part of
the first organizational strategic planning workshop held for the Douglas County Public Library
on November 19, 2021 and November 20, 2021, workshop participants were asked to evaluate
each individual element of the existing strategic plan.

3.1 Evaluating the Existing Core Values

As part of the Douglas County Public Library’s Long Range Plan 2011-2020, ten separate core
values were developed along with the following preamble:

Our Values: Our Beliefs and Commitments

As Trustees, administrators, and staff of the Douglas County Public Library, we endeavor to
accomplish the Library’s mission through our commitment to these essential core values:

Patron Focus, Respect for People, Equitable Service, Freedom of Information and Freedom to
Read, Patron Privacy, Free Basic Services, Promotion of Services, Quality, Integrity,
Stewardship of Community Resources

The Long Range Plan 2011-2020 contained the following definitions for each of these ten core
values, including:

e Patron Focus: We place the highest priority on customer service to our patrons and treat
every request as being of equal value. As we consider enhancements to traditional
services and implementation of new and innovative services, we first acknowledge our
patrons’ information needs. We will proactively develop new services to meet changing
reading and information needs in our community.

e Respect for People: We will treat all patrons and each of our staff members as valued
individuals.

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 28 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



o FEquitable Service: We seek to ensure access to information for people of all ages,
abilities, and means. We strive to place library services in convenient, accessible
locations.

o Freedom of Information and Freedom to Read: We protect our patrons’ freedom to
read and view all library information. We abide by the American Library Association’s
Library Bill of Rights.

e Patron Privacy: We safeguard our patrons’ rights to request and obtain information
privately. The information we collect is kept in confidence and used solely to deliver and
improve library services.

e Free Basic Services: We provide basic library services free of charge.

e Promotion of Services: We inform our community about library services through a
variety of channels. An informed community is a participating community.

e Quality: We endeavor to deliver the highest quality services possible with friendly,
approachable, knowledgeable and expert staff.

e Integrity: We abide by the policies which have been adopted by the Library Board of
Trustees and the Code of Ethics of the American Library Association.

o Stewardship of Community Resources: We recognize that we have been entrusted by
our community with managing resources contributed through taxes and donations. We
hold ourselves accountable for the efficient and effective use of all resources — people,
time, assets, and funds.

As part of the evaluation of the Douglas County Public Library’s current strategic plan and of the
existing core values, workshop participants, participating in small groups, were asked to develop
a list and a set of accompanying one to two-sentence definitions of no less than four and no more
than eight core values based upon the definitions provided for the ten existing core values found
within the Long Range Plan 2011-2020. Workshop participants were then asked to vote for the
revised core values that they felt were most important and best reflected the beliefs, traits, and
behavioral norms that organizational personnel and members are currently expected to display in
conducting the functions of the Douglas County Public Library and pursuing the Library’s
strategic mission. Several individual draft core values developed by workshop participants were
combined based on the similarity in the name of the core value and the accompanying definition
provided. In order of most important as voted for by workshop participants, the following
revised core values with each core value’s accompanying revised definition is presented here:

e Stewardship of Community Resources; Stewardship of Resources (19 votes): we
hold ourselves accountable for the efficient and effective use of all resources entrusted to
us — people, time, assets, and funds; we are accountable for the efficient and effective use
of all resources — people, time, costs, and funds; things, money, time, staff, volunteers.

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 29 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



e Freedom of Information and Freedom to Read (16 votes): we protect our patron’s
freedom to read and view all information; we follow the ALA Bill of Rights; no library
censorship, ALA Bill of Rights; we protect our patrons’ freedom to read and view all
library information; we abide by the American Library Association’s Library Bill of
Rights.

e Equitable Service; Equal Access and Respect for People by Insuring Access to All;
Equal Access (16 votes): we seek to ensure access to information to people of all ages
and abilities and treat all patrons and staff with respect; provide equal access to all
patrons regardless of socio-economic status.

e Patron Focus (10 votes): we place the highest priority on customer service to our
patrons; we first acknowledge our patrons information needs and proactively develop
services to meet changing reading and information needs in our community; changing
needs and technology; educating on changing tech

¢ Quality (5 votes): we strive to provide quality service, materials, and knowledgeable and
approachable staff.

e Integrity (3 votes): privacy, Code of Ethics, policies.

e Promotion of Services (3 votes): public signage, radio/public media, PSA; we inform
our community about library services through a variety of channels; promoting programs,
materials, and technology accessible through the library.

e Ensure Patron Privacy; Patron Privacy (2 votes): personal information, records,
usage, will be confidential; protect patron’s rights to privacy of personal information and
library usage information.

e Community Engagement (1 vote): patrons, residents, relationships, partnerships,
stakeholders, schools.

e Strong Educational, Informational, Community Programs, Services, and Resources
(1 vote)

e Welcoming and Secure Environment (1 vote)

The results of this evaluation were later used, during the second organizational strategic planning
workshop held on January 28, 2022 and January 29, 2022 and during the third organizational
strategic planning workshop held on April 2, 2022, to develop a new set of core values that will
guide the Douglas County Public Library in pursuing its new organizational strategic mission
and strategic vision and in achieving its new organizational strategic goals and objectives. The
new draft core values for the Douglas County Public Library are presented in Section 4.0 of this
University Center for Economic Development technical report and the final new core values, that
serve as the foundation of this new five-year organizational strategic plan, with expanded
definitions, are presented in Section 5.0.

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 30 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



3.2 Evaluating the Existing Mission Statement

As part of the Douglas County Public Library’s Long Range Plan 2011-2020, the current
mission statement of the Douglas County Public Library is as follows:

The mission of the Douglas County Public Library is to provide a comprehensive collection of
library materials, services, and programs to meet the informational, recreational, and cultural
needs of the citizens of Douglas County.

In evaluating the existing mission statement of the Douglas County Public Library, workshop
participants who participated in the first organizational strategic planning workshop held on
November 19, 2021 and November 20, 2021 were asked to answer two sets of questions. The
first set of questions included: (1) What are the informational needs of the citizens of Douglas
County?, (2) What are the recreational needs of the citizens of Douglas County?, and (3) What
are the cultural needs of the citizens of Douglas County? The second set of questions included:
(1) Who does the Douglas County Public Library serve?, (2) What are the Douglas County
Public Library’s core functions?, and (3) How does the Douglas County Public Library perform
its core functions and deliver programs, resources, and services?

3.2.a Identifying Informational, Recreational, and Cultural Needs

Figure 3.1 presents a word cloud summarizing workshop participant responses to the question,
What are the informational needs of the citizens of Douglas County?

Common among the many specific informational needs identified, workshop participants noted
that the Douglas County Public Library has and remains a central hub for critical informational
resources that the citizens of Douglas County routinely ask for and depend upon. In general, the
various informational needs of the citizens of Douglas County and of the patrons and visitors of
the Douglas County Public Library are served by the Library’s existing collections and
technological resources. Information on how to start and run a business, test preparation
materials, job and employment training and placement information, legal information, and
information on medicine and health related topics were a few of the many specific informational
needs identified by workshop participants. The Douglas County Public Library, by providing
access to wide range of informational resources, continues to promote broad community literacy
on a variety of topics to a variety of socio-demographic and economic groups throughout the
county.

A number of workshop participants noted that the Douglas County Public Library is also a
central hub for the informational resources provided by other public sector, private sector, and
even non-profit community-based agencies, firms, and organizations that operate throughout
Douglas County. Workshop participants noted that, as part of this new five-year organizational
strategic plan, the Douglas County Public Library should work collaboratively with other
agencies, firms, and organizations to expand access to the information that these agencies, firms,
and organizations provide as long as the informational resources that they provide are consistent

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 31 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



with the Library’s own mission and serve the purpose of addressing specific informational needs
of Library patrons and visitors.

Figure 3.1 — What are the informational needs of the citizens of Douglas County?

. : %)
wz s medical ~ 1
bus1nessffpw' legalez:. s ';:'
R !-_ .-

O ‘materials m_e___ducahona

y d I| |551Ees Lib I

:.-rllr],E . i th'rll.'l'.-.'-’:ur-'. inance R WA Flfm
ngical

FI"I"SI"'

dcugldu

CD social researchtechnology ™
IIteraCypreparatlon

_C 5
DAL

Several workshop participants noted that the Douglas County Public Library has developed
certain special collections that serve very specific informational needs. For example, the Library
offers access to an extensive Law Library and continues to grow its Nevada history and Douglas
County history collection. These special collections serve unique informational needs of patrons
and visitors in an easy-to-access format, a format and environment that is unmatched by other
public libraries currently operating throughout the state. A number of workshop participants
noted that the Douglas County Public Library has developed a series of specific programs and
services designed to meet the informational needs of Douglas County residents. For example,
the Library’s test preparation services, Early Reader program, and job placement services expand
the Library’s ability to address patron and visitor informational needs beyond access to printed
reference materials.

Figure 3.2 presents a word cloud summarizing workshop participant responses to the question,
What are the recreational needs of the citizens of Douglas County?

Workshop participants noted that the Douglas County Public Library is more than just a
repository for information and printed materials but has become a destination recreation facility
for various population groups currently living throughout Douglas County. Many families with
young children utilize the Library’s recreation activities and programs while teenagers and young
adults utilize the Douglas County Public Library as a ‘safe space’ to pursue specific interests,

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 32 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



hobbies, and even leisure activities with friends. The Library’s extensive collection of movies,
music, and board games are used frequently by Library patrons and visitors and the Douglas
County Public Library also hosts a variety of hobby and crafting activities and outdoor activities
throughout the year.

Figure 3.2 — What are the recreational needs of the citizens of Douglas County?

c_(greading
w mmU&Cm

PIOgTaTaving community comguilar : VdEES  pop
vigal ¢ . b tian &
EMEE 3 pages = ,-
= 1% P
8 &
i 4 =
e

E movies
Lactivities

A central feature of the activities, programs, and services that the Douglas County Public Library
has developed and provides in order to meet the recreational needs of Douglas County citizens is
the importance of socialization and socializing and supporting a sense of community through
conversation and engagement. Several workshop participants noted that these important
features, socialization and socializing and supporting a sense of community through conversation
and engagement, have become increasingly important as a result of the social isolation that
individuals felt over the course of the COVID-19 global pandemic. As the Douglas County
Public Library resumes normal in-person activities, programs, and services, the Library is
striving to address the various recreational needs of the citizens of Douglas County as people re-
enter society after over a year of social isolation.

=]

.'-'

B .=|1|1§

2 availakdiny

Cram rr~

15
T
i1}
o
&2
=
=
]

A

g

resources

Figure 3.3 presents a word cloud summarizing workshop participant responses to the question,
What are the cultural needs of the citizens of Douglas County?

Many of the specific cultural needs of the citizens of Douglas County identified by workshop
participants generally fall into three specific categories including history, literature, and music.
The Douglas County Public Library’s Pine Nut Room is currently the physical home of the
Library’s extensive Nevada and, specifically, Douglas County history collection. The Pine Nut

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 33 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022




Room, used here to refer to the Library’s Nevada and Douglas County history collection, is one
of the largest collections of its types by any public library currently operating throughout the
state of Nevada. Additionally, through both the Library’s existing collections and in partnership
with other groups and even local and regional museums, the Douglas County Public Library
routinely displays historical artifacts highlighting a wide range of historical events. The Douglas
County Public Library has also expanded its collections that are focused on local and regional
Native American and indigenous communities history.

Figure 3.3 — What are the cultural needs of the citizens of Douglas County?

literature

L

o . rogramimin
= evenis = B coafting Prege 9 RanchvalleySecond
English 0o
ivers 1 o fraw
diverse " LG'EEL n____ d ] Clubs rave
angberg
@ | anguage .. cultural culturesliteracy
histoncal rr'.u5|.qa|

tagevarietyESL ] general religion

MusIC ~

Workshop participants also noted that there is a growing interest among patrons and visitors in
classical and contemporary literature and the Douglas County Public Library strives to routinely
update and refresh its existing collections to provide Library patrons and visitors with a diverse
offering of literature that they may not necessarily be familiar with or have the opportunity to
learn more about. Like many public libraries, the Douglas County Public Library supports a
very active local Book Club program and has integrated activities and programs designed around
selected readings in order to provide an immersive cultural experience. This process has also
been replicated as a way of addressing the musical cultural needs of Library patrons and visitors.
The Douglas County Public Library provides access to a wide range of music and hosts a number
of musical programs designed to inform Library patrons and visitors while simultaneously
addressing the recreational and entertainment needs of the residents of Douglas County. Like
many of the programs, resources, and services that the Douglas County Public Library provides
that are focused on addressing specific informational and even recreational needs, the programs,
resources, and services that the Douglas County Public Library provides that are focused on

worid

SEUm

" materials
@ Inr:al

ra

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 34 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



addressing specific cultural needs of Library patrons and visitors are designed to promote a
broader sense of literacy throughout the communities that the Library serves.

3.2.b Who the Library Services, Core Functions, and Performance of Core Functions

Figure 3.4 presents a word cloud summarizing workshop participant responses to the question
Who does the Douglas County Public Library serve?

Figure 3.4 — Who does the Douglas County Public Library serve?

years

£
_ 9 -
tee NS - schoo\

peobechildren

Workshop participants noted a number of specific population groups that the Douglas County
Public Library currently serves and will continue to serve as part of this new five-year
organizational strategic plan. Families with young children, school aged children and teenagers
through young adults, adults, and senior citizens were a few of the many specific population
groups that routinely depend upon the programs, resources, and services that the Douglas County
Public Library provides. Workshop participants noted that the Douglas County Public Library
has also expanded its services for several historically underserved populations including existing
indigenous communities and populations within Douglas County and throughout the
northwestern Nevada region, low-income families and individuals, and even transient individuals
in need of various public services. The Douglas County Public Library has also become a
central place where new residents who have recently moved to Douglas County can gain access
to needed public services and to general information about the county and their new community.
Tourists and visitors to Douglas County often utilize Library resources, especially the Library’s
Pine Nut Room collection as well the Library’s collection of maps and other items highlighting
special ‘points of interest’ located throughout the county.

II'II' 'TIF“ -

Springs

transiznt
i
&
%

a':IJ1 "

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 35 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



A number of workshop participants did note, however, that the Douglas County Public Library
could improve its own level of service to local and area businesses, to other Douglas County
agencies and departments, to the Douglas County School District, to members of the Washoe
Tribe of Nevada and California and to other local and regional Native American and indigenous
peoples, and to bilingual residents of Douglas County. Engagement with local businesses should
focus on expanded job training, job placement, and workforce development issues and expanded
engagement with the Douglas County School District could focus on expanding the various
literacy and social programs and resources that the Library provides to families with school aged
children and teens in need of a ‘safe place’ outside of school hours. While the Douglas County
Public Library already features an extensive collection on local and regional Native American
and indigenous community history, workshop participants agreed that direct engagement with
local and area Tribes, including the Washoe Tribe of Nevada and California, could include
storytelling, language, and interactive exhibits and activities designed to highlight the Tribe’s
history with the community and the region. As the Douglas County Public Library is already a
central hub utilized by county residents and visitors, workshop participants noted that there is a
significant opportunity to use the Library as a central access point to the information and services
that other Douglas County agencies and departments already provide.

Figure 3.5 presents a word cloud summarizing workshop participant responses to the question
What are the Douglas County Public Library’s core functions?

Figure 3.5 — What are the Douglas County Public Library’s core functions?

services Story

Qrograms

& S
Hey -*'.lb =
*'ul =
w-"(\"."' ional ||'|.3| el  MB B Nnas ., computers E"“:':" r-GlJ ng aire ..-f-ﬂlﬂ"lfj

entertanng |- = Interlibran = open digital needs ©
Edify Suser qrm-:l 5 owned # Sreading n-..c-f':.hp education
- T g
I I I =
bl
(&)
i

dCCeSsSSspace|ibrary
physical

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 36 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



Workshop participants generally agreed that the primary core function of the Douglas County
Public Library is to provide generally free access to a wide range of educational, recreational,
and even entertainment oriented programs, resources, and services to any patron or visitor who
uses the Library. This includes access to the Library’s extensive and diverse collection of
materials, technology services and equipment, and to the physical space of the Library for
activities, events, and even meetings. Being ‘open and accessible’ was a defining characteristic
of the Library’s core function as identified by workshop participants and each and every
employee and representative of the Douglas County Public Library is expected to provide
friendly, helpful, and welcoming service to those patrons and visitors who request assistance and
access to the Library’s programs, resources, and services.

Figure 3.6 presents a word cloud summarizing workshop participant responses to the question
How does the Douglas County Public Library perform its core functions and deliver programs,
resources, and services?

Figure 3.6 — How does the Douglas County Public Library perform its core functions and
deliver programs, resources, and services?

o COMMuUNIty

patronstaffprograms
“bookmobile

technolongomebound””
services

ared
rt ry by o
Dartnersnps

bblbi':i:l nce

l."l.‘:lI'I'IpIJ':I.?fS

.Eheck

=
=

z
i
Duueach

Consistent with the answers provided by workshop participants to the question What are the
Douglas County Public Library’s core functions?, workshop participants noted that the
exceptional service that Library staff and other representatives provide is an essential part of how
the Library performs its core functions. Despite budgetary restrictions that have limited the
ability of the Douglas County Public Library to expand its existing staff and its number of
volunteers, the Library has and continues to invest in the development of staff and volunteers in
order to ensure that patron and visitor educational, entertainment, and recreational needs and

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 37 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



wants are routinely met. The Douglas County Public Library has made significant investments
in the routine updating and refreshing of the Library’s existing collections as community needs
and wants shift. While additional investment is needed in updating and modernizing the
Library’s technological infrastructure, this investment has also included the continued
improvement of the Library’s technological resources. The Douglas County Public Library has
further expanded its reach into the community through the successful development and continued
provision of the Library’s Bookmobile and expanded Homebound Services in order to reach
individuals that may not be able to access Library resources, programs, and services on their own
or who may not know about the Douglas County Public Library.

Workshop participants did note, however, that expanded and new partnerships with various
public sector agencies, private sector firms, and various community-based organizations is
needed in order to ensure that the Douglas County Public Library continues to perform its core
functions. As Douglas County’s total population continues to grow and as the county becomes
increasingly diversified, it will become increasingly difficult for the Douglas County Public
Library, given its financial and non-financial resource limitations, to reach individuals across the
county without strategically collaborating and partnering with agencies, firms, and organizations
that share a similar mission with the Douglas County Public Library. Workshop participants did
caution, however, that the Library must ensure that these expanded existing and new partnerships
do not infringe on the ability of the Douglas County Public Library to provide ‘open and
accessible’ access to the Library’s existing collection of programs, resources, and services as
individual patrons and visitors seek to meet their own informational, entertainment, and cultural
needs.

3.3 Evaluating the Existing Goals and Objectives

The current Douglas County Public Library strategic plan, Long Range Plan 2011-2020,
consisted of two general goals, with each goal having several individual objectives and with each
individual objective having several specific actionable items. The two general goals of the Long
Range Plan 2011-2020 for the Douglas County Public Library are:

e Goal No. I: Douglas County residents and visitors will access the digital world using
high-speed connectivity, emerging technologies and guidance from specialists in
information, media and technology.

e Goal No. 2: Douglas County residents and visitors will have services, resources and
programs designed to stimulate imagination, satisfy curiosity and create young readers.

Workshop participants who participated in the first organizational strategic planning workshop
held on November 19, 2021 and November 20, 2021 were asked to evaluate each individual
objective for each of the two existing goals by answering two specific questions, including: (1)
has the goal and objective been completed?, and (2) are there elements of the goal and objective
that are still relevant and, if so, what are those elements? The analysis for each objective listed
for each of the two existing goals would be used in subsequent organizational strategic planning
workshops to develop a new set of strategic goals and objectives and a comprehensive

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 38 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



implementation plan as part of the Douglas County Public Library’s new five-year organizational
strategic plan.

3.3.a Evaluating the Progress Made Related to Existing Organizational Strategic Goal No. 1

For the first existing organizational strategic goal, Douglas County residents and visitors will
access the digital world using high-speed connectivity, emerging technologies and guidance
from specialists information, media and technology, three specific objectives were initially
developed, including: (Objective 1) increase technology available to patrons, (Objective 2)
assess and evaluate the demand for technology assistance and education, and (Objective 3) asses,
test and streamline eResources. For each of these individual objectives, a series of individual
actionable items were originally developed and assigned.

As part of Goal No. 1 Objective No. 1, increase technology available to patrons, three specific
actionable items were developed and assigned, including: (1) investigate possible expansion of
Virtual Reality technology programs at both libraries by March 31, 2020, (2) assess and
determine the need(s) for additional mobile devises and resources by January 31, 2020, and (3)
evaluate available robotics technology/devices and determine collection possibilities by January
31, 2020. Workshop participants generally agreed that a measurable level of progress has been
made in achieving each of the three individual actionable items assigned to this objective of
increasing technology availability to patrons. The recent investment and installation of virtual
reality technology at the Minden Library was highlighted as a major accomplishment. Workshop
participants did point out, however, that the Douglas County Public Library has yet to provide
regular virtual reality access at the Lake Tahoe Branch. Moving forward, workshop participants
agreed that the Douglas County Public Library should continue to improve and expand patron
and visitor access to virtual reality technology and launch a full Virtual Reality Lab by the end of
the next five-year strategic planning horizon. A few workshop participants also suggested that
the Douglas County Public Library explore expanding its existing virtual reality resources by
actively collaborating with other organizations and, possibly, private sector firms that already
have expansive virtual reality technological resources and capabilities.

Most notably, increased engagement with Western Nevada College and other Nevada System of
Higher Education institutions could potentially and significantly expand patron and visitor access
to virtual reality technologies through the Douglas County Public Library without the Library
having to make its own sizable financial and non-financial resource investments. Workshop
participants did generally agree that the third actionable item, evaluating available robotics
technology/devices and determining collection possibilities, while technically completed has not
been fully implemented. Expanding and providing access to robotics technology and devices has
proved challenging given existing financial and non-financial resource level availability.
Continuing to evaluate patron and visitor interest in robotic technology and devices should
remain an ongoing function of the Library as part of this new five-year organizational strategic
plan but updating and refreshing the Library’s robotic technology and devices collection will
largely be dependent upon the availability of needed financial and non-financial resources.
Again, workshop participants suggested that the Douglas County Public Library could
potentially partner with area organizations and private sector firms with expertise and access to a

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 39 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



wider array of robotic technologies and devices as a way of improving the Library’s own direct
access to these resources.

For Goal No. 1 Objective No. 2, asses and evaluate the demand for technology assistance and
education, workshop participants generally agreed that this objective has been largely
accomplished although the objective itself needs to be routinely pursued as the demand for
technology assistance and education among Library patrons and visitors is not a static condition
and continually changes and evolves as new technologies are developed and made available. In
general, workshop participants did agree that each of the four specific actionable items
developed for and assigned to this specific objective have been successfully completed. For this
specific objective, the four specific actionable items included: (1) collect user data and statistics
by March 1, 2020, (2) gather information from patrons and the greater community by March 31,
2020, (3) determine possibilities for technology education programs by March 31, 2020, and (4)
begin implementing new technology programs, by June 30, 2020. While each of these four
specific actionable items have been generally completed, collecting user data and statistics,
gathering information from patrons and the greater community, determining possibilities for
technology education programs, and implementing new technology programs, are now ongoing
functions performed periodically by the Douglas County Public Library and will remain part of
the Library’s ongoing operations as part of this new five-year organizational strategic plan.

Specific elements of Goal No. 1 Objective No. 2 that workshop participants identified as still
particularly relevant include the continued and regular determination of possibilities for
technology education programs and the continued development and implementation of new
programs. Again, the limitation of available financial and non-financial resources, including the
necessary staff and volunteers with the needed technological training and expertise, will
determine whether the Douglas County Public Library remains successful in developing and
implementing new technology programs. Several workshop participants noted that the effects of
the COVID-19 global pandemic and subsequent budgetary restrictions have limited the ability of
the Douglas County Public Library to move forward with the development, implementation, and
delivery of new technology programs despite the clear need and increased demand among
Library patrons and visitors for these types of programs and services. Having staff and
volunteers that are dedicated to the development, implementation, and delivery of new
technology programs, as opposed to increasing the responsibilities of existing staff and
volunteers to include new technology programs, is a vital first step in further achieving these
specific actionable items as part of this objective. Joint technology program development and
delivery with the Douglas County School District and Nevada System of Higher Education
institutions such as Western Nevada College might be used to fill specific technology program
‘gaps’ in existing Library programs. However, certain programs, ranging from very basic
technology assistance programs (i.e. assisting patrons with the use of their mobile devices,
instruction in basic computer applications such as the Microsoft Office suite, and accessing
online Internet-based resources) to more advanced technology programs including expanded in-
house virtual reality services will require significant internal investment.

As part of Goal No. 1 Objective No. 3, assess, test and streamline eResources, three specific
actionable items were developed and assigned, including: (1) evaluate Axis 360 eBooks and
eAudiobooks by March 1, 2019, (2) monitor and evaluate current digital offerings by January 31,

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 40 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



2020, and (3) develop and create learning tools for patrons by March 31, 2020. As part of the
evaluation of the first assigned actionable item, completing an evaluation of Axis 360 eBooks
and eAudiobooks by March 1, 2019, workshop participants noted that the evaluation had been
completed and that the Douglas County Public Library has moved to new eResources platforms
including OverDrive and Switch. Workshop participants agreed that, while the evaluation is
complete, this specific actionable item, given its focus on Axis 360, is no longer relevant.
However, workshop participants did note that the Library’s collection of various eResources is
one of the Library’s primary strengths and enabled the Douglas County Public Library to
continue to serve the educational, entertainment, and even recreational needs of Library patrons
and visitors over the course of the COVID-19 global pandemic despite the interruptions to
normal in-person operations. In regard to the monitoring and evaluation of current digital
offerings, workshop participants agreed that this specific actionable item has largely been
achieved and that the Douglas County Public Library has made the ongoing monitoring and
evaluation of the Library’s various digital offerings a standard part of the Library’s regular and
ongoing operations.

While workshop participants generally agreed that the Douglas County Public Library has made
significant progress in achieving this objective, in assessing, testing, and streamlining
eResources, workshop participants also generally agreed that only some progress has been made
in achieving the last assigned actionable item, developing and creating learning tools for patrons.
The Douglas County Public Library has mostly continued to promote the use of Libby, a library
reading app available as part of the Library’s use of OverDrive, a digital distributor of eBooks,
audiobooks, online magazines, and streaming video titles. Again, workshop participants noted
that additional staff dedicated to the development and eventual implementation and
administration of new and internally created learning tools will be needed and that the Douglas
County Public Library’s existing financial and non-financial resource levels are simply
inadequate to support this type of internal effort. Moving forward, the Douglas County Public
Library will continue to utilize OverDrive and the Libby app but will also continue to assess,
test, and streamline as necessary the Library’s existing and future eResources collection.

3.3.b Evaluating the Progress Made Related to Existing Organizational Strategic Goal No. 2

For the second existing organizational strategic goal, Douglas County residents will have
services, resources and programs designed to stimulate imagination, satisfy curiosity and create
young readers, six specific objectives were initially developed, including: (Objective 1)
establish Bookmobile service for valley region for Douglas County, (Objective 2) produce,
revise, and improve Library policies, procedures and support documents, (Objective 3) develop
and implement a standard system of assessment that will be used to measure, evaluate, and track
all Library programs by May 1, 2019, (Objective 4) introduce one or more new programs at
Minden Library by October 1, 2019, (Objective 5) introduce one or more new programs at Lake
Tahoe Branch by October 1, 2019, and (Objective 6) Summer Reading 2019 patrons will have a
Summer Reading Program that features the theme “Space: A Universe of Stories” for all age
groups. For each of these individual objectives, a series of individual actionable items were
originally developed and assigned.

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 41 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



As part of Goal No. 2 Objective No. 1, establish Bookmobile service for valley region of
Douglas County, five specific actionable items were develop and assigned, including: (1) hire
Bookmobile technician by February 1, 2019, (2) Bookmobile committee will create a plan for the
Bookmobile, (3) train the Bookmobile Library Technician and other staff on Bookmobile
functions and services within thirty (30) days of delivery, (4) train Bookmobile volunteers in
basic duties within thirty (30) days of delivery, and (5) launch Bookmobile service within thirty
(30) days of delivery. For all five specific actionable items, workshop participants generally
agreed that progress in completing each actionable item has been somewhat mixed and that
completed activities have also been hampered by unforeseen setbacks. For example, the Douglas
County Public Library has been successful in establishing a new Bookmobile that has expanded
the Douglas County Public Library’s reach to underserved parts of the county and to underserved
population groups. However, the Library has found it difficult to retain a Library Technician
dedicated to the Bookmobile. Expanding staff and volunteer resources that can be assigned to
the Bookmobile on a permanent or semi-permanent basis remains a relevant part of this objective
moving forward. Workshop participants were less certain as to whether a comprehensive
‘Bookmobile plan’ has been developed and completed and certain workshop participants have
felt that the Bookmobile has been used in more of an ‘ad hoc’ fashion without a larger purpose in
mind.

For the remaining three specific actionable items assigned to Goal No. 2 Objective No. 1,
including training of the Bookmobile Library Technician and other staff, training assigned
Bookmobile volunteers, and launching Bookmobile services, workshop participants again
indicated an uneven level of success in-terms of successful implementation. While the
Bookmobile has been successfully launched and used, staff and volunteer availability levels has
significantly set-back training of assigned staff and volunteers and more consistent use and
deployment of the Bookmobile. Again, the uneven level of success in implementing each of
these specific actionable items is largely a function of inconsistent and often volatile and
unpredictable levels of financial and non-financial resources that can be assigned and allocated
to the Bookmobile. Workshop participants agreed that the Bookmobile is and will remain an
essential part of the Douglas County Public Library’s core functions relating to the development
and provision of programs, resources, services, and activities to Library patrons and visitors and
to the residents and visitors of Douglas County. However, success of the Bookmobile will only
be possible if needed financial and non-financial resources can be securely and consistently
allocated to the support and ongoing operation of the Bookmobile and related operational
functions.

Goal No. 2 Objective No. 2, produce, revise, and improve Library policies, procedures and
supporting documents, consisted of five specific actionable items including: (1) review existing
policies and procedures, (2) establish small staff groups or committees assigned to specific
documents, (3) create and/or update policies and procedures, (4) interim documents and
handbook will be presented by September 1, 2019, and (5) inform Board of Trustees of progress
by December 1, 2019. For all five of these specific actionable items, workshop participants
generally agreed that each have been completed and that the Board of Trustees, along with
applicable Douglas County government representatives and staff, have been part of the process
of producing, revising, and improving the Library’s own internal policies, procedures, and
supporting documents over the past several years. Workshop participants generally agreed that

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 42 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



this specific objective and the assigned specific actionable items, as written, should no longer be
considered a strategic objective but that the Douglas County Public Library should commit itself,
at an operational level, to review and revise as necessary all internal policies, procedures, and
supporting documents at least every two years. While formal review and revision may occur
every two years, workshop participants did agree that Library administrative staff,
representatives from the Library’s Board of Trustees, and other key administrative staff of
Douglas County should routinely evaluate and revise selected policies, procedures, and
supporting documents as needed and as required by the government of Douglas County in
response to changing internal policies, procedures, and supporting documents implemented by
the Douglas County Board of County Commissioners and county government staff.

For Goal No. 2 Objective No. 3, develop and implement a standard system of assessment that
will be used to measure, evaluate, and track all Library programs by May 1, 2019, two specific
actionable items were originally assigned, including: (1) develop a standard system that will be
used to evaluate all library programs by December 31, 2020, and (2) create a procedure for new
programs to ensure equal consideration of all ideas. In evaluating each specific actionable item
and the overall objective, workshop participants generally agreed that limited progress has been
made on developing a formal standard system of assessment including a standard system that
will be used to evaluate all library programs and in creating a procedure for new programs to
ensure equal consideration of all ideas. Workshop participants did agree, however, that more
informal systems of assessment have been created and implemented largely based on improving
the level of internal communication among Library staff and volunteers and between Library
staff, members of the Library’s Board of Trustees, and members of the Friends of the Library
group. The development of a formal standard system of assessment may be less relevant than
other existing objectives and other new objectives that have emerged over the past several years.
Creating a formal standard system of assessment, including a formal procedure for new programs
to ensure equal consideration of all ideas, will require additional financial and non-financial
resources. These growingly scarce resources, according to many workshop participants, would
be better used to support existing and developing new programs, resources, and services and in
improving staff and volunteer resources. While ongoing program evaluation and assessment is
important, workshop participants generally agreed that a formal standard system of assessment is
largely unnecessary moving forward as long as the Douglas County Public Library continues to
emphasize and support ongoing improvement in internal communication efforts.

As part of Goal No. 2 Objective No. 4, introduce one or more programs at the Minden Library
by October 1, 2019, four specific actionable items were originally developed and assigned,
including: (1) program(s) will be sustainable (repeatable, cost-effective, realistic), (2) program
will be aligned with the library’s mission and goals, (3) program will be launched by September
30, 2019, and (4) evaluate the program using the new system outlined in Goal No. 2 Objective
No. 3 by January 31, 2020. For all four specific actionable items, with the exception of
evaluating the new program(s) using a formal evaluation system, workshop participants
unanimously agreed that the Douglas County Public Library has successfully developed and
introduced a number of new programs at the Minden Library despite ongoing financial and non-
financial resource constraints. Expanded virtual reality resources and programming, an adult
summer reading program, 3-D Pen, various new children programming, introduction and
implementation of the Bookmobile and OverDrive, special movie nights, Crafting Club, Scary

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 43 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



Stories, Paranormal Mysteries, Murder Mystery, Weekend Warriors, and Writer’s Block were a
few of the many new programs, resources, and services that the Douglas County Public Library
has successfully developed and introduced over the past several years. And while no formal
organization-wide evaluation system exists, each of these new programs, resources, and services
are regularly reviewed and evaluated in order to ensure that each program, resource, and service
continues to serve patron and visitor needs and wants. Moving forward, workshop participants
agreed that the Douglas County Public Library should continue to evaluate and improve each of
these programs and develop new programs, resources, and services as needed in order to meet
the changing and evolving needs of Douglas County.

Similar to Goal No. 2 Objective No. 4, Goal No. 2 Objective No. 5, introduce one or more new
programs at the Lake Tahoe Branch by October 1, 2019, consisted of four specific actionable
items, including: (1) program(s) will be sustainable (repeatable, cost-effective, realistic), (2)
program will be aligned with the library’s mission and goals, (3) program will be launched by
September 30, 2019, and (4) evaluate the program using the new system outlined in Goal No. 2
Objective No. 3 by January 31, 2020. Workshop participant responses to the evaluation of each
specific actionable item to Goal No. 2 Objective No. 5 were nearly identical to the results of the
evaluation for Goal No. 2 Objective No. 4. Workshop participants agreed that the Douglas
County Public Library has significantly increased the number of programs, resources, and
services offered directly through the Lake Tahoe Branch over the past several years and that
evaluation of each of these programs are performed regularly to ensure that each program,
resource, and service provided specifically at the Lake Tahoe Branch serves the needs of patrons
and visitors who use the Lake Tahoe Branch. In addition to the new programs, resources, and
services listed by workshop participants in evaluating Goal No. 2 Objective No. 4, workshop
participants noted that the previous Branch Manager of the Lake Tahoe Branch had done an
excellent job on developing specific programs, resources, and services for the Lake Tahoe
Branch that serve the branch’s unique group of patrons and visitors. For example, the Lake
Tahoe Branch now offers a series of science lectures focusing on the unique environmental
characteristics of the Lake Tahoe area and has geared a number of new programs toward new
afterschool programs for local area students. The Lake Tahoe Branch has also developed and
provides new fire awareness programs in partnership with other public agencies operating within
the Lake Tahoe basin. Again, while no formal evaluation process is in place, regular and
periodic evaluation of these programs is completed for each program, resource, and service
provided directly through the Lake Tahoe Branch.

For Goal No. 2 Objective No. 6, summer reading 2019 patrons will have a Summer Reading
Program that features “Space: A Universe of Stories” for all ages, two specific actionable items
were assigned, including: (1) launch the Summer Reading Program in June 2019 to include
children, teens, and adults, and (2) evaluate the Summer Reading Program by December 1, 2019.
Workshop participants unanimously agreed that the Douglas County Public Library has
successfully completed and achieved this objective and each of the two specific actionable items.
Not only has the Library successfully launched a comprehensive Summer Reading Program that
serves a variety of age groups including children, teens, and adults, the Summer Reading
Program has been very successful and continues to grow as one of the Library’s most popular
programs. Moving forward, workshop participants agreed that the Douglas County Public
Library should continue to evaluate the Summer Reading Program and to make necessary

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 44 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



improvements in order to meet the changing reading and literacy needs and wants of children,
teens, and adults across a variety of socio-demographic and economic groups. Several workshop
participants suggested that the Summer Reading Program should be better integrated into other
existing programs, resources, and services including the Bookmobile and utilized more during
school breaks in specific community areas such as Jacks Valley, Johnson Lane, the Ranchos
Douglas County, and the Topaz Ranch Estates. Given the growing participation in the Library’s
existing Summer Reading Program, workshop participants noted that increasing the amount of
financial and non-financial resources to the Summer Reading Program should be a part of the
Library’s new five-year organizational strategic plan.

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 45 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



4.0 Development of Core Values, Strategic
Mission and Vision, and Strategic Objectives

The majority of the second strategic planning workshop, held on January 28, 2022 and January
29, 2022, was spent developing a list of new core values, a new strategic mission statement, a
new strategic vision statement, and a list of new strategic goals and objectives for the Douglas
County Public Library’s new five-year strategic plan. This section presents a general summary
of the work completed by workshop participants who participated in the second strategic
planning workshop and presents the initial draft elements of the Douglas County Public
Library’s new five-year organizational strategic plan for 2022 through 2027.

4.1 Development of a List of Core Organizational Values

Core values are the beliefs, traits, and behavioral norms that organizational personnel and
members are expected to display in conducting the organization’s functions and in pursuing its
strategic mission and vision. Because core values are universal beliefs, traits, and behavioral
norms that everyone within an organization is expected to display, most strategic plans include
only four to eight core values.

As outlined in Section 2.0 of this University Center for Economic Development technical report,
workshop participants who participated in the first strategic planning workshop developed 11
initial possible core values for the Douglas County Public Library’s new five-year organizational
strategic plan. These initial possible core values, listed in order of importance as voted on by
workshop participants, included:

e Stewardship of Community Resources; Stewardship of Resources (19 votes): we
hold ourselves accountable for the efficient and effective use of all resources entrusted to
us — people, time, assets, and funds; we are accountable for the efficient and effective use
of all resources — people, time, costs, and funds; things, money, time, staff, volunteers.

¢ Freedom of Information and Freedom to Read (16 votes): we protect our patron’s
freedom to read and view all information; we follow the ALA Bill of Rights; no library
censorship, ALA Bill of Rights; we protect our patrons’ freedom to read and view all
library information; we abide by the American Library Association’s Library Bill of
Rights.

e Equitable Service; Equal Access and Respect for People by Insuring Access to All;
Equal Access (16 votes): we seek to ensure access to information to people of all ages
and abilities and treat all patrons and staff with respect; provide equal access to all
patrons regardless of socio-economic status.

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 46 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



e Patron Focus (10 votes): we place the highest priority on customer service to our
patrons; we first acknowledge our patrons information needs and proactively develop
services to meet changing reading and information needs in our community; changing
needs and technology; educating on changing tech

e Quality (5 votes): we strive to provide quality service, materials, and knowledgeable and
approachable staff.

e Integrity (3 votes): privacy, Code of Ethics, policies.

e Promotion of Services (3 votes): public signage, radio/public media, PSA; we inform
our community about library services through a variety of channels; promoting programs,
materials, and technology accessible through the library.

e Ensure Patron Privacy; Patron Privacy (2 votes): personal information, records,
usage, will be confidential; protect patron’s rights to privacy of personal information and
library usage information.

e Community Engagement (1 vote): patrons, residents, relationships, partnerships,
stakeholders, schools.

e Strong Educational, Informational, Community Programs, Services, and Resources
(1 vote)

e Welcoming and Secure Environment (1 vote)

Both before and during the second organizational strategic planning workshop held in January
2022, the initial possible 11 draft core values were revised and combined to form a list of five
consolidated core values. These five new draft core values, based on workshop participant input,
included:

o Freedom of Access and Information (20 Votes): The Douglas County Public Library
will protect the rights of all our patrons and community members to access the
information, resources, services, and programs offered by the Library without restriction
in compliance with the American Library Association’s Bill of Rights regardless of their
socio-economic status.

e Accountability and Stewardship (19 Votes): The Douglas County Public Library and all
Library employees and representatives are accountable for the efficient and effective use
of all Library resources which are dedicated to supporting the informational, recreational,
and cultural needs of the people of Douglas County.

o Equitable Service and Treatment (18 Votes): Douglas County Public Library employees
and representatives are expected to treat each other, our patrons, and everyone who
interacts with the Douglas County Public Library with equitable treatment and respect,
with integrity, and with the goal of protecting the patron’s right to privacy of their

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 47 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



personal information and library usage information. Douglas County Public Library
employees and representatives are expected to behave in a manner that is consistent with
the Library’s stated policies regarding the treatment of other employees and
representatives, patrons, and with anyone that interacts with the Library.

e Quality Customer and Patron Service (16 Votes): Our patrons depend on the
information, resources, services, and programs offered by the Douglas County Public
Library in order to meet their informational, recreational, and cultural needs and wants.
In order to help our patrons meet their existing, evolving, and changing informational,
recreational, and cultural needs and wants, the Douglas County Public Library places a
high priority on exceptional customer service that begins by acknowledging our patron
informational, recreational, and cultural needs and wants and proactively helping patrons
meet them with the information, resources, services, and programs we provide.

o  Community Engagement (4 Votes): The Douglas County Public Library and its
employees and representatives are committed to actively and proactively engaging with
our community and community stakeholders including, but not limited to, Library
patrons, community residents and visitors, community schools and other educational
providers, members of the business community, and other public sector organizations that
serve Douglas County. We are committed to informing our community about the
information, resources, services, and programs offered by the Douglas County Public
Library through traditional and non-traditional engagement and outreach efforts including
making the technological resources offered by the Library available to the public.

During the second organizational strategic planning workshop, workshop participants further
evaluated and provided additional definitions for each draft core value. For Freedom of Access
and Information, workshop participants agreed that this core value is the most fundamental core
value of the Douglas County Public Library and provides the essential framework and bedrock
within and upon the other core values are built. For Accountability and Stewardship, workshop
participants agreed that additional detail regarding the treatment of existing physical assets and
facilities should be explicitly stated within the definition. By providing this additional detail,
Library representatives will strive to ensure that the physical facilities operated and maintained
by the Douglas County Public Library are part of how Library staff, volunteers, and
representatives provide programs, resources, and services that meet the educational,
entertainment, and recreational needs and wants of Library patrons and visitors. Workshop
participants noted that, for the core value of Equitable Service and Treatment, Douglas County
Public Library staff, volunteers, and representatives are expected to comply with all Library
policies and procedures while remaining patron-focused. Providing equitable service and
treatment is an expectation that Library staff, volunteers, and representatives are expected to
provide externally to patrons and visitors and internally to other staff members, volunteers, and
representatives of the Douglas County Public Library.

For Quality Customer and Patron Service, workshop participants agreed that it is important to
note and reference that the provision of exceptional customer and patron service is needed in
order to meet the existing, evolving, and changing informational, recreational, and cultural needs
and wants of patrons and visitors who regularly use the programs, resources, and services of the

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 48 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



Douglas County Public Library. Workshop participants further noted the words ‘customer’ and
‘patron’ should be dropped from the core value and changed to simply read ‘Quality Service’.
The Douglas County Public Library strives to provide quality service, as defined within the core
value itself, to both internal (staff, volunteers, and representatives) and external (customers,
patrons, and visitors) stakeholders and various users of the Library regardless of the specific
nature of their relationship and status with the Library. As for Community Engagement,
workshop participants agreed that this core value should also reflect the desire of the Douglas
County Public Library to build broad community support for the Library, for the programs,
resources, and services that the Library provides, and for the financial and non-financial
resources that the Douglas County Public Library needs to expand existing and provide new
programs, resources, and services to Library patrons and visitors.

The final set of core values were developed during the third organizational strategic planning
workshop held on April 2, 2022. This final set of core values, presented in Section 5.0, represent
the fundamental beliefs, traits, and behavioral norms that all organizational personnel and
members are expected to display in conducting the Douglas County Public Library’s functions
and in implementing and pursuing other elements of the Library’s new five-year organizational
strategic plan.

4.2 Development of an Organizational Strategic Mission Statement

A strategic mission statement typically describes the organization’s present identity. Key
elements of a properly developed strategic mission statement include direction on day-to-day
activity and a foundation for future decision-making. Typical strategic mission statements focus
on highlighting what makes the organization unique and competitive relative to other
organizations.

During the second Douglas County Public Library organizational strategic planning workshop
held on January 28, 2022 and January 29, 2022, workshop participants were asked to develop a
set of possible new strategic mission statements. In individual small groups, workshop
participants were asked to develop their draft strategic mission statement by including a
description of the Douglas County Public Library’s existing cause (Who are we? What is our
purpose? Who do we serve?), the Douglas County Public Library’s current services, programs,
and resources (What do we do?), and the impacts that the Douglas County Public Library, both
directly and indirectly, has throughout the community (What changes in our community do we
make for the better?). The resulting three draft strategic mission statements were developed
during the second Douglas County Public Library strategic planning workshop and are presented
here:

e The Douglas County Public Library provides a comprehensive collection of materials,
services, technology, and programs to meet the informational, recreational, and cultural
needs of the citizens of Douglas County.

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 49 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



e Our Cause: To provide a comprehensive collection of quality materials, services and
programs to meet the informational, educational, recreational and cultural needs of
residents and visitors of Douglas County.

In order to meet the informational, educational, recreational and cultural needs of the
people of Douglas County, the Douglas County Public Library will provide a
comprehensive collection of quality materials, services and programs by easing access to.

e Our Cause: To provide informational, creational, and creational needs with a
comprehensive collection of materials, services and programs. We strive to provide
access to current technology.

Our Actions: By providing community outreach and by providing a relevant and diverse
collection of materials and technology.

Our Impact: Educating, preventing isolation, building community spaces, offering access
to vocational opportunities, and cultivating literacy, and offering entertainment.

Each of these three draft mission statements developed by workshop participants emphasize the
role that the Douglas County Public Library plays in serving the various needs and wants of
Library patrons and visitors and the broader role that the Douglas County Public Library plays
throughout all of Douglas County in providing a diverse and quality set of collections comprised
of relevant and in-demand programs, resources, and services. Several of the draft mission
statements also emphasize specific impacts that the Douglas County Public Library has in each
community that the Library serves and on the entire county. In the third draft mission statement
outlined above, workshop participants emphasized the educational impact that the Library has as
well as several other specific impacts including the prevention of isolation, the building of a
sense of community among individuals, offering vocational and workforce development
opportunities, cultivating literacy across all socio-demographic and economic groups, and
offering opportunities for entertainment and recreation.

Each of the three draft mission statements developed during the second organizational strategic
planning workshop were combined into a single summary draft mission statement:

The Douglas County Public Library meets the informational, educational, recreational and
cultural needs of the people of Douglas County by providing a comprehensive and high quality
collection of materials, programs, services and technology.

We actively engage in community outreach by providing a relevant and diverse collection aimed
at serving the existing, evolving and changing needs and wants of everyone who uses the Library
and depends on the Library for their educational, social and personal and professional
development.

This summarized draft mission statement was further reviewed and revised during the third
organizational strategic planning workshop held on April 2, 2022. Based on the input received
from workshop participants during this third organizational strategic planning workshop, a final

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 50 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



new strategic mission statement, as part of this new five-year organizational strategic plan for the
Douglas County Public Library, was developed and is presented in Section 5.0 of this University
Center for Economic Development technical report.

4.3 Development of an Organizational Strategic Vision Statement

An organizational strategic vision statement should describe the general direction of where the
organization is headed and what the organization aims to achieve by the end of the strategic
plan’s five-year planning horizon. While falling short of providing day-by-day instruction, the
strategic vision statement should provide a general overview of the desired course and direction
the organization has charted. An effectively worded strategic vision statement should be
graphic, directional, focused, flexible, feasible, desirable, and easy to communicate. The
strategic vision statement provides criteria through which day-to-day activities and short-term
decisions can be evaluated. Ultimately, day-to-day activities and short-term decisions are
evaluated by how they contribute to the achievement of the desired course and direction
described in the strategic vision statement.

Development of a new organizational strategic vision statement for the Douglas County Public
Library’s new five-year organizational strategic plan began during the first organizational
strategic planning workshop held on November 19, 2021 and November 20, 2021. During this
first organizational strategic planning workshop, workshop participants were asked to answer
four specific questions, including: (1) What are your personal hopes and aspirations for Douglas
County as a community for the next five years?, (2) What are your personal hopes and
aspirations for the Douglas County Public Library over the next five years?, (3) What are your
personal hopes and aspirations for Douglas County as a community for the next 20 to 30 years?,
and (4) What are your personal hopes and aspirations for the Douglas County Public Library
over the next 20 to 30 years?

Figure 4.1 presents a word cloud summarizing the answers to the question, What are your
personal hopes and aspirations for Douglas County as a community for the next five years?, as
provided by workshop participants.

Over the next five years, the two most frequently listed personal hopes and aspirations for
Douglas County, as identified by workshop participants, included the continued development
and improvement of countywide broadband and telecommunication infrastructure and access and
that people already living throughout Douglas County will better recognize and come to accept
the growing level of diversity that is occurring as the county’s residential population continues to
grow. A number of workshop participants noted that parts of Douglas County still have limited
broadband and telecommunication access and that significant and immediate investment in
existing broadband and telecommunication access is needed to support the county’s growing
population. The personal hope and aspiration for significantly improved broadband and
telecommunication infrastructure and access was extended by workshop participants to cover a
broader range of public infrastructure needs including improved surface roadway and
transportation related infrastructure, improved sewer and water infrastructure, and more
sustainable energy production and distribution infrastructure. Included in this discussion was

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 51 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



also the hope and aspiration that additional investment will be made in the county’s existing
stock of public assets including the Douglas County Public Library, existing public schools, new
parks and recreational facilities, and improved services and facilities to support the county’s
growing senior and elderly population. Like most of the northwestern Nevada region, workshop
participants also identified a growing need for affordable and attainable quality housing.
Workshop participants expressed their personal hope and aspiration that Douglas County can
work collaboratively with local, regional, and state partners to develop a long-term plan designed
to address the area’s growing housing concerns.

Figure 4.1 — What are your personal hopes and aspirations for Douglas County as a
community for the next five years?

13 u]

intangibles :
departments
Bgrowth = views

increased

0T

ommunical

a2 = ty O

— o DECOME Le| -ﬁ,,i_:nuny
z nfrastru S cnurmmeni 5 pan 55“""' nifies E Lakefulure
S affordable ”r"l“ i money s FhEtter 5
ri- a 'f:' areds llbrar',-'— s O
= e

I ::|-:'.-__-._.

guality
e differing supporthousing ~tgenerations
ﬂpulauhn

The personal hope and aspiration that Douglas County, as a community, becomes more
supportive of the diversity that already exists throughout the county and will continue to grow as
the county’s population continues to increase was expressed by a number of workshop
participants. Several workshop participants noted that support of and value for social and
cultural diversity is embedded in the Douglas County Public Library’s own core values and core
functions and is evident in the diversity of programs, resources, and services that the Library
routinely provides to its diverse patron and visitor base. While unanimous community
agreement is not the goal, workshop participants expressed their immediate hope and aspiration
that individuals simply become more tolerant of diverse and differing opinions and views
regardless of their own social, economic, or political points of view. More unified community
leadership and less division is needed if the county, as a community, is going to better manage
the already significant population growth that has occurred over the past several years while
retaining Douglas County’s existing cultural identity. Several workshop participants noted that

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 52 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



the Douglas County Public Library should be part of this ‘conversation’ regarding diversity by
providing uncensored access to programs, resources, and services that support a broader
understanding of differing ideas, opinions, and perspectives.

Figure 4.2 presents a word cloud summarizing the answers to the question, What are your
personal hopes and aspirations for the Douglas County Public Library over the next five years?,
as provided by workshop participants.

Figure 4.2 — What are your personal hopes and aspirations for the Douglas County Public
Library over the next five years?

3

|"I.-I ncial liEntEer o
support consistents iy

organized collections ""‘” ement =3|.".E EIC'JI:'$ bulIdIr'lg":'"3:"'|"C'|'3'Z||'EE
[

opealon upcae ©MD rauemcreased
I..Ilt,;cl_'p::lrler:n"f"l" c:I I b y EC oun tyd Bed eXpan d

_E.-.u I additiorweaek
I:ur.;nc‘" bbbl .

2 m
;o T
greais glncarinr : E_’_;
oy _staff 4
Il =
) :.'!T::I'.a.;;_‘l E‘
.[l:.'l-j.i.-rl 0D ':"m

mresourceremodel -l =
Mindengxpansion  Lrust dlgltai nrogrs ms n eW reCogn iL-:ul"—'I

streamline

physical _-.n-hqi'gf"-"l'l.pe | EH e rSh | ps

~

In the short term, workshop participants expressed the hope and aspiration that the Douglas
County Public Library continue to be an active and respected part of the broader community.
Expanded existing and new partnerships with other public sector agencies, private sector firms,
and community-based organizations were each identified by several workshop participants in
regard to how they would like to see the Douglas County Public Library become an even more
engaged member of the community. As part of this effort, several workshop participants would
like to see the Douglas County Public Library build additional trust with the community and
increase the overall engagement that the public has with the Library, especially among
underserved populations. Workshop participants also expressed the hope and aspiration that the
Douglas County Public Library will continue to expand existing programs, resources, and
services and will create new programs, resources, and services that will further make the Library
the ‘go to place’ for patrons, visitors, and community residents. Workshop participants also
expressed their personal hope and aspiration that the Douglas County Public Library’s financial
and non-financial resources will be significantly increased in order to expand existing and create

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 53 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



new programs, resources, services to a level that matches the increased demand that the Library
currently faces. Updated collections, embracing new technologies while modernizing existing
technologies already employed and offered by the Library, expanded hours of operation, and
more stable funding were all additional personal hopes and aspirations that workshop
participants expressed for the Douglas County Public Library for the next five years.

Figure 4.3 presents a word cloud summarizing the answers to the question, What are your
personal hopes and aspirations for Douglas County as a community for the next 20 to 30 years?,
as provided by workshop participants.

Figure 4.3 — What are your personal hopes and aspirations for Douglas County as a
community for the next 20 to 30 years?

growtn
trans ortation

roa ’llanr'l paunger - natural -
fainak nace SETVILE atac upen
i |5:3rMLE ff i “” I protectad I | S

maintam

housing

Longer-term, workshop participant personal hopes and aspirations for Douglas County as a
community over the next 20 to 30 years were almost exclusively focused on the pressures that
Douglas County is currently facing because of significant and sustainable population growth.
Better long-term management of population growth, a more purposeful focus on sustainable
growth, increased and more diverse public transportation services and options, and more
affordable and attainable affordable housing were a few of the specific areas that workshop
participants noted in identifying their own long term personal hopes and aspirations for Douglas
County over the next 20 to 30 years. More services for families with younger children and more
services for the county’s growing senior and elderly populations were additional personal hopes
and aspirations identified by workshop participants. Several workshop participants suggested
that the Douglas County Public Library should work collaboratively with other public agencies
and organizations, such as the Douglas County School District and Douglas County Senior

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 54 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022




Services, to identify the specific programs, resources, and services families with younger
children and senior and elderly populations currently need and will need over the next 20 to 30
years and how the Library could help provide and deliver these programs, resources, and
services.

Figure 4.4 presents a word cloud summarizing the answers to the question, What are your
personal hopes and aspirations for the Douglas County Public Library over the next 20 to 30
years?, as provided by workshop participants.

Figure 4.4 — What are your personal hopes and aspirations for the Douglas County Public
Library over the next 20 to 30 years?

y

seed

| rar

~Tahoe | ..
new richos

“* branch Branch

SEIVICES

The most common personal hope and aspiration shared by workshop participants for the Douglas
County Public Library for the next 20 to 30 years focused on addressing the need for improved
physical facilities, including needed improvements at both the Minden Library and Lake Tahoe
Branch and the development and opening of a new branch library that can serve growing parts of
Douglas County that are currently underserved by the existing branch library locations. The
existing branch libraries, including the Minden Library and the Lake Tahoe Branch, lack the
necessary dedicated program and activity space to effectively support the growing set of
programs and activities already provided by the Douglas County Public Library. Increased and
better dedicated technology space, quiet reading and study space, and additional ‘flex’ space is
needed at both the Minden Library and at the Lake Tahoe Branch and both branch libraries suffer
from a chronic shortage of storage and dedicated staff space. Several workshop participants
noted, as part of this personal hope and aspiration, that the physical infrastructure of both branch
libraries, including existing telecommunication and networking infrastructure, requires

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 55 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



significant modernization that will have to be started in the short term and completed over the
long term in order to maintain and expand existing program, resource, and service offerings.

Much of the county’s recent population growth has occurred in geographic areas that are
increasingly farther and farther away from the existing locations of the Minden Library and the
Lake Tahoe Branch. A new branch library, located in a position to better serve parts of the
county such as Jacks Valley, Johnson Lane, the Ranchos Douglas County, and the Topaz Ranch
Estates, is already needed and workshop participants hope that the Douglas County Public
Library will be able to develop and open a new branch library that is more centrally located to
the parts of the county that have and will likely continue to experience significant and sustained
population growth over the next 20 to 30 years. A number of workshop participants also noted
that they would like to see the Douglas County Public Library at least consider and possibly
complete a relocation of the existing Lake Tahoe Branch to a more centrally located part of the
portion of Douglas County that is part of the Lake Tahoe basin. The current Lake Tahoe Branch,
while located along a major transportation corridor, is somewhat hidden from view and lacks
direct and easy access to individuals who do not have their own personal automobile
transportation. Relocation of the Lake Tahoe Branch to a more populated and more visible part
of the Lake Tahoe basin could significantly increase the impact that the Douglas County Public
Library has throughout the basin and in the communities that are located around Lake Tahoe.

As part of the development of a new strategic vision statement for the Douglas County Public
Library, workshop participants during the second organizational strategic planning workshop
held on January 28, 2022 and January 29, 2022 were asked to draft a set of new strategic vision
statements. Workshop participant were asked to ensure that each draft vision statement be future
focused and oriented, be focused on desired impacts, outcomes, and results, and be limited to one
or two sentences. Workshop participants were also asked to provide some additional explanatory
description of their draft vision statements by defining key terms within their own draft vision
statement. The resulting three draft strategic vision statements were developed during the second
Douglas County Public Library strategic planning workshop and are presented here:

¢ In five years, the Douglas County Public Library will be the definitive place for business
resources and information on the community, teens (latest, greatest technology), seniors
(books, large print, audio, history, information), adults (classes on digital resources,
employment opportunities, job applications, searching for jobs), and families (activities,
kids programs) in our more literate (improved reading ability and skills, success in
schools) and informed (access to data and resources to make informed decisions)
community.

¢ In the next five years, the Douglas County Public Library will be an inviting space that
will meet the educational, informational, recreational and cultural needs of the
community.

In the next five years, the Douglas County Public Library will be the primary gateway in
Douglas County for information.

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 56 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



In the next five years, the Douglas County Public Library will become a place where
people can go and get information (history, culture, employment opportunities, reference
materials, research), reading materials, and a place where people WANT to go (excited
about the library, reading, ‘finding out about...”).

Key Aspirations: comfortable space, welcoming, a literate and informed community.

e In the next five years, the Douglas County Public Library will achieve expanding services
to previously underused populations and creating a comfortable and welcoming
environment through updated facilities. We also strive to keep current with new and
innovative technologies.

Comfortable: clean, ample seating, warm, natural lighting, organized and cohesive
design.

Welcoming: friendly staff who are helpful and greet patrons immediately; inclusive
programming.

Each of the initially drafted vision statements shared a number of common elements including
expanding the Douglas County Public Library’s reach to a broader and more diverse patron and
visitor base, improving the Library’s existing physical facilities, and having specific positive
impacts on the lives of various Douglas County residents across a broad range of socio-
demographic and income groups. Workshop participants also focused on the relationship
between the programs, resources, and services provided by the Douglas County Public Library
and the educational, informational, recreational, and cultural needs and wants of Library patrons
and visitors. The three draft vision statements developed during the second organizational
strategic planning workshop were combined into a single summary draft vision statement:

Over the next five years, the Douglas County Public Library is committed to the broader goal of
building a truly literate and informed community where existing, evolving and changing
individual educational, informational, recreational, and cultural needs and wants are met.

By offering a welcoming and inviting place for people to use, by striving to routinely improve
and enhance our collection of materials, programs, services, and technology, and by working
collaboratively with community stakeholders, the Douglas County Public Library will become
the definitive place for all people and a primary gateway of educational, informational,
recreational, and cultural activities.

This summarized draft vision statement was further reviewed and revised during the third
organizational strategic planning workshop held on April 2, 2022. Based on the input received
from workshop participants during this third organizational strategic planning workshop, a final
new strategic vision statement, as part of this new five-year organizational strategic plan for the
Douglas County Public Library, was developed and is presented in Section 5.0 of this University
Center for Economic Development technical report.

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 57 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



4.4 Development of a Set of Strategic Goals, Objectives, and Activities

According to the US Department of Agriculture Rural Development’s Stronger Economies
Together (SET) strategic planning curriculum, SMART goals should be specific, measurable,
attainable, relevant, and time framed. A specific goal clearly states what should be achieved and
where efforts will be focused. A measurable goal provides a plan to track and assess progress
made in achieving the goal and establishes milestones to be achieved during the strategic plan’s
implementation. An attainable goal takes into account the availability of needed resources while
also recognizing the factors that might prevent the organization from achieving the goal. A
relevant goal provides an idea as to why it is important for the organization to achieve it by
outlining the benefit of achieving the goal. A time framed goal is one that has a clearly defined
target date for accomplishing the goal.

Using the definitions of a SMART goal provided above, workshop participants who participated
in the second organizational strategic plan for the Douglas County Public Library held on

January 28, 2022 and January 29, 2022 developed a series of new strategic goals. Working in
small groups, workshop participants developed 16 separate new draft strategic goals, including:

e Increase community partnerships to a minimum of ten in Douglas County by December
2027.

e Develop five programs for each of the community’s racial and ethnic populations by
December 2027.

e Develop and deliver different methodologies of existing and evolving technologies for
adults by December 2027.

e Develop a facility to support the services of the Library by December 2027.
e Hire a firm to renovate and reconfigure existing space at the Minden Library by 2024.
e Create a Public Relations campaign.

e Participate in community events and reach out to organizations for promotion of library
programs and services each year.

e Expand participation in the Summer Reading Program.

e Increase library usage by 5 percent each year.

e Seek out grant funding opportunities for existing and expanding current programs.
e Expansion on partnership with Washoe Tribe.

e Get a new library branch/renovate current main branch.

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 58 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



e Swap out Pine Nut Room Collection with Teen’s Services.
¢ Increase attendance at youth programs by 80 percent.
e Increase positive public perception and engagement by 15 percent.

e Fostering a space for technological programming and education.

In subsequent facilitated small group exercises, workshop participants would refine each of the
16 draft strategic goals and develop a comprehensive implementation plan for each individual
strategic goal. This effort would include the identification of assets needed for implementation,
existing capital resources that could be used to support achievement of the goal, and the
identification of possible barriers that might impede achievement of the goal. Workshop
participants were also asked to identify specific conditions that each goal is designed to address,
individual behaviors that will require modification and change, and new attitudes, knowledge,
and skill sets needed to facilitate implementation. As part of the implementation plan, workshop
participants would also develop at least one specific actionable item that could be pursued and
achieved that would facilitate eventual achievement of the specific strategic goal. The details of
this comprehensive implementation plan, along with a refinement and sorting of the initial 16
draft strategic goals, are presented in Section 5.0 of this University Center for Economic
Development technical report.

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 59 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



5.0 A Strategic Plan for the Douglas County
Public Library, 2022 through 2027

The strategic plan for the Douglas County Public Library for the five-year period for 2022
through 2027 outlined in this section consists of a set of core values, a strategic mission
statement, a strategic vision statement, and a set of organizational goals the Douglas County
Public Library will strive to achieve over the next five years. A comprehensive implementation
and action plan for each individual strategic goal is also outlined in this section. Once adopted, it
will be up to the administrative and managerial staff of the Douglas County Public Library,
working in partnership with its various internal and external stakeholders including members of
the Douglas County Public Library’s Board of Trustees and the Friends of the Library group, to
more fully develop these implementation and action items and initiate implementation.

5.1 Core Values of the Douglas County Public Library

For the five year 2022 through 2027 strategic planning horizon, the Douglas County Public
Library, including its staff, volunteers, and representatives, will live and promote the values of
Freedom of Access and Information, Stewardship and Accountability, Equitable Service and
Treatment, Quality Service, Community Engagement, and Professional Development.

The core values presented here are listed in order of priority set by workshop participants who
developed and refined these core values during the various organizational strategic planning
workshops, including the final organizational strategic planning workshop held on April 2, 2022.
They are listed in rank order of priority to provide the Douglas County Public Library and its
staff with general guidance on which core values to prioritize over others if they appear to
conflict with each other. Presented here is a list of each of the six core values and the final
definitions developed by workshop participants for each core value:

o Freedom of Access and Information: The Douglas County Public Library will protect
the rights of all people to access the information, resources, services, and programs
offered by the Library without restriction in compliance with the American Library
Association’s Bill of Rights.

o Stewardship and Accountability: The Douglas County Public Library and all Library
employees and representatives are accountable for the efficient and effective use of all
Library tangible and intangible resources, including facilities and staff, which are
dedicated to supporting the informational, recreational, and cultural needs of the people
of Douglas County.

e Equitable Service and Treatment. In order to serve our patrons, Douglas County Public
Library employees and representatives are expected to treat each other, our patrons, and

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 60 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



everyone who interacts with the Douglas County Public Library with equitable treatment
and respect, with integrity, and with the goal of protecting the patron’s right to privacy,
their personal information, and their library usage information. Douglas County Public
Library employees and representatives are expected to behave in a manner that is
consistent with the Library’s stated policies regarding the treatment of other employees
and representatives, patrons, and with anyone that interacts with the Library and are
expected to be informed about all Library policies and procedures and comply with them
in a responsible manner.

e  Quality Service: The Douglas County Public Library places a high priority on providing
exceptional quality service to our patrons in order to meet their informational,
recreational, and cultural needs and wants. In order to help our patrons meet their
existing, evolving, and changing informational, recreational, and cultural needs and
wants, the Douglas County Public Library places a high priority on exceptional customer
service that begins by acknowledging our patron’s needs and wants and proactively
helping patrons meet them with the information, resources, services, and programs that
we provide.

o  Community Engagement. The Douglas County Public Library and its employees and
representatives are committed to engagement with our community and stakeholders by
striving to recognize the unique environmental factors that patrons may experience in
order to serve our community and to build support for the Douglas County Public
Library. We are committed to informing our community about the information,
resources, services, and programs offered by the Douglas County Public Library through
traditional and non-traditional engagement and outreach efforts including making the
technological resources offered by the Library available to the public.

e Professional Development. Representatives of the Douglas County Public Library are
expected to engage in regular professional development opportunities and training in
order to meet the existing, evolving, and changing informational, recreational, and
cultural needs and wants of our patrons and of our community. Representatives of the
Douglas County Public Library expect that the Douglas County Public Library will make
professional development opportunities available to Library staff on a regular basis and
without additional cost incurred by the individual representative but as resources are
available for the support of professional development opportunities. Building a highly
qualified and responsive staff is an essential step in achieving the Library’s overall
mission and engaging in routine professional development opportunities is an essential
step in our representatives building trust, becoming leaders within the organization, and
taking advantage of opportunities for advancement and personal and professional growth.

These six core values are universal in that all employees, volunteers, and anyone who represents
the Douglas County Public Library in an official capacity are expected to live up to and emulate
them at all times when representing the Library in either their professional capacity or in their
personal activities. Each core value represents the fundamental beliefs, traits, and behavioral
norms that all personnel and members of the Douglas County Public Library are expected to
display in conducting the Library’s functions and in pursuing its strategic vision and mission,

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 61 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



and in pursuit of the organizational strategic goals that are part of this new five-year
organizational strategic plan.

5.2 Strategic Mission of the Douglas County Public Library

Based upon the various draft strategic mission statements developed during the strategic
planning process, the following will serve as the Douglas County Public Library’s strategic
mission statement for the five-year 2022 through 2027 strategic planning horizon:

The Douglas County Public Library meets the informational, educational, recreational and
cultural needs of the people of Douglas County by providing a comprehensive and high
quality collection of materials, programs, services and technology.

We actively engage in community outreach by providing a relevant and diverse collection
aimed at serving the existing, evolving and changing needs and wants of everyone who uses
the Library and depends on the Library for educational, social, personal and professional
development.

The development and delivery of Library programs, resources, and services are done to ensure
that the informational, educational, recreation and cultural needs of the people of Douglas
County are met. This mission statement requires that Douglas County Public Library staff,
volunteers, and representatives prioritize the reasonable needs and wants of Library patrons and
visitors in the official conducting of all official organizational functions and operations.

5.3 Strategic Vision of the Douglas County Public Library

Based upon the various draft strategic vision statements developed during the strategic planning
process, the following will serve as the Douglas County Public Library’s strategic vision
statement for the five-year 2022 through 2027 strategic planning horizon:

Over the next five years, the Douglas County Public Library is committed to the broader goal
of building a truly literate and informed community where existing, evolving and changing
individual educational, informational, recreational and cultural needs and wants are met.

The Douglas County Public Library will become a trusted and definitive place for all people
and a primary gateway of educational, informational, recreational, and cultural activities by
offering a welcoming and inviting place for people to use, striving to routinely improve and
enhance the collection of materials, programs, services and technology, and by working
collaboratively with community stakeholders.

This vision statement is aspirational in that it represents the ultimate result of successfully
achieving all the stated strategic goals outlined in this new five-year organizational strategic plan
for the Douglas County Public Library. Successful implementation and achievement of the

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 62 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



various strategic goals and objectives listed below will contribute to the achievement and
realization of this strategic vision.

5.4 Strategic Goals of the Douglas County Public Library

For the five-year strategic planning horizon for 2022 through 2027, the Douglas County Public
Library will commit itself to the achievement of policies and the development of programs,
resources, and services designed to achieve 16 specific strategic organizational goals divided into
three primary goal areas, including: (1) Operations, Programs, Resources, and Services, (2)
Facility Improvements, and (3) Community Outreach and Engagement. The Operations,
Programs, Resources, and Services primary goal area consists of six separate strategic
organizational goals, the Facility Improvements primary goal area consists of five separate
strategic organizational goals, and the Community Outreach and Engagement primary goal area
consists of an additional five strategic organizational goals.

5.4.a Operations, Programs, Resources, and Services Strategic Organizational Goals

The six specific strategic organizational goals for the Operations, Programs, Resources, and
Services (OPRS) primary goal area are:

e OPRS Goal No. 1: Within six months to a year of adoption of this five-year strategic
plan, the Douglas County Public Library will successfully and measurably expand overall
participation in the existing Summer Reading Program.

e OPRS Goal No. 2: By 2025, the Douglas County Public Library will increase overall
attendance at and participation in the Library’s various youth programs by 80 percent.

e OPRS Goal No. 3: The Douglas County Public Library will successfully develop and
implement at least five new programs designed to serve identified underserved

populations including, but not limited to, specific racial and ethnic populations by
December 2027.

e OPRS Goal No. 4: The Douglas County Public Library will successfully develop and
deliver different programs, resources, and services, with explicit methodologies for

implementation, designed to address the existing and evolving technology needs of adults
by December 2027.

e OPRS Goal No. 5: Over the next five years, the Douglas County Public Library will
increase overall library usage by 5 percent each year.

e OPRS Goal No. 6: Over the next five years, the Douglas County Public Library will
seek out and attempt to secure grant funding opportunities in order to support Library
programs, resources, and services.

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 63 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



Progress toward the achievement of each of the six Operations, Programs, Resources, and
Services goals will be evaluated each year over the next five years based on the elements of the
comprehensive implementation and action plan outlined in the following subsections. Additional
Operations, Programs, Resources, and Services goals may be developed over the course of the
five-year strategic planning horizon based upon possible changes to the internal and external
environment of the Douglas County Public Library, based upon the changing needs and wants of
Library patrons and visitors, and based upon the availability of needed financial and non-
financial resources.

5.4.b Facility Improvements Strategic Organizational Goals

The five specific strategic organizational goals for the Facility Improvements (FI) primary goal
area are:

¢ FI Goal No. 1: Within six months to a year of adoption of this five-year strategic plan,
the Douglas County Public Library will develop expanded teen and young adult services
and a dedicated space.

e FI Goal No. 2: By 2024, the Douglas County Public Library will hire a firm to renovate
and reconfigure the existing space at the Minden Library and at the Lake Tahoe Branch
in order to improve overall program, resource, and service delivery.

e FI Goal No. 3: By 2025, the Douglas County Public Library will develop a dedicated
space for programming and education in order to support the development of a
supporting technology curriculum.

¢ FI Goal No. 4: By December 2027, the Douglas County Public Library will complete
the planning and begin the development of facility improvements needed to support
additional program, resource, and service development.

¢ FI Goal No. 5: By the end of this five-year strategic planning horizon, the Douglas
County Public Library will complete the plans for and begun implementation of a new
branch library, the renovation of the current Minden Branch, or some combination
dependent upon resource availability.

Progress toward the achievement of each of the five Facility Improvements goals, like the
various Operations, Programs, Resources, and Services goals, will be evaluated each year over
the next five years based on the elements of the comprehensive implementation and action plan
outlined in the following subsections. Additional Facility Improvements goals may be
developed over the course of the five-year strategic planning horizon based upon possible
changes to the internal and external environment of the Douglas County Public Library, based
upon the changing needs and wants of Library patrons and visitors, and based upon the
availability of needed financial and non-financial resources.

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 64 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



5.4.c Community Outreach and Engagement Strategic Organizational Goals

The five specific strategic organizational goals for the Community Outreach and Engagement
(COE) primary goal area are:

e COE Goal No. 1: Within six months of adoption of this strategic plan, the Douglas
County Public Library will develop a comprehensive public relations campaign which
will include staff training on the development and execution of various marketing
strategies.

e COE Goal No. 2: By the end of 2023, the Douglas County Public Library will expand
its existing partnership and engagement with the Washoe Tribe to include participation in
Tribal events.

e COE Goal No. 3: Using existing metrics, the Douglas County Public Library will
significantly and measurably increase overall public perception and engagement by 2024.

e COE Goal No. 4: By December 2027, the Douglas County Public Library will increase
the total number of active community partnerships with Douglas County stakeholders to a
minimum target of ten new partnerships.

¢ COE Goal No. 5: Over the next five years, the Douglas County Public Library will
increase overall participation in community events and activity outreach and engage with
various stakeholders and community organizations in order to more effectively promote
Library programs, resources, and services.

Progress toward the achievement of each of the five Community Outreach and Engagement
goals, like the various Facility Improvements goals and the various Operations, Programs,
Resources, and Services goals, will be evaluated each year over the next five years based on the
elements of the comprehensive implementation and action plan outlined in the following
subsections. Additional Facility Improvements goals may be developed over the course of the
five-year strategic planning horizon based upon possible changes to the internal and external
environment of the Douglas County Public Library, based upon the changing needs and wants of
Library patrons and visitors, and based upon the availability of needed financial and non-
financial resources.

5.5 An Accompanying Implementation Plan for Each Strategic Organizational
Goal

Comprehensive implementation and action plans have three individual components. Assets that
will be needed to achieve the goal but do not currently exist are identified for each individual
goal along with existing capital resources that can be redeployed internally within the
organization toward achieving the specific goal and contingency steps are planned out to address
barriers that might arise and threaten overall achievement. Next, conditions that the individual
goal is designed to change, behaviors or concrete actions that an organization can take to achieve

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 65 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



the stated conditional change, and attitudes, knowledge, and skill sets that must be learned or
developed to affect positive change are also developed for each individual goal. Finally, a
specific strategy, or set of actionable items, that will contribute to the achievement of each
individual goal is developed and assigned.

The development of an accompanying implementation plan for each new strategic goal includes
the identification of specific assets an organization does not have control of or access to but will
be needed to achieve the stated strategic goal. Assets can be divided into four categories,
including: (1) people, (2) physical resources, natural and human made, (3) voluntary
associations, strategic partnerships, and (4) local formal institutions. People assets are the talents
and skills of people both within and outside the organization that have access to and can provide
important resources the organization will require. Physical resources, both natural and human
made, include water and land-related amenities, vacant and underutilized buildings, historical
and cultural sites, technology and equipment, and other physical ‘things’ the organization can
use or deploy to achieve organizational goals and objectives. Voluntary associations, generally
thought of as strategic partnerships, consist of relationships between the organization and other
agencies, entities, and even other organizations that can be counted on to assist the organization
in achieving mutually shared goals and objectives. Local formal institutions are other
organizations, typically a government or government agency, which can provide programs,
facilities and services to the organization. These local formal institutions tend to carry out
specific functions vital to the long-term sustainability of the organization’s efforts.

Capital resources are those resources that the organization already has some level of access to,
control over, and can be redeployed to affect the achievement of the state strategic goal. Capital
can be divided into seven interdependent categories, including: (1) natural, (2) cultural, (3)
human, (4) social, (5) political, (6) financial, and (7) built. Natural types of capital include the
quality and quantity of natural and environmental resources. Cultural types of capital include the
values, norms, beliefs and traditions of the community(ies) the organization operates within and
of the internal and external individuals who regularly engage with the organization. The
education and skills of organizational members and the learning opportunities and programs
designed to build organizational leadership are used to measure human capital. Social capital
includes the internal and external connections among people and the organization. Political
capital refers to the ability of the organization or individuals to influence and enforce rules and
regulations and can also refer to the organization’s degree of access to influential people and
decision makers. Political capital can also be measured by the degree of stakeholder engagement
with the organization. Financial capital is the ‘cash’ and other financial assets the organization
will need to develop and implement its own efforts. Built capital typically includes the
infrastructure, including facilities, services, and physical structures, needed in order to support
organizational activities.

An implementation plan includes exploring the possible barriers that might arise during
implementation and that could prevent an organization from successfully achieving all or part of
a specific strategic goal and objective. Barriers are forces that might hinder successful
achievement of a specific organizational goal or the successful implementation of the overall
strategic plan. Barriers can arise from within or outside the organization or can arise
simultaneously from within and outside the organization. Ultimately, successful implementation

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 66 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



of an organizational strategic plan involves developing effective countermeasures to reduce
resistance to implementation and overcome possible barriers as they arise.

The second step in developing a comprehensive implementation plan involves the identification
of underlying conditions, or the overarching changes, that successful achievement of a specific
strategic goal will affect. Typically, changes in underlying and targeted conditions can take up
to five years, or the duration of the entire strategic planning horizon, to achieve. Behaviors are
concrete actions that are directly linked to the underlying conditions that the specific strategic
goal is designed to change. Underlying conditions change because of changed behavior of
individuals and groups and are typically realized within one to two years. Attitudes, knowledge,
and skill sets are specific elements that individuals or organizations can learn or develop in a
rather short period of time, typically between six months to one year. Adopting and learning
new attitudes, new knowledge or understanding, and new skill sets are typically required to
enable the behavioral change that will then contribute to the positive change in the underlying
condition that successful achievement of a specific strategic goal is designed to influence.

The third and final step in developing a comprehensive implementation plan includes the
development of a specific strategy or set of strategies. A strategy is a specific actionable step
that a responsible person, group of people, or an organization can complete in order to influence
the learned attitude, knowledge, and/or skill set that will ultimately enable the behavioral change
and facilitate the overarching change in the underlying condition that the specific strategic goal is
focused on. A comprehensive strategy should include a specific actionable item, a person, group
of people, or organization that will be primarily responsible for implementing the actionable
item, a realistic timetable as to when needed assets, existing capital resources, and potential
barriers are assembled and possibly mitigated and when the specific actionable item is to be
implemented and completed, and regular checkpoints to ensure that forward progress is being
made in implementing the actionable item.

During the second organizational strategic planning workshop held on January 28, 2022 and
January 29, 2022 and as part of the development of a new five-year organizational strategic plan
for the Douglas County Public Library, workshop participants were first asked to develop a list
of needed assets, existing capital resources, and possible barriers for each initially drafted
strategic organizational goal. Workshop participants were then asked to identify the underlying
conditions that each individual strategic goal is designed to positively influence along with the
linked behavioral changes and learned attitude, knowledge, and/or skill set needed to affect
positive change in the identified underlying conditions. Finally, workshop participants were then
asked to develop at least one specific actionable item, or strategy, for each individual strategic
goal that would lead to forward progress in successfully completing the goal. These steps form
the basis of the implementation plan for the Douglas County Public Library’s new five-year
organizational strategic plan.

5.5.a Implementation Elements and Actionable Items for the Operations, Programs, Resources,
and Services (OPRS) Goals

The following subsection contains the identified needed assets, existing capital resources, and
possible barriers for each of the six Operations, Programs, Resources, and Services goals that

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 67 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



comprise the new five-year organizational strategic plan for the Douglas County Public Library.
This subsection also contains conditions, behaviors, and attitudes, knowledge, and skill sets that
will be positively impacted by the achievement of each Operations, Programs, Resources, and
Services strategic goal and at least one specific strategy and actionable item for each individual
strategic goal.

OPRS Goal No. 1: Within six months to a year of adoption of this five-year strategic
plan, the Douglas County Public Library will successfully and measurably expand overall
participation in the existing Summer Reading Program.

Needed Assets, Capital Resources, and Possible Barriers: Needed assets include
engagement with the Douglas County School District and promotion of the Summer
Reading Program by Douglas County School District administrators, teachers, and school
librarians, additional dedicated Summer Reading Program space(s), and additional
Library volunteers. Existing capital resources include continued support by the Friends
of the Library group and existing Library staff expertise. Potential barriers include a lack
of community participation and existing Summer Reading Spaces becoming too small to
support increased participation. The Douglas County Public Library will aggressively
promote and advertise the Summer Reading Program and pursue opportunities to
renovate and expand the existing meeting room at the Minden Library.

Conditions, Behaviors, and Attitudes, Knowledge, and Skill Sets: This goal seeks to
increase overall participation in the Summer Reading Program by 25 percent by 2027.
Library staff and representatives will seek to increase community awareness and
participation in the Summer Reading Program through increased public relations,
community engagement, and marketing, by increasing the overall ease of participation in
the program, and by partnering with other organizations such as the Douglas County
School District. Through book recommendations, teams, poster contests, provision of
scholastic ‘free’ books, the Douglas County Public Library will encourage the public to
adopt a ‘reading is fun’ attitude.

Specific Actionable Item(s): The first specific actionable item involves the Douglas
County Public Library contacting at least one representative at each Douglas County
School District school within one year that can serve as a distribution point for
information about the Library’s Summer Reading Program. The second specific
actionable item will require the creation of a dedicated space at both the Minden Library
and at the Lake Tahoe Branch where participants of the Summer Reading Program can
leave ‘child-to-child’ book recommendations. The third specific actionable item will
include the successful launching and completion of a Child Summer Reading Program
Poster Contest, led by a Library volunteer, within one year.

OPRS Goal No. 2: By 2025, the Douglas County Public Library will increase overall
attendance at and participation in the Library’s various youth programs by 80 percent.

Needed Assets, Capital Resources, and Possible Barriers: Needed assets include
additional patron participation, additional dedicated meeting and program space, and

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 68 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



needed furniture, fixtures, and equipment and related youth program materials. Existing
capital resources include existing Library staff and volunteer qualifications, existing
patron buy-in and support of the Library’s various youth programs, already dedicated
funding and financial resources, and existing social media engagement and publicity.
Possible barriers include a lack of community and targeted patron awareness of the
various youth programs and a reduced working relationship with the Douglas County
School District. The Douglas County Public Library will explore new ways of
publicizing existing and future youth programs and will recommit its focus on working
collaborating with Douglas County School District administrators, teachers, and school
librarians.

Conditions, Behaviors, and Attitudes, Knowledge, and Skill Sets: This goal seeks to
increase overall early childhood literacy rates across Douglas County. Increasing overall
attendance and participation in the Library’s various youth programs will require
increased parental support and engagement. Parents of young children will need to learn
the importance of early childhood literacy and the positive impacts that improved
childhood literacy can have on their child’s development.

Specific Actionable Item(s): Within three years, assigned Douglas County Public Library
staff will complete a comprehensive assessment of existing youth programs, identify gaps
between program offerings and youth patron needs, and begin to develop and offer
additional youth programs. Regular participation rates will be estimated and reported for
all youth programs offered by the Douglas County Public Library.

e OPRS Goal No. 3: The Douglas County Public Library will successfully develop and
implement at least five new programs designed to serve identified underserved
populations including, but not limited to, specific racial and ethnic populations by
December 2027.

Needed Assets, Capital Resources, and Possible Barriers: Needed assets include the
identification of specific populations, individuals with connections to the identified
populations, a physical location and means to deliver programs and services, and
identification of associations that represent different populations and institutions.
Existing capital resources include the county’s existing Temporary Assistance for Needy
Families (TANF) representative/coordinator. Possible barriers include failure to identify
the targeted and in-need populations and not having enough internal staff with the
necessary expertise. The Douglas County Public Library will seek to identify the specific
in-need populations to serve, continue to develop targeted programs and services, and
allocate funding needed for staff development.

Conditions, Behaviors, and Attitudes, Knowledge, and Skill Sets: This goal will seek to
increase overall awareness of and participation in various Douglas County Public Library
programs, resources, and services among designated and identified populations and
population groups. The Douglas County Public Library will need to increase its overall
level of contact and engagement with designated and identified populations and
population groups by better identifying and developing working relationships with these

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 69 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



individual populations and population groups in order to develop programs, resources,
and services that serve specific needs and wants.

Specific Actionable Item(s): Within one to two years, the Douglas County Public Library
will identify targeted in-need and underserved populations and develop and deliver
targeted new programs, resources, and services. Responsibility for completion of this
specific actionable item and strategy will be assigned to appropriate Library managers.
The Douglas County Public Library will count the number of participants that were
served by the targeted new programs, resources, and services.

e OPRS Goal No. 4: The Douglas County Public Library will successfully develop and
deliver different programs, resources, and services, with explicit methodologies for

implementation, designed to address the existing and evolving technology needs of adults
by December 2027.

Needed Assets, Capital Resources, and Possible Barriers: Needed assets include staff
with the required expertise, a facility large enough to house associated technological
equipment and resources, and increased engagement with organizations such as the
Nevada Department of Training, Employment, and Rehabilitation, JOIN, Inc., and local
Chambers of Commerce. Existing capital resources include the existing staff and other
representatives for the Douglas County Public Library. Possible barriers generally
include the necessary financial resources needed to purchase and maintain additional
technological equipment and resources. The Douglas County Public Library will actively
pursue different grants to address potential financial resource shortfalls and actively
create partnerships with technology related associations and private sector businesses.

Conditions, Behaviors, and Attitudes, Knowledge, and Skill Sets: This goal seeks to
increase overall accessibility and usage of technology throughout Douglas County.
Douglas County Public Library staff will develop and implement new technology
training programs and services and will maintain current technology resources while
expanding into new areas of technology.

Specific Actionable Item(s): The Douglas County Public Library will develop and
implement a new technology training and assistance program within two to three years
and the appropriate Library Supervisor (or a newly hired Senior Library Technician) will
be responsible for implementing this specific actionable item and strategy. Success of
this strategy will be based on estimated participation rates of the new technology training
and assistance program.

e OPRS Goal No. 5: Over the next five years, the Douglas County Public Library will
increase overall library usage by 5 percent each year.

Needed Assets, Capital Resources, and Possible Barriers: Needed resources include
improved statistical tracking and evaluation of Library usage and additional public
relations, community outreach, and marketing activities. Existing capital resources
include the two existing branch libraries including the Minden Library and the Lake

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 70 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



Tahoe Branch, existing Library staff and volunteers, and existing Library online and
‘app’ resources. Possible barriers include failed efforts to expand the Library’s visibility
throughout the county and throughout individual communities. Douglas County Public
Library staff will develop and implement a comprehensive public relations, community
engagement, and marketing campaign designed to increase the Library’s overall
visibility. Staff and volunteer resources will be dedicated to this effort and needed
renovations and improvements to both the Minden Library and the Lake Tahoe Branch
will be completed.

Conditions, Behaviors, and Attitudes, Knowledge, and Skill Sets: Specific conditions to
be changed by the achievement of this strategic goal include additional financial
resources and increased community support, increased overall library usage, increased
variety and number of events and activities that are hosted by the Library (more reasons
for the public, patrons, visitors, and community to use the Douglas County Public
Library), and a general increase in participation of approximately 25 percent in the
Summer Reading Program. Promoting the value of the Library to the Douglas County
Board of County Commissioners, improved internal staff and representative skill in
public relations, community engagement, and marketing, improved partnerships with
external stakeholders, and improved tracking of Library program, resource, and service
usage are behavioral changes needed to support achievement of this strategic goal. The
public, patrons, visitors, and the community will develop an attitude that the Douglas
County Public Library is a comfortable and welcoming place.

Specific Actionable Item(s): Within one year, the Douglas County Public Library will
increase the number of Bookmobile location stops and increase overall marketing of the
Bookmobile to underserved parts of Douglas County. Library card sign-up drives will be
incorporated into the new Bookmobile location stops as well as during special events
including the American Library Association’s Library Card Signup Month. Appropriate
Library staff will be assigned the responsibility for completing each of these specific
actionable items including increasing the frequency and visibility of Bookmobile services
and library card sign-up drives.

e OPRS Goal No. 6: Over the next five years, the Douglas County Public Library will
seek out and attempt to secure grant funding opportunities in order to support Library
programs, resources, and services.

Needed Assets, Capital Resources, and Possible Barriers: Needed assets include the
hiring and training of a dedicated grants writer with the necessary skills (hire new or train
existing, include existing staff and volunteers). Existing capital resources include the
Library’s past success in applying for and receiving various grants, use of the Friends of
the Library to provide matching funds and/or to sponsor fundraising efforts to generate
the necessary matching funds, and the need to expand existing programs, resources, and
services. Possible barriers include the possibility that additional successful grant funding
could reduce existing funding provided by Douglas County. The Douglas County Public
Library will educate the Douglas County Board of County Commissioners and Douglas

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 71 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



County staff on how additional grant funding is needed to augment existing funding
levels (not replace them).

Conditions, Behaviors, and Attitudes, Knowledge, and Skill Sets: Existing conditions that
need to be changed prior to achievement of this strategic goal include the hiring of a
dedicated and training grant writer and the annual development of targeted grant funding
opportunities. Post-completion of this strategic goal, this strategic goal seeks to support
the Douglas County Public Library’s efforts to expand existing and create new programs,
resources, and services. Additional training in grant identification, writing, and
administration along with an annual grant targeting plan will need to be developed. The
Douglas County Public Library will need to see the value in dedicating significant staff
time and resources to grant identification, writing, and administration by hiring the
necessary staff.

Specific Actionable Item(s): The Douglas County Public Library will develop a grant
writing and administration training program in partnership with Nevada System of
Higher Education institutions (possibly Western Nevada College and/or the University of
Nevada, Reno) and with possible privately owned community foundations. A ‘certificate
in grant writing’ will be given to Library staff that complete the training program and this
specific actionable item will be completed within one year by the end of 2023.

Achievement of each strategic goal’s specific actionable item, as well as the successful change in
the identified underlying condition, behavior, and attitude, knowledge, and/or skill set will be
evaluated each year over the five-year 2022 through 2027 strategic planning horizon.

5.5.b Implementation Elements and Actionable Items for the Facility Improvements (FI) Goals

The following subsection contains the identified needed assets, existing capital resources, and
possible barriers for each of the five Facility Improvements goals that comprise the new five-
year organizational strategic plan for the Douglas County Public Library. This subsection also
contains conditions, behaviors, and attitudes, knowledge, and skill sets that will be positively
impacted by the achievement of each Facility Improvements strategic goal and at least one
specific strategy and actionable item for each individual strategic goal.

FI Goal No. 1: Within six months to a year of adoption of this five-year strategic plan,
the Douglas County Public Library will develop expanded teen and young adult services
and a dedicated space.

Needed Assets, Capital Resources, and Possible Barriers: Needed assets include the
necessary staff and staff time dedicated to completion of the necessary modifications and
improvements, needed space for the existing Nevada and Douglas County history
collections, and new furniture, fixtures, and equipment and other materials needed to
support expanded teen and young adult services. Exiting capital resources include strong
internal staff support, increased demand for dedicated teen and young adult service space,
and already allocated and dedicated funding and financial resources. Possible barriers
include the lack of necessary time to complete the necessary modifications and

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 72 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



improvements and possible resistance from patrons who prefer the Pine Nut Room as is
currently laid out. The Douglas County Public Library will dedicate the necessary staff
time and potentially use temporary workers and volunteers (possibly retired staff) and
educate patrons on the benefits of completing the necessary modifications and
improvements.

Conditions, Behaviors, and Attitudes, Knowledge, and Skill Sets: Completion of this
strategic goal will result in the development of a new dedicated space for teen and young
adult services. The Douglas County Public Library hopes to provide a dedicated space
for teen and young adult services that will create a welcoming space for existing and new
Library patrons and users. Douglas County Public Library staff and representatives will
have to actively educate the public about the importance of having a dedicated space for
teen and young adult services.

Specific Actionable Item(s): Within six months, assigned Douglas County Public Library
staff will complete an evaluation of the current collection housed within the Pine Nut
Room and prepare for moving and relocating the existing collection. Assigned Douglas
County Public Library staff will also work with parents and teens to identify the needed
resources, including new furniture, fixtures, and equipment, to transform the Pine Nut
Room into a dedicated teen and young adult services space.

e FI Goal No. 2: By 2024, the Douglas County Public Library will hire a firm to renovate
and reconfigure the existing space at the Minden Library and at the Lake Tahoe Branch
in order to improve overall program, resource, and service delivery.

Needed Assets, Capital Resources, and Possible Barriers: Needed assets include a better
understanding of library building standards, needed square foot per patron, and an
estimate of the number of needed computer stations to support a growing population
along with the support of the Douglas County Board of County Commissioners, general
community support and support from existing Library patrons and visitors, needed
financial resources, and possible grants. Existing capital resources include the two
existing branches of the Douglas County Public Library including the Minden Library
and the Lake Tahoe Branch, existing community support of the Douglas County Public
Library and individual patrons and visitors that are passionate about the Library, and a
positive track record of the Douglas County Public Library applying for and receiving
grants. Possible barriers include a lack of funding and other needed financial resources.
Douglas County Public Library staff and representatives will work with the Douglas
County Public Library Board of County Commissioners and Douglas County government
staff to identify and secure the needed funding and other financial resources.

Conditions, Behaviors, and Attitudes, Knowledge, and Skill Sets: Representatives of the
Douglas County Public Library want a modern, inviting, and functional building that can
support long-term growth of Library programs, resources, and services. This is possible
by increasing the amount of financial support and broad community support by
promoting the value of the Library to the Douglas County Board of County
Commissioners, patrons and visitors, and to the broader community. Representatives of

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 73 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



the Douglas County Public Library should actively promote the value of the Library’s
program, resources, and services as well as the Library’s potential if needed physical
improvements to the Minden Library are completed.

Specific Actionable Item(s): The hiring of a firm to provide renovation and reconfiguring
consulting services will be completed within one year and a comprehensive
implementation and action plan to complete the reconfiguration of the Minden Library
will be developed within two years. Assigned Douglas County Public Library staff,
including the Library Director, will be responsible for completing this specific actionable
item.

¢ FI Goal No. 3: By 2025, the Douglas County Public Library will develop a dedicated
space for programming and education in order to support the development of a
supporting technology curriculum.

Needed Assets, Capital Resources, and Possible Barriers: Needed assets include
additional dedicated space for technology programming and education and additional
funding and other financial resources. Existing capital resources include existing staff
and volunteers with the required expertise, existing space that can be expanded to support
additional programming, and existing materials and partial grant funding that has already
been awarded. Possible barriers include not gaining the additional space needed to
support programming and education and not securing the additional needed funding. The
Douglas County Public Library will work with the Douglas County Board of County
Commissioners to secure the necessary buy-in and support for expanding the existing
Minden Library and will seek out additional grants.

Conditions, Behaviors, and Attitudes, Knowledge, and Skill Sets: This goal will increase
the community’s overall awareness of the Douglas County Public Library’s digital
resources and the Library will seek to close the existing ‘technology literacy’ gap that
currently exists throughout Douglas County. By providing additional technology
programming and education, individual patrons and visitors will overcome their fear and
uncertainty of technology and this will be achieved by providing a non-judgmental
learning environment within the Douglas County Public Library.

Specific Actionable Item(s): Assigned Douglas County Public Library staff will develop
and implement a new technology program curriculum within three years. The Douglas
County Public Library will market the new technology program(s) to community-based
organizations and a survey of program participants will be completed regularly to
evaluate performance of the new technology program(s).

¢ FI Goal No. 4: By December 2027, the Douglas County Public Library will complete
the planning and begin the development of facility improvements needed to support
additional program, resource, and service development.

Needed Assets, Capital Resources, and Possible Barriers: Needed assets include the
necessary land, additional staff, secured funding sources, and support of the Douglas

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 74 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



County government and Board of County Commissioners. Possible partners to be
enlisted in this effort may include Bently Heritage, local Chambers of Commerce, various
service clubs (Kiwanis, Fortnightly, Rotary), the Tahoe Visitors Authority, the Douglas
County School District, local Tribal Councils and governments, the Northern Nevada
Development Authority and the Economic Development Authority of Western Nevada,
the Governor’s Office of Economic Development, the Nevada State Library, local
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families representative, and Douglas County
community leaders. Existing capital resources include the Douglas County Public
Library’s existing branch libraries including the Minden Library and the Lake Tahoe
Branch. Possible barriers include a lack of support from the Douglas County and/or the
Board of County Commissioners. The Douglas County Public Library, including
administrative staff and key representatives will develop and implement a comprehensive
information campaign designed to provide a detailed plan and justification for completion
of needed facility improvements.

Conditions, Behaviors, and Attitudes, Knowledge, and Skill Sets: This goal seeks to
complete needed facility improvements by increasing the overall support for them among
members of the Douglas County Board of County Commissioners and amongst the
public. Douglas County Public Library staff will market the Library and Library’s
various programs, resources, and services to the public and to the wider community.

Specific Actionable Item(s): The Douglas County Public Library will develop and
prepare a lobbying and/or marketing plan that will be used to increase support for the
development of needed facility improvements throughout the community, by the Douglas
County Board of County Commissioners and Douglas County staff, local area businesses,
and by local community-based organizations. The Director of the Douglas County Public
Library will be responsible for implementation and achievement of this specific
actionable item and completion of this strategy will be achieved within three to five
years. Key checkpoints include the successful development of required building plans,
architectural designs, cost estimates, and annual progress reports produced during
implementation.

¢ FI Goal No. 5: By the end of this five-year strategic planning horizon, the Douglas
County Public Library will complete the plans for and begun implementation of a new
branch library, the renovation of the current Minden Branch, or some combination
dependent upon resource availability.

Needed Assets, Capital Resources, and Possible Barriers: Needed assets include
additional funding and other financial resources, identifying and securing a physical
location and land for a new branch library, increased community buy-in and support for a
new branch library and new renovations to the existing Minden Library, and buy-in and
support from the Douglas County Board of County Commissioners and Douglas County
staff. Existing capital resources include the existing space at the Minden Library that is
available for expansion of the Minden Library, significant internal organizational support
for a new branch library and renovation of the Minden Library, and a significant increase
in demand for Library programs, resources, and services. Potential barriers include a lack

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 75 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



of community support and buy-in and a lack of needed funding and other financial
resources. The Douglas County Public Library will engage in an aggressive community
public relations, engagement, and marketing campaign focused on communicating the
need for an additional branch library and renovation of the Minden Library and will seek
to fundraise the needed financial resources through various sources.

Conditions, Behaviors, and Attitudes, Knowledge, and Skill Sets: The successful opening
of a new branch library and the completion of needed renovations to the existing branch
libraries will enable the Douglas County Public Library to expand existing and create
new programs, resources, and services, resulting in increased patron usage and increase
ease of access to the Library’s collections. Additional community support and buy-in and
increased support and buy-in from the Douglas County Board of County Commissioners
and Douglas County staff is a needed behavioral change. Douglas County Public Library
staff and representatives will need to educate the community about the Library’s need for
additional facilities including the need for a new branch library in underserved parts of
the county and for new renovations and improvements at the Minden Library.

Specific Actionable Item(s): The Douglas County Public Library will prepare and host a
tour of the Minden Library for members of the Douglas County Board of County
Commissioners and Douglas County staff within one year. Over the next five years, the
Douglas County Public Library, including Library staff, members of the Board of
Trustees, members of the Board of County Commissioners, and invited patrons, will
develop a plan for how a new facility and branch library will be used and where it will be
located. Receiving approval for a new branch library and for requested renovations of
the Minden Branch will be used to measure progress and impact of each of these specific
actionable items.

Achievement of each strategic goal’s specific actionable item, as well as the successful change in
the identified underlying condition, behavior, and attitude, knowledge, and/or skill set will be
evaluated each year over the five-year 2022 through 2027 strategic planning horizon.

5.5.c Implementation Elements and Actionable Items for the Community Outreach and
Engagement (COE) Goals

The following subsection contains the identified needed assets, existing capital resources, and
possible barriers for each of the five Community Outreach and Engagement goals that comprise
the new five-year organizational strategic plan for the Douglas County Public Library. This
subsection also contains conditions, behaviors, and attitudes, knowledge, and skill sets that will
be positively impacted by the achievement of each Community Outreach and Engagement
strategic goal and at least one specific strategy and actionable item for each individual strategic
goal.

¢ COE Goal No. 1: Within six months of adoption of this strategic plan, the Douglas
County Public Library will develop a comprehensive public relations campaign which
will include staff training on the development and execution of various marketing
strategies.

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 76 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



Needed Assets, Capital Resources, and Possible Barriers: Needed assets include
dedicated staff with the necessary expertise and past successful record of developing,
implementing, and administering a comprehensive public relations campaign. Additional
needed assets include use of additional social media sites and potential partnerships with
local area businesses with existing marketing expertise and reach (i.e. the C.O.D. Casino
in Minden, Nevada and advertising through their lighted sign). Existing capital resources
include existing public relations, marketing, and community engagement efforts already
being implemented by the Douglas County Public Library. Possible barriers include the
Library’s past history which has, at times, been characterized as an ‘ad hoc’ approach to
public relations, marketing, and community engagement. Dedicated staff, with the
primary responsibility of public relations, marketing, and community engagement is
needed to shift Library public relations, marketing, and community engagement away
from previous ‘ad hoc’ approaches to more purposeful and routine efforts.

Conditions, Behaviors, and Attitudes, Knowledge, and Skill Sets: This goal seeks to
increase overall Library usage by 25 percent by December 2027. Douglas County Public
Library staff, volunteers, and representatives will need to improve their own public
relations, community outreach and engagement, and marketing efforts with increased
training in order to improve overall public awareness.

Specific Actionable Item(s): The Douglas County Public Library will provide the
necessary public relations, community engagement, and marketing training to appropriate
staff and representatives within one year and with annual training provided each year
over the course of this new five-year strategic planning horizon.

e COE Goal No. 2: By the end of 2023, the Douglas County Public Library will expand
its existing partnership and engagement with the Washoe Tribe to include participation in
Tribal events.

Needed Assets, Capital Resources, and Possible Barriers: Needed assets include
dedicated staff time to engaging with the Washoe Tribe and Washoe Tribe
representatives and community members and improved connections and engagement
with the Washoe Tribe’s Tribal Council. Existing capital resources include existing
funding levels dedicated to Native American and indigenous communities programming,
existing Library materials and collections, existing partnerships with Douglas County
School District representatives, and existing physical spaces and vehicles that can support
increased engagement with the Washoe Tribe. Possible barriers include a potential loss
of existing funding, decline in the existing relationship between the Douglas County
Public Library and the Washoe Tribe, and a lack of interest on expanding the existing
partnership. The Douglas County Public Library will seek grants and other funds to
augment potential losses in existing funding, seek out and engage with other potential
partners, and increase outreach with Tribal community members to identify community
interest.

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 77 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



Conditions, Behaviors, and Attitudes, Knowledge, and Skill Sets: The Washoe Tribe and
other area Native American and indigenous communities will be aware of the various
program, resources, and services that are available to them through the Douglas County
Public Library. Increased number of face-to-face and personal interactions between
Douglas County Public Library staff and Tribal Council members and indigenous
community members will be needed along with increased trust, consistency in program,
resource, and service delivery by the Douglas County Public Library, and a long-term
commitment to serving the needs of the Washoe Tribe and other Native American and
indigenous communities.

Specific Actionable Item(s): The Douglas County Public Library will increase its overall
participation in various Native American and indigenous community events (Headstart,
Family Nights, Tribal Council meetings) and develop and provide new Native American
and indigenous community oriented activities and events within one year. Appropriate
Library staff, including the Library Director, along with the appropriate Tribal Council
members and community leaders will be responsible for implementing this specific
actionable item within one year and Library staff will prepare and provide quarterly
reports on the number of events hosted and the number of attendees that participated in
those events to the Douglas County Public Library’s Board of Trustees.

e COE Goal No. 3: Using existing metrics, the Douglas County Public Library will
significantly and measurably increase overall public perception and engagement by 2024.

Needed Assets, Capital Resources, and Possible Barriers: Needed assets include
additional programming, improved community outreach and engagement, and increased
buy-in and support from the Douglas County Board of County Commissioners and
Douglas County staff. Existing capital resources include existing Library staff and
volunteers with interest in developing and delivering new programs. Potential barriers
include a lack of community awareness and/or interest in new programming and ongoing
COVID-19 global pandemic impacts and community resistance toward in-person
activities. The Douglas County Public Library will develop, implement, and administer a
new public relations, community engagement, and marketing campaign in order to
increase community awareness and interest and will offer more virtual programs and
engagement opportunities.

Conditions, Behaviors, and Attitudes, Knowledge, and Skill Sets: This goal is designed to
increase the overall level of trust that the public has in the Douglas County Public
Library. Douglas County Public Library staff and representatives will commit
themselves to increased community engagement in order to educate the public about the
value that the Douglas County Public Library provides to the community and to
individual Library patrons and visitors.

Specific Actionable Item(s): Within two years, assigned Douglas County Public Library
staff will develop and host a ‘Library Open House’ at both the Minden Library and the
Lake Tahoe Branch. Members of the Douglas County Board of County Commissioners

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 78 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



and Douglas County senior staff, private sector firms, and representatives of community-
based organizations will be invited to attend each ‘Library Open House’.

e COE Goal No. 4: By December 2027, the Douglas County Public Library will increase
the total number of active community partnerships with Douglas County stakeholders to a
minimum target of ten new partnerships.

Needed Assets, Capital Resources, and Possible Barriers: Needed assets listed include
people with the necessary connections and skills, a facility large enough to provide the
services, volunteers capable in making the needed connections, and engagement with
organizations such as the Douglas County Public School District, Western Nevada
College, Douglas County, and the Chamber of Commerce. No capital resources are
listed. Possible barriers include the necessary financial resources and support from the
Douglas County Board of County Commissioners. The Douglas County Public Library
will work to create and maintain meaningful external relationships and provide
information as to why the Board of County Commissioners should increase support of the
Library.

Conditions, Behaviors, and Attitudes, Knowledge, and Skill Sets: This goal will seek out
to increase overall community awareness and support of the importance of the Douglas
County Public Library and Library’s existing programs, resources, and services. The
anticipated behavioral change required is a general increase in the use of the Library’s
various facilities and online services. Library leadership needs to develop various
positive working relationships with various community organizations and businesses
within and throughout Douglas County.

Specific Actionable Item(s): The Douglas County Public Library will become an official
member of local area Chambers of Commerce and participate regularly in Chamber
meetings, events, and activities. The Director of the Douglas County Public Library will
be responsible for implementing this actionable item within one year. Library
membership and participation in local area Chambers of Commerce will result in making
and establishing a working relationship with a minimum of six local area businesses with
the first year of membership.

e COE Goal No. 5: Over the next five years, the Douglas County Public Library will
increase overall participation in community events and activity outreach and engage with
various stakeholders and community organizations in order to more effectively promote
Library programs, resources, and services.

Needed Assets, Capital Resources, and Possible Barriers: Needed assets include needed
new partnerships (i.e. participation with local Chambers of Commerce, ‘Leadership
Douglas County’ program), planned, scheduled, and regular visits and meetings with
local area service clubs, and engagement with the Douglas County School District.
Existing capital resources include existing staff with the necessary relationships with
external agencies, businesses, and firms, existing and future members of the Douglas
County Public Library’s Board of Trustees and members of the Friends of the Library

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 79 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



group, existing Library volunteers, and the personal relationships that Library staff,
volunteers, and representatives may have with others outside the Library. Possible
barriers include the limited amount of time that Douglas County Public Library staff,
volunteers, and representatives have to dedicate to participation in community events and
activity outreach as well as the limited physical space that is available at both the Minden
Library and Take Tahoe Branch to support and host community events. The Douglas
County Public Library will schedule dedicated community event participation and
activity outreach as part of the regular assigned duties of selected staff and will also seek
to renovate existing meeting and gathering space at both the Minden Library and the
Lake Tahoe Branch to support the hosting of additional community events and activities.

Conditions, Behaviors, and Attitudes, Knowledge, and Skill Sets: This goal seeks to
increase the number and variety of events and activities that are hosted by the Douglas
County Public Library and, as a result, provide more reasons for the public, patrons,
visitors, and the community to use the Library. Douglas County Public Library staff and
representatives will have to focus on expanding existing and building new partnerships
with other public sector agencies, private sector firms, and community-based
organizations. Library staff and representatives will need to seek out partnerships that
provide the most benefit to the Library and to the prospective partner. Library staff and
representatives will also have to learn which perspective partner agencies, firms, and
organizations are willing to partner with the Douglas County Public Library and whom to
contact at each agency, firm, and organization.

Specific Actionable Item(s): A community events and outreach committee, consisting of
one Library staff representative (preferably the Library Director), one member of the
Board of Trustees, one member of the Friends of the Library group, and one Library
volunteer, will work to develop and begin implementation of a comprehensive
community event and outreach participation plan. These individuals, beginning in 2023,
will participate in the Leadership Douglas County program with other staff
representatives, other members of the Board of Trustees, other members of the Friends of
the Library group, and one other Library volunteer participating in the program annually
after 2023.

Achievement of each strategic goal’s specific actionable item, as well as the successful change in
the identified underlying condition, behavior, and attitude, knowledge, and/or skill set will be
evaluated each year over the five-year 2022 through 2027 strategic planning horizon.

5.6 Benchmarks for the Douglas County Public Library’s Strategic Plan for
2022 through 2027

Over the next five years, the Douglas County Public Library will be given the opportunity to
revisit the core values, strategic mission statement, strategic vision statement, and the various
goals and actionable items outlined in this strategic plan for 2022 through 2027. On an annual
basis, the Douglas County Public Library will be able to benchmark their success in
implementing this strategic plan using a series of questions that were answered by workshop

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 80 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



participants who participated in the third organizational strategic planning workshop held on
April 2,2022. The initial answers to each question, developed as part of this benchmarking
process, are presented here:

Does this strategic plan give overall direction? Yes. Workshop participants generally
agreed that the elements of the new five-year organizational strategic plan, especially
the revised core values and the new strategic mission and vision statements, provide
clear and concise direction for the Douglas County Public Library.

Does this strategic plan fit resources and opportunities? Yes. While recognizing that
existing financial and non-financial resources are scarce, workshop participants
generally agreed that each of the new organizational strategic goals fit within a
generally realistic estimate of possible future resources. Several workshop participants
noted that several of the specific strategic goals will be ‘stretch’ goals that the Douglas
County Public Library might not be able to fully complete within the next five years.
However, workshop participants agreed that these ‘stretch’ goals could potentially
result in additional success beyond the current five-year strategic planning horizon
between 2022 and 2027.

Does this strategic plan minimize resistance and barriers? Yes. In general, workshop
participants agreed that the new five-year organizational strategic plan for the Douglas
County Public Library both realizes possible resistance and barriers that may derail
future implementation and provides a general outline as to how future possible
resistance and barriers might be mitigated. A number of workshop participants noted
that several of the individual strategic goals are focused on increasing the number of
partnerships with agencies, private sector firms, and community-based organizations
that the Douglas County Public Library has not always had a working relationship
with but is interested in developing. By building these new relationships and
partnerships, the Douglas County Public Library anticipates minimizing future
resistance and possible barriers to implementing elements of the new five-year strategic
plan.

Does this strategic plan reach those affected? Yes. The new five-year organizational
strategic plan, including the new core values, new strategic mission and vision
statements, and each of the new strategic organizational goals, focus on the needs and
wants of patrons and visitors and on how the Douglas County Public Library has and
will continue to positively contribute to the quality of life in Douglas County. Many of
these efforts are consistent with the general goal of improving the quality of life of all
county residents as outlined in the current strategic plan for the government of
Douglas County.

Does this strategic plan advance the mission? Yes. Workshop participants generally
agreed that each of the new strategic organizational goals and each accompanying
implementation and actionable element and item directly advances the new strategic
mission statement and facilitates achievement of the new strategic vision statement for
the Douglas County Public Library.

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 81 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



If the results of any of the individual annual evaluations of the new five-year organizational
strategic plan for the Douglas County Public Library result in different answers than the initial
benchmarking answers listed above, revisions to either the core values, the strategic mission or
vision statement, or to the goals or the specific actionable items for each individual strategic
goal, can be made. Benchmarking the new five-year organizational strategic plan for the
Douglas County Public Library in this manner also allows the Douglas County Public Library to
evaluate overall progress in achieving the stated strategic organizational goals outlined in this
new five-year organizational strategic plan and to determine why or why not progress on any
given strategic organizational strategic goal has or has not been made.

5.7 Linking Elements of the Douglas County Public Library Strategic Plan to
the Strategic Plan of Douglas County and Other Planning Documents

As part of the third organizational strategic planning workshop held on April 2, 2022, workshop
participants were asked to further evaluate the new five-year organizational strategic plan for the
Douglas County Public Library in relationship with the existing strategic plan for the
government of Douglas County and other relevant planning documents.

5.7.a Consideration of the Douglas County Public Library Organizational Assessment
(September 2021)

In September 2021, Moss Adams LLP presented a comprehensive organizational assessment,
Douglas County Public Library Organizational Assessment, to the Douglas County Public
Library and to the Douglas County Public Library’s Board of Trustees. The purpose of this
comprehensive organizational assessment was to identify opportunities for improvement in
several key areas including governance (governance structure, Library Board of Trustee and
management roles and responsibilities, and communication norms), organization (structure,
staffing levels and skills, workloads, span of control, roles and responsibilities, job descriptions,
accountability, and management practices), operations (policies, procedures, workflow
processes, communication, facilities, technology, and equipment), and services (program and
service delivery, performance metrics, and performance reporting). As part of this assessment,
Moss Adams LLP outlined 15 separate recommendations.

During the third organizational strategic planning workshop held on April 2, 2022, workshop
participants were asked to evaluate the progress that the Douglas County Public Library has
made in completing each individual recommendation and if and how the new five-year
organizational strategic plan will enable the Library to further implement each of the individual
recommendations outlined in the Moss Adams LLP’s comprehensive organizational assessment.
The results of this assessment are presented here.

e Recommendation No. 1: Develop an outcome-based, long-term strategic plan that is
rooted in community needs, aligns with Douglas County’s strategic plan, and utilizes
performance measures to assess progress towards goals.

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 82 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



In evaluating the Douglas County Public Library’s overall performance in implementing
this specific recommendation, workshop participants agreed that the new five-year
organizational strategic plan for the Douglas County Public Library is definitely
outcome-based, is deeply rooted in community needs, does align with specific elements
of Douglas County’s Fiscal Year 2018 through Fiscal Year 2022 strategic plan, and does
utilize a series of performance measures to asses annual progress towards the
achievement of specific strategic goals. Workshop participants did note, however, that
there is very little within the current Douglas County strategic plan to align with Douglas
County Public Library activities and strategic organizational goals. As Douglas County
prepares to develop a new five-year organizational strategic plan, workshop participants
expressed their desire to see Douglas County incorporate elements of the Library’s new
five-year organizational strategic plan into the new five-year Douglas County
organizational strategic plan.

e Recommendation No. 2: Ensure the next Library Director embodies the characteristics
needed by the Library to overcome its challenges and is appropriately onboarded to
support success in this roll. Leverage the LBOT to support a smooth leadership
transition.

Workshop participants noted that the Douglas County Public Library is making
significant progress toward achieving this specific recommendation. Over the past
several months, the Douglas County Public Library has been engaged in a national
recruitment for a new Library Director and anticipates having a new Library Director
installed before the new five-year organizational strategic plan for the Douglas County
Public Library is adopted and approved. Workshop participants further noted that
existing Library staff and representatives will work with the new Library Director to
collaboratively implement the new five-year organizational strategic plan in order to
support long-term success.

e Recommendation No. 3: Fully and consistently implement a policy governance model
to focus the LBOT on policy and strategy with delegation of operations to the Director.

Because a new Library Director had, at the time this specific recommendation was made
and the Moss Adams LLP organizational assessment was published, the Douglas County
Public Library has not implement a new policy governance model. Workshop
participants expressed their hope that the new Library Director will work collaboratively
with existing Library staff, volunteers, and representatives, with members of the Douglas
County Board of County Commissioners and Douglas County staff, and with various
other internal and external stakeholders to develop and implement a new policy
governance model that will focus on both related policy issues and implementation of the
new five-year organizational strategic plan.

e Recommendation No. 4: Library’s leadership should reaffirm a commitment to their
distinct roles as servant-leaders of Douglas County, establishing positive working
relationships to deliver high-quality library services to all members of the community.

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 83 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



The new five-year organizational strategic plan for the Douglas County Public Library is
rooted in the commitment that Library staff, volunteers, and representatives have to their
distinct roles as servant-leaders in Douglas County. The new five-year organizational
strategic plan for the Douglas County Public Library contains a series of individual
strategic goals that are specifically focused on establishing positive internal and external
working relationships. Several of the new strategic goals outlined in this new five-year
organizational strategic plan are also focused on expanding and improving existing
Library programs, resources, and services and on developing new programs, resources,
and services that serve the existing, changing, and evolving needs and wants of
community members, patrons, and visitors including previously underserved and in-need
populations and population groups.

e Recommendation No. 5: Library leaders should increase collaboration with other
County departments and actively participate in County-wide initiatives to promote
alignment with strategies and goals.

Workshop participants noted that some progress has been made in achieving this specific
recommendation. The hiring and installation of a new Library Director is needed to
make further progress in completing this recommendation and additional engagement and
support from both the Douglas County Board of County Commissioners and Douglas
County staff will be needed. Increasing collaboration between the Douglas County
Public Library and various Douglas County departments and agencies requires a
reciprocal relationship, the joint development of programs, resources, and services, and
that the responsibility for funding and implementation is shared. Several of the new
strategic goals outlined in this new five-year organizational strategic plan expand the
Library’s desire to collaborate with external stakeholders beyond Douglas County
departments and agencies but also includes other public sector agencies, various private
sector firms, and various community-based organizations. Workshop participants agreed
that new program, resource, and service development should be done collaboratively with
agencies, departments, private sector firms, and other organizations that share a similar
mission with the Douglas County Public Library.

e Recommendation No. 6: Develop a plan to cross-train employees in order to ensure
adequate back-up for key roles and to support employee growth and development, with
priority placed on management functions.

During the third organizational strategic planning workshop held on April 2, 2022,
workshop participants agreed to create a sixth core value, Professional Development.
This core value reflects the commitment of the Douglas County Public Library to provide
advanced and frequent professional development opportunities to Library staff,
volunteers, and representatives in order to build additional trust, to encourage individuals
to become leaders within the organization and throughout the community, and to provide
individuals with opportunities for advancement and personal and professional growth.
While not yet implemented, several of the specific actionable items and strategies
assigned to specific strategic goals outline additional professional development and
training opportunities that will be needed to ensure that Library staff, volunteers, and

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 84 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



representatives have the requisite skills to achieve elements of the new five-year
organizational strategic plan.

e Recommendation No. 7: Establish formal internal communication protocols that
encourage productive and frequent two-way communication between management and

staff.

Several elements of the new five-year organizational strategic plan, including a number
of the specific Community Outreach and Engagement goals, identify a series of goals and
actionable items focused on improving internal communication protocols that will, when
implemented and achieved, encourage increased productive and frequent two-
communication between Library management and staff. While this has not yet been
accomplished, workshop participants agreed that the new five-year organizational
strategic plan provides a clear roadmap as to how the Douglas County Public Library can
successfully achieve this specific recommendation. Additional planning and internal
protocols and policies will need to be developed and implemented on an annual basis in
order to ensure full achievement of this recommendation.

e Recommendation No. 8: Establish a consistent program evaluation process and
reporting system to ensure programs advance the Library’s mission, respond to
community needs, and are delivered equitably.

A key element of the Douglas County Public Library’s expiring long-range plan for 2012
through 2019 and a key element of the new five-year organizational strategic plan for the
Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027 is that each goal contains a clear
and consistent evaluation process and reporting system. Each of the new strategic goals
outlined in the new five-year organizational strategic plan have a specific timeframe for
completion and the Douglas County Public Library has successfully completed and
implemented a comprehensive program evaluation process and reporting system for each
existing program, resource, and service currently offered by the Library. Workshop
participants further noted that the Library’s new five-year strategic mission statement and
new five-year strategic vision statement are explicitly tied to equitably serving the
informational, educational, recreational, and cultural needs of the people of Douglas
County. Several elements of the new five-year organizational strategic plan, including
several of the specific strategic goals, will seek to expand Library provision of programs,
resources, and services to historically in-need and underserved populations and
population groups within and throughout the county.

¢ Recommendation No. 9: Library should create a systematic training program for all
employees, including recently promoted employees, to prepare for success in their role.

Over the past several years, the Douglas County Public Library has made significant
progress in updating and revising internal protocols, policies, and procedures and
communicating these expectations to both existing and new employees and volunteers.
While this effort has not been necessarily systematic, past, current, and ongoing efforts to
training existing and new employees and volunteers has already significantly improved

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 85 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



overall organizational and operational efficiency and effectiveness while increasing the
quality and level of service that the Library provides to patrons and visitors. Additional
training has been incorporated into several elements of the new five-year organizational
strategic plan including the development of a Professional Development core value and
several strategic goals and specific actionable items and strategies. Over the next five
years, the Douglas County Public Library will continue to develop and provide
professional development opportunities and training to its employees, volunteers, and
representatives.

e Recommendation No. 10: Establish a process to evaluate programs, activities, and past
participation to develop a volunteer program that addresses the Library needs; Develop a
strategy to assist interested individuals with the new volunteer application process.

While workshop participants were nearly unanimous in their support of this
recommendation, workshop participants noted that the Douglas County Public Library,
by itself, has little to no authority to develop and establish a process to evaluate
programs, activities, and past participation with the explicit goal of developing a
volunteer program that addresses existing and anticipated Library needs. Only the
designated employees and departments of the government of Douglas County has the
authority to vet, qualify, and approve applications by individuals interested in serving as
volunteers for the Douglas County Public Library. Workshop participants did note that
Library staff and representatives, including members of the Library’s Board of Trustees
and members of the Friends of the Library group, are willing to work collaboratively with
the Douglas County Board of County Commissioners and Douglas County staff to
complete and implement this recommendation. Workshop participants further noted that
additional progress on achieving this recommendation should be a primary responsibility
of the new Library Director once a new Library Director is hired. During the fourth
strategic planning workshop held on August 23, 2022, workshop participants agreed that
no specific strategic goal is needed in order to develop a volunteer program that addresses
the Library’s needs as Library staff are already addressing this issue internally. The
development of specific volunteer program related goals may be developed over the
course of the new five-year strategic planning horizon as internal policies and positions
are developed.

e Recommendation No. 11: Collaborate with County Manager, Finance Director, HR
Director to review County policies and procedures, establish common understanding,
conduct regular interviews with staff regarding policies and procedures; Align Library
and County policies and procedures.

Workshop participants agreed that several elements of the new five-year organizational
strategic plan for the Douglas County Public Library, including several of the new core
values and several of the strategic goals, emphasize the importance of engaging and
collaborating with the government of Douglas County in order to establish common
understanding and to align the Library’s and County’s own policies and procedures.
Several workshop participants further noted that Library staff and several Library
representatives are already working with Douglas County staff to review existing county

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 86 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



government policies and procedures and to review and revise existing Library policies,
protocols, and procedures. Additional progress in achieving and implementing this
recommendation will likely be made once a new Library Director has been selected and
hired.

e Recommendation No. 12: Library Director should develop a list and estimated costs for
facility upgrades and submit improvement request to Facilities Management for inclusion
in the County’s Capital Improvement Plan.

While specific facility upgrades and associated estimated costs have not yet been fully
developed, the new five-year organizational strategic plan contains five specific Facility
Improvements strategic goals. Each of these Facility Improvements strategic goals
identity a number of specific facility upgrades, including the development of a new
branch library that is needed to serve growing parts of Douglas County that are currently
underserved, that will be further developed as the new five-year strategic plan is
implemented. The development of a specific list of and estimated costs for specific
facility upgrades will be developed during the first few years of implementation of the
new five-year organizational strategic plan. These estimates will be provided to the
Douglas County Board of County Commissioners and Douglas County staff for review
and for inclusion in the county’s Capital Improvement Plan.

¢ Recommendation No. 13: Develop a community partnership strategy to engage
community organizations, elevate service offerings, strengthen community relationships.

Incorporated into this new five-year organizational strategic plan for the Douglas County
Public Library are the specific elements of a community partnership and engagement
strategy. These specific community partnership and engagement strategies are outlined
in the five Community Outreach and Engagement strategic goals and emphasize the
Library’s desire and willingness to partner and collaborate with a number of other public
sector agencies, private sector firms, and community-based organizations in order to
elevate and expand existing programs, resources, and services, to develop and deliver
new programs, resources, and services, and to better serve in-need and historically
underserved populations and population groups. The elements of the Douglas County
Public Library’s new community partnership and engagement plan, outlined in the five
Community Outreach and Engagement strategic goals, will be evaluated on an annual
basis and revised as necessary.

e Recommendation No. 14: Develop proactive community engagement practices.

Workshop participants generally agreed that, like Recommendation No. 13, the
Community Outreach and Engagement strategic goals and associated specific actionable
items and strategies outlined in the new five-year organizational strategic plan for the
Douglas County Public Library include a number of proactive community engagement
practices. Implementation of the assigned specific actionable items and strategies and
ultimate achievement of each Community Outreach and Engagement strategic goal will
be evaluated on an annual basis and necessary changes and alterations, including the

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 87 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



development and implementation of additional proactive community engagement
practices, will be completed as needed. The new five-year organizational strategic plan
for the Douglas County Public Library commits Library staff, volunteers, and
representatives to developing and implementing proactive community engagement
practices that ensure that the Library will continue to meet the informational, educational,
recreational, and cultural needs of the people of Douglas County.

e Recommendation No. 15: Work with the Friends of the Library to develop and utilize a
strategic, consistent approach to considering fundraising and programmatic opportunities.

Several workshop participants noted that several members of the Friends of the Library
group have been actively involved in the development of each element contained within
the new five-year organizational strategic plan for the Douglas County Public Library.
Douglas County Public Library staff, members of the Library’s Board of Trustees, and
members of the Friends of the Library group were actively involved in crafting each of
the new core values, the new strategic mission statement and new strategic vision
statement, and in crafting several of the new strategic goals along with input from several
external stakeholders and stakeholder groups. While additional strategies and actionable
items will need to be developed over the course of the next five-year strategic planning
horizon and beyond, several of the new strategic goals and several of the assigned
specific actionable items outline ways in which the Friends of the Library group can
develop and utilize a comprehensive and consistent approach to fundraising and
programmatic opportunities. During the fourth strategic planning workshop held on
August 23, 2022, workshop participants agreed that the Douglas County Public Library is
already in the process of identifying opportunities to engage the Friends of the Library
group in ways that support the development and delivery of programs, resources, and
services. While the development of new specific strategic goals regarding the Friends of
the Library group are not needed at this point, it is possible that goals specific to the
Friends of the Library group may be developed over the course of this new five-year
strategic planning horizon.

As part of each individual annual evaluation and assessment of this new five-year organizational
strategic plan for the Douglas County Public Library, each of these 15 recommendations will be
revisited and assessed in order to measure the progress that the Douglas County Public Library
has made in achieving and implementing them. Elements of each of the 15 recommendations
outlined in the September 2021 Moss Adams LLP Douglas County Public Library organizational
assessment will also be further integrated into additional specific actions that the Douglas
County Public Library develops and implements as the Library begins implementation of this
new five-year organizational strategic plan.

5.7.b Consideration of Elements of the Douglas County Fiscal Year 2018 through Fiscal Year
2022 Strategic Plan (June 2017)

The existing Douglas County Fiscal Year 2018 through Fiscal Year 2022 strategic plan consists
of several value statements, a mission statement, vision statement, and several individual

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 88 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



strategic objectives. The current values, as outlined in the strategic plan for Douglas County,
are:

e Integrity: We demonstrate honest and ethical conduct through our actions.
e Accountability: We accept responsibility for our actions.

e Customer Service: We deliver efficient and effective service with an attitude of respect
and fairness.

o Leadership: We establish the tone and direction for success motivating and inspiring
others to accomplish a shared vision.

e Communication: We ensure open dialogue through proactive listening and sharing of
information throughout the organization and the community.

o Teamwork: We work together to achieve shared goals.

During the third organizational strategic planning workshop held on April 2, 2022 as part of this
strategic planning process for the Douglas County Public Library, workshop participants were
asked to assess how the Library’s new core values align with the existing values of Douglas
County. Workshop participants noted that several of the Library’s new core values, especially
Stewardship and Accountability, Equitable Service and Treatment, Quality Service, and
Community Engagement, align well with Douglas County’s values of Integrity, Accountability,
Customer Service, Communication, and Teamwork. The new core values of the Douglas County
Public Library that align with the values of Douglas County share a number of similar objectives
and create a series of shared responsibilities for organizational staff and representatives. Staff,
volunteers, and representatives of the Douglas County Public Library are, like Douglas County
staff and representatives, expected to hold themselves and others within the organization
accountable for their actions and strive to be efficient and effective in the use of organizational
resources. Both the Douglas County Public Library and Douglas County emphasize the
importance of providing exceptional and high quality service to individuals who interact with
both the Library and with various county agencies and departments. Furthermore, both the
Douglas County Public Library and Douglas County expect that organizational representatives
work collaboratively with internal and external stakeholders to achieve stated organizational
goals.

The current mission statement of Douglas County, as outlined in the current Fiscal Year 2018
through Fiscal Year 2022 strategic plan, is as stated:

Working together with integrity and accountability, the Douglas County team is dedicated to
providing essential and cost-effective public services fostering a safe, healthy, scenic, and
vibrant community for the enjoyment of our residents and visitors.

Like the mission statement for Douglas County, the new mission statement for the Douglas
County Public Library as part of this new five-year organizational strategic plan emphasizes the

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 89 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



role that the organization plays in providing critical programs, resources, and services to
members of the community that depend upon each organization. Both the mission statement for
the Douglas County Public Library and for Douglas County emphasizes the positive impact that
both the Library and the county government strive to have on individuals and on the broader
community.

The existing vision statement of Douglas is comprised of aspirational statements built around the
six strategic objective and initiative areas that comprise Douglas County’s current five-year
organizational strategic plan. The current vision statement of Douglas County, as outlined in the
current Fiscal Year 2018 through Fiscal Year 2022 strategic plan, is as stated:

We will achieve our vision by...

Providing for the maintenance and infrastructure necessary to meet current and future service
levels.

Valuing our employees and work to develop a workforce that serves and is valued by County
citizens.

Ensuring financial stability that allows for sustainable planning and maintenance of the
County’s resources.

Partnering to ensure the County’s economic vitality.

Committing to the protection and safety of its citizens through professional public safety and
emergency services.

Preserve the County’s natural resources, cultural heritage and other assets to create the ideal
destination for residents and visitors alike while ensuring orderly and sustainable development
of the community.

The Natural Resources, Cultural Heritage strategic objective and initiative area within the
current Douglas County strategic plan contains a series of individual milestones and countywide
initiatives including Initiative 6.3 Promotion of Local Assets with the accompanying general
action of advocating for the usage, understanding and support of assets including public parks,
trails, public libraries, local schools and local colleges in the county. Key contributors for this
specific initiative include Community Services, the Douglas County Public Library, local
museums and historical societies, individual towns, and the Douglas County School District.
Improved marketing efforts and increased coordination and partnership across various
organizations including the Douglas County Public Library were each identified as specific
targeted actionable items assigned to Initiative 6.3. In evaluating the exiting vision statement for
Douglas County and for the existing objectives and individual initiatives, workshop participants
representing the Douglas County Public Library agreed that the Library’s new five-year strategic
vision and several of the Library’s new organizational goals, especially the five Community

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 90 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



Outreach and Engagement goals, expand on the specific actionable items of improved marketing
efforts and increased coordination and partnership.

Moving forward, workshop participants representing the Douglas County Public Library,
including Library staff and volunteers, members of the Douglas County Public Library’s Board
of Trustees, and members of the Friends of the Library group expressed their support for the
county’s existing strategic plan as well as for the direct inclusion of the 16 new Library
organizational strategic goals into future Douglas County strategic planning documents. Many
of the objectives and individual initiatives outlined throughout the existing Douglas County
strategic plan focus on maintaining and improving the quality of life that county residents and
visitors enjoy, a theme that is featured throughout the individual elements that comprise the new
five-year organizational strategic plan for the Douglas County Public Library. As the existing
strategic plan for Douglas County is set to expire at the end of Fiscal Year 2022, workshop
participants representing the Douglas County Public Library expressed their interest in more
actively engaging with the Board of County Commissioners, Douglas County executive staff,
and other Douglas County agencies and departments to find areas of common group where the
Library and Douglas County can work together to best serve the needs and interests of
community residents and visitors.

A Strategic Plan the Douglas County Public Library for 2022 through 2027: Page 91 of 91
The Core Values, Mission and Vision Statements, and Strategic Goals June 2022



RESOLUTION NUMBER 2022R-105

RESOLUTION AUGMENTING THE LIBRARY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
2022 - 2023 FISCAL YEAR BUDGET

WHEREAS, there is a need to revise the budget to reflect revised revenues and expenditures to the
County as follows:

Project:  Insurance Reimb. Flood Damage Materials
Project# 23Z15

Revenue
224-000 360.715 Insurance Proceeds 117,323
TOTAL REVENUES 117,323
Expenditures
224-804 532.054 Library Materials 117,323
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 117,323

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the 2022 - 2023 Fiscal Year budget is herein
amended.

Adopted this 20th day of October, 2022 by the following vote:

VOTE: Ayes Commissioners:

Nays Commissioners:

Absent Commissioners:

Mark Gardner, Chairman
Douglas County Board of Commissioners
ATTEST:

Amy Burgans
Douglas County Clerk-Treasurer



Douglas County Finance Department
Budget Augment Request Form

Use this form to request an /ncrease in total expenditures. Use the Budget Transfer form to move budgetary authority.

Source of Funds: DCJdjusted Opening Fund Batance (AGFE) [ZlGreater Than Anticipated Revenues
DJarant - 5TOP - use the Grant Forms Packet DJcapital Projects Fund Reserves
Request Date 911512022 Requested By Veronica Hallam-LIbrary
Flscal Year 2022-23 Fund/Dept: 224/804

Note that all augments requira a BOCC resolution. Finance will review your raquest form & advise as to whether
you should create the resolution or Finance will handle submission to IRC/BOCC

Account Name oot e e Project Incrense incrsase
1_|Insurance Proceeds 224-000 360.715 23715 117,323
2 |Library Materials 224-804 532.054 23Z15 117,323
3
4
5
8
7
8
2
10
1
12
13
14
Total 117,323 117,323
Purpose:

Increase budget in the amount of the insurance reimbursement for flood damage to library materials.

* A project number is required for all Capital Projects

Department Head Name Timothy DeGheider Signature %4‘%

Finance Use Oniy

IRC Approvai BOCC Approval
Agenda # Mesting Date Agenda # Mesting Date

JE# Date By

Updaied 81721




Douglas County Finance Division
Request for Capital Project Number

Project Information
Request Date _ Requested By Project Manager Estimated Cost (Budget)
9/15/2022 V. Hallam T. DeGhelder $117,323
PROJECT NAME

Insurance Reimb. Flood Damage Materials
Projact Type (Highlight or Circle One)

A - Alrport F - Federal Grant P - Parks / Recreation Z - General
B - Buildings / Facilities G - Grant - Non-Federal R - Roads / Transporiation

D - Drainage L- Land S - Sewer

E - Erosion 0 - Solid Waste W - Water

Description and Purpose of Project

To account for insurance reimbursement from flood damage to library materials on 10/31/2021 and associated costs.

Is this project In Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) Document? YES NO

Scheduled Start Date Scheduled End Date Date of Board Approval (Attach Backup)
6/30/2024 10/20/2022
Account # : .Eu_nd!ng Source(s) and Amount
224-000 360.715 Insurance-$117,322.81
224-804 532.054 Library Malerial-$117,322.81

Does this project resuit in Assots that will be owned by Dougias County? YES NO

IFYES - List the Types of Assets that will be Acqulred by Douglas County and Capitalized as a resuit of this project

And - Describe any additional assats that will be Dedicated or Donated fo the County Assaclated with this Profect

FINANCE DIVISION USE ONLY
Project Number:}23z 15 I i

Fiscal Yoar (2 digif) Projact Type (1digit - A-Z) Sequential Numbesr (01-99)

Completed By: V. Hallam
Date: 9/15/2022




Library Director- Start June 13"

Library Board Relationships

Board responsibilities- support and develop long term goals and acknowledge
status reports and give feedback. Done through normal monthly board meetings.
(Director and staff work day to day responsibilities) There will be times when we
present to the board ideas and new services that might require board approval or
simply giving the board knowledge.

Library Director and Board- Develop relationship (executive team)

Normal Communication- email is a good standard- (I would like a short update
every two weeks) Just an email to give a snapshot of any fun events or
happenings. Library newsletters and Social Media- see what our customers are
getting. (Of course if any situation arises that need attention- the board will be
immediately informed by email and a text to board members phone)

Other needs-

First 90 Days-

e Become familiar with Library Handbook and Trustee Manual- (read cover to
cover)

e Become familiar with budgeting software- (visited finance office and had
some instruction)

e Become familiar with timesheet software- (use on a weekly basis)

e Become familiar with NeoGov software- (used for job posting, training,
evaluations and volunteers)

e Create posting for Youth Supervisor- try for hiring in August- (we just did
our final interview on September 21)

e Start weekly supervisor staff meetings- (started in July)

e Start monthly staff meetings- (started in July)

e Meet with each staff member (discuss job details)- | have been doing this
when working on projects with staff.



Become familiar with webpage layout- (complete and we are making a few
changes)

Become familiar with digital products- (complete we are currently keeping
our products and will review them in 2023)

Leadership Program- 2023 (open in January 2023)

Become familiar with layout of Lake Location- (I have visited and talked
with Vanna on many occasions.)

Go to Chamber events- (I normally go to coffee, lunch and one special
event per month. | am also an ambassador- so | attend special meetings.)
Attend Kiwanis- (I am doing more in Rotary at this time.)

Learn layout of branch location- where things are (Minden)

Become familiar with Book Mobile- (I have ridden the book mobile twice
and helped with the new scheduling.)

Look at current social media sites for the library- (We have added Tik Tok
and YouTube. We are currently adding at least two new videos per week.
We are also getting organized so we have enough time to promote all of
our programming on-line different platforms.)

Attend Rotary twice a month. (I have been attending every week. | also
volunteered for the golf tournament. | am learning more about how the
Rotary makes a difference in the community with our first round of grant
funding.)

Become a county-wide volunteer so | can help out at events. (I have done
this and | will work the Candy Dance. | also worked four days at the Friends
book sale. | also worked the Rotary Golf tournament. | will also work the
job fair in October.)

Develop a positive relationship with the Friends of the Library (FOL). ( | have
attended all the meetings and brought the FOL back to the Minden
location. )

Help support fund raising activities with FOL- (I go to the meetings and
work events. | drove the U-Haul truck and stacked books. We worked side
by side and the FOL witnessed me talking to all of the customers. |role
modeled how important the library is to our community.)



Look at marketing efforts and who is being reached- (this is work in
progress. We added our first email blast, when promoting the Tiny Art
Show and the Friends Book Sale.)

Look at Minden Branch location- get input on building needs (needs a good
remodeling, with more space)

Attend Department Head biweekly meetings (I currently go to the county
meetings)

Look for ways to coach and encourage staff- (On the spot) Some fun games.
(helps keep a relaxed environment) Morale ideas

Create a grant portal for the state and see what is available for Douglas
County (currently complete and will be applying for three grants)

Develop with staff- norms for evaluation of staff members (working with
HR, there will be a quick seminar with supervisors)

Plan new library director open house event (ready to go Nov. 4t")

Learn county staff and departments and how to share information (work in
progress)

Flood damage replacement materials (books from insurance)(The check has
cleared and it will be added to the budget in October)

Money for carpet and shelves (layout) two budget cycles (we have three
bids and we are looking at carpet)

Understand the County Strategic Plan (evaluations involved learning how to
evaluate using county goals)



	ADP5AE.tmp
	ATTENDEES
	Library Board Members:  Chairperson Heather Martin Maier; Vice Chairperson Kate Garrahan; Trustees Starla Doughty, Bonnie Rogers




